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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
XI ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM TO
COMMISSION FILE NUMBER 001-33089
EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaet)
DELAWARE 82-0572194
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
280 PARK AVENUE, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10017
(Address of principal executive offices (Zip code)
(212) 277-7100
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlfie Act:
Title of Each Class: Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered:
Common Stock, par value $0.001 per st NASDAQ Global Select Marke
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tlie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405c08#turities Act.  Yed No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®acl5(d) of the Act.  YesO No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordioch shorter period that the registrant was requaodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pasti@s. Yes[X] No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldisnitted electronically and posted on its corpokieb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted pumsto Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of tiapter) during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). YEb No OO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K it contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgealdfinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part IIl of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K1

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated file O Accelerated filel
Non-accelerated file O Smaller reporting compar O
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantseell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxgie Act). Yes[ No
As of June 30, 2009, the aggregate market valeemimon stock held by non-affiliates was approxinya$461,981,863.

As of February 26, 2010, there were 29,075,998eshaf the registrant’'s common stock outstandingl(ekng 247,030 shares held in
treasury and 341,703 shares of restricted stoek)yalue $0.001 per share.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Part Il incorporateinformation from certain portions of the registr's definitive proxy statement to be filed with thec8rities anc
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PART I.

ITEM 1. Business

We are a leading provider of outsourcing and trammsétion services focused on providing a competiédge to our clients. Our
outsourcing services provide integrated front-,dted and back-office process outsourcing servioesfir primarily U.S.-based and U.Kase:
clients. Outsourcing services involve the transbens of select business operations of a clier) s claims processing, finance and
accounting and customer service, after which weiaidter and manage the operations for our clieramengoing basis. We also offer a
number of transformation service offerings thatude decision analytics, risk and financial managetand operations and process excelle
These transformation services help our clients awpttheir operating environments through cost rédocenhanced efficiency and
productivity initiatives, and improve the risk acantrol environments within our clients’ operatiomsether or not they are outsourced to us.
We serve primarily the needs of Global 1000 comgmim the insurance, utilities, banking and finahservices and transportation and logis
sectors.

Our services for each of the sectors include:

Imsurancs Banking and Financial Services Transpartaten and Logiatics
(PR, Like, Healih, G {Mortgoge, Cards, Betall
Carporabe)

= Agency Managsmen! » Imbalance Managament # Auooemint Adrminsoaton = Freght Bl Auli

= Accountng & Billng = Disputed Aeads and Withdrawals # Data Valication = Bill Goerections

» Claims Handling = Paymant Arergements and » Loan Servicing » Refereros Aldil

» ln-dapcs, Prammiim, Berafils Biling # Loan Underwiling Suppor = Bl Entry
Adminisiration = Mooound Managamant » Flecivnbles Managemsnt ® Ciargo Glaima

# Palicy Adminisiralisn & Tax Sericing = Fayman Processing

» Sarmhanss-Oxley Compliance

Cuslomer Scogustion and :
Azsiglancs

Aatenlion Analytcs

« Transaction Procossing

# Opnorunity Identification

& Fmance and Accounting » Protess Rs-snpinssring

Internal Audi Assisimnoe

L]

Marksling Campagn
Mlanagerem » Enterprea Fisk Managemend
Credll Rk Analylics NTprathandLion » Profect Mansgemant Offics
Andlylkes and Canpuless Aldsd iu:.,p-:!rl .
e dudit Techniques
Claims dnalylics 3% s Cwality Managemsnf

« Technology Rk Advisony
Operatkral Risk Achisory
Financial &nafysis and Reporting « Sirstegic Cost Managsmenl
s Congobdation and Clasing Programs

Suppan s Fe-anginaanng Imbaive

s [T Sovemance and Secunty Exaculicn

s Proosss Mapping and
Docamentaion

o Vsl Flacaimns & Callactions and Frausd Anahhes

» Oparalions dnabyhcs » Entorprisa Laan Sx Sgma

S
Dreploymend

» Amalybcs Siaf! Augmentabon

MR porting and fd-boc
Anatysis Suppon

& Accountng Process Cplimizafon

We combine in-depth knowledge of the industry sescem which we are focused with proven expertiseansferring business operations
to our offshore delivery centers and administeeind managing them. We have successfully transfenae than 520 processes covering a
broad array of products and services to our operattenters, including approximately 120 new preegshat were transferred to us for clients
in 2009.

Our largest clients in 2009 were Centrica plc (€ieaj and The Travelers Indemnity Company (Trawledther clients include over
twenty of the leading U.S. insurance companiesadihg global credit card issuer and a Fortunet&0portation services provider. Our
operations centers are located in India, the Riilgs and the Czech Republic and we are in theepsoaf establishing a new operations center
in Romania. Our geographical footprint enablesousvterage the large pool of highly qualified anldieated technical professionals who are
able to handle complex processes and servicesettpaire functional skills and industry
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expertise. While a majority of our professionaleyide services in the English language, our opanatin the Czech Republic have providet
with, and our operations center in Romania willypde us with, multi-lingual delivery capabilitied/e believe we can offer consistent high
quality services at substantially lower costs ttfese available from U.S.- or U.K.-based in-howsglities or U.S.- or U.K.-based outsourcing
providers. As of December 31, 2009, we had a headaaf approximately 10,700 individuals (includipgrsonnel managed under structured
client service agreements), a substantial portfomrmm are based in India. Our operations platfoamessupported by a state-of-the-art
infrastructure that can be expanded to meet edehit'sl needs. We market our services directly tgtoaur sales and marketing and strategic
account management teams, which operate out dfited States and the United Kingdom, and our essirdevelopment support team, wt
operates out of India. Our senior managers hawensite experience in the industry sectors on whietare focused and are well versed in the
business practices of leading multinational cortions.

We believe our reputation for operational excelieiscwidely recognized by our clients and is anantgnt competitive advantage. We
use Six Sigma, a data-driven methodology for elatiimg defects in any process, to identify procaséficiencies and improve productivity in
client and support processes. We deliver contiqedess enhancements by soliciting and implemetingess improvements from employ
and through our proprietary software tools. As & phour commitment to quality, we are certifiedthe 1ISO 9001:2000 standard for our
guality management system. We are also certifiadledSO 27001:2005 standard for our informatiocusgy management system. This
standard requires policies and processes to beykpto ensure adequate information security céniinathe organization. Additionally we are
also certified to the OHSAS 18001:2007 standardchwrelates to our occupational health and safetpagement processes. We have also
received an unqualified SAS 70 Type Il opinion fr&mst & Young LLP, our independent registered mutcounting firm, attesting to the
effectiveness of our general control environment.

Services
Outsourcing Services

Our outsourcing services are structured aroundsimgdocused business process outsourcing (BP@jcest, such as insurance, utilities,
banking and financial services and transportatimhlagistics, as well as cross-industry BPO senjisech as finance and accounting services,
collection services and customer services.

Insurance ServicesWithin the life insurance, property and casuattyurance, health insurance and retirement serbicgigaess lines, w
provide services in the areas of claims procesgramium and benefit administration, agency managgnaccount reconciliation, policy
research, policy servicing and customer service h&le acquired significant experience in transfigrand managing processes in these areas.

Utilities. We provide end-to-end back-office processing fmstomer operations, including metering-relatedisesvand billing, value
recovery operations, customer transfers and addresyes, sales support, account reconciliatiorcaliections. A large part of these services
involves complex processing of transactions thahoabe managed by customary tools or methodologies

Banking and Financial ServicesWe have significant expertise in servicing andcpssing various banking products, including
residential mortgage lending, consumer financeaijlrbanking, credit cards, transaction services@her banking services. Our activities
include customer service, transaction processindewwriting support, documentation management, fugigation, administering reverse
mortgage products and collateral monitoring.

Transportation and Logistics We have developed and acquired expertise in primgesansactions in the areas of end-to-end supply
chain management, warehousing, transloading, toategfpn management and international logisticsises. Our activities include freight bill
audit, bill corrections, reference audit, bill gntcargo claims and payment processing.

Finance and Accounting Service$Ve provide certain finance and accounting serviceding accounts payable, research,
reconciliation of accounts and lock-box accountWg intend to expand our services in this
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sector to include expense accounting, financiabacting, account consolidation, departmental actngnaccount balancing, accounting

statements, budgeting and management informatistersys reporting.

Collections and Credit Operation§Ve use our proprietary skip-tracing tool to acdesation information instantly through multiple

websites in order to trace people who have movetbsconded without notice to avoid paying debts.Haiee experience with a wide range of

collection processes, including credit card redaies, large mortgage loan payments and busineBagimess insurance premium collection:
well as extensive dialer management experiencé, dobur proprietary systems and client systems.

Customer ServicedVe provide a large array of customer managemenices; including e-mail management, customer seraitd web-

and voice-based customer interaction functions.

Across the BPO services described above, we haxeessfully transferred and managed more than 5&epses, including the

following:

Insurance Processe

Life, Health and Annuity
» Administration of Insurance Agents
Licensing and contracting renewals, terminationsregspondence,
commissions and brokerage amounts, debt management,
administrating unclaimed monies by insurance ac

* New Business Processing
Prescreening and acquiring new customers, undéngiriinderwriting
support, delivery requirements follow-up, policgusince, fund
application, refunds, nesufficient funds, customer inquiris

» Administration of Current Policies
Title and address changes, beneficiary and owrengds, certificate
reissuance, endorsement, policy transfers, quoigseanstatements,
loans, exchanges, policy term conversions, withdtsydividends,
surrenders, maturities, direct debit instructianustomer service,
billing, policy value, interest rates

*  Premium Administration
Application of premium, loan and interest adjustimeaily premium
balancing, suspended policy research, payment mioaieges,
customer correspondence and ser

» Claims Processing
Examination, data gathering, adjudication, settieimtax compliance

and compliance with state laws, customer correspiocg and service,

disability and dental clairr

» Fixed Annuities
Change of address, beneficiary changes, withdrawatsender
requests, exchanges, rollovers, transfers, suspengax information,
document verification, billing, policy value, pojicoverage, interest
rates

Property and Casualty Insurance
* New Business Processing
Sales and conversion, quote acceptance, estalglisbin policies,
policy upgrades, sales of multiple products, indgxi

* Administration of Current Policies
Customer service, lapses and renewals, mid-terosadgnts,
account reconciliations

» Claims Processing
First notification of loss, initial reporting ofaims and account
initiation, data capture, customer service, tecinitaims,
documentation, claims based on third party faatgltloss,
scheduling on-site engineers’ inspection visitajrok coverage,
claims adjudication, utility review, auto liabiligdjudication,
subrogatior

* Premium Administration
Payment mode changes, collection, calculation awigion of
premium

» Broker Collections
Broker query resolution, payment collection, delainagement,
payment reconciliation

» Supplier Payments
Invoice validation, claim validation and settlemeguayment
processing, supplier inquiries
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Life, Health and Annuity

Property and Casualty Insurance

» Policy Research and Manual Calculation * Appointment Scheduling

Research of policy history, manual calculation ofigy values and
correction of records, calculation of tax gain aedails for IRS filing

* Motor Club Service

Scheduling appointments between auditors and idsure

Initial reporting of vehicle emergency and emergerad side

services

Medical Insurance

Validation of permanent partial disability claintsllection of medice
records, processing of Medicare sstde packages and adjudicatio
claims

Utilities, Banking and Financial Services, Transpotation and Logistics and Other Processe

Utilities
Account maintenanc

Credit operations

Customer transfers

Customer address changes

Debt collections

Device management

Disputed readings

Energy payment systems

Metering and billing

Sales support and acquisitions

Withdrawals

Imbalance

Settlement operatior
Consumer Finance

Balance disputes

Billing

Consumer finance processing includ
verification, tracking and recording

Collections

Retail Banking and Credit Cards

Collections
Customer service
E-mail response
Query resolution

Portfolio reconciliation and
reporting

Finance and Accounting
Accounts payable management

Booked vs. billed reconciliation
Cash reconciliation
Centralized payments

Mortgage Lending
Broker license verificatiol

Broker due diligence
Document management
Loan underwriting support
Loan verification

Property tax servicing
New loan set-up
Post-close processes
Rate modification
Mortgage customer service
Seller/broker queries
Trailing documentation
Wire approvals

Collections and Credit
Automated dialing systems

Collections from individuals
Collections from businesses
Pre and post chargéf collection
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Consumer Finance
» Credit approvals

* Inbound customer service

» Order status
» Loan payoff
» Telemarketing

Transportation and Logistics

* Bill correction
 Bill entry

» Cargo claims

» Freight bill audit

» Payment processing
» Reference aud

Finance and Accounting
Check reconciliation

Collections reconciliation
Credit control
Cash management

Financial closing and month-end
reporting

Manual intervention

Meta-tagging and account
taxonomy

Procurement
Travel and expense reporting
Validation and paymer

Customer Service Processe

Collections and Credit
e Tracking debtors

» Voice, email and blended process
» Customer service, including changes in delivdate and

* Fulfilling orders, including -mail queries and onlin

orders

desktop configuration, returns, billing issues,-pates
information, concessions and discount voucherofgal

customers, catalogue reque

Transformation Services

In addition to our outsourcing services, we offeumnber of service offerings that we refer to atileely as transformation services.
These offerings include decision analytics seryidsek and financial management services and ojpeiaind process excellence services.

These transformation services focus on helpingcbents by improving their operating environmeritsotigh cost reduction, enhanced
efficiency and productivity initiatives, and impiiag the risk and control environment within oureclis’ operations whether or not they are
outsourced to us. Our transformation services leaabled us to expand our client base by providomgpiementary service offerings to our

clients and also to



Table of Contents

migrate clients into our longer-term BPO servid#® also provide annuity-based transformation sesyievhich are engagements that are
contracted for one to three year terms. We actigedgs-sell and, where appropriate, integrate ramstormation services with our BPO
services as part of an integrated solution foratients. Our transformation services team is cosgatiof approximately 500 professionals who
provide services at our clients’ locations or froar offshore delivery centers.

Decision Analytics

We offer decision analytics services, includingadfdtering, organization and synthesis, managernréatmation system reporting, trend
and variance analysis, statistical and econometoideling and economic and financial markets rese&ar decision analytics services access
and analyze large volumes of data from multiplersesiin order to understand historical performasrdaehavior or to predict a particular
outcome.

Our decision analytics services include analytimaisulting, management consulting and analytioafices. Analytical consulting and
management consulting services include advisinghemts on customer acquisition and retentiondiemésk, customer data integration and
fraud detection, marketing strategy, product amdise strategy, volume forecasting, global resounggmization and scheduling. Analytical
services include lead generation and marketing egnpnanagement, collections services, primaryfsdaqy research, data management and
analysis. Our offerings emphasize our expertishiwivur industry focus areas including the finahsgvices and insurance industries,
complemented by quantitative modeling and busimgsligence techniques as well as knowledge awaht technology platforms.

We deliver these services through a team of ingisgtecialists and graduates with mathematicalistitetl, engineering, economics,
business or accounting backgrounds. Most of ouisitecanalytics team members have received postugte degrees in business or other
guantitative or financial disciplines.

Risk and Financial Managemen

We offer governance, risk and compliance servisewell as accounting and financial reporting sexsidlany of our professionals who
provide these services are certified accountamtstrial auditors and process and technology exp@usgovernance, risk and compliance
services include both compliance support and riakagement and advisory services. Compliance supgorices include implementation and
controls testing services that assist our clierits their efforts to comply with laws and regulat& such as the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountabifist, the EU’s Data Protection Directive, and inglystandards such as the Payment Card
Industry Data Security Standard. Risk managemeshiaanisory services include supporting our clieirtgrnal audit departments as well as
evaluating our clients’ enterprise resource plagrnd operational risk management control enviroim&'e have also recently started to
provide services designed to manage the cost opliante and improve the efficiency and effectivenelour clients’ compliance and other
risk management processes.

Our accounting and financial reporting servicedude transaction assurance, general accountirapdial reporting and finance and
accounting process optimization services. Our #etisn assurance services include account recatioili, transaction data analysis and due
diligence services for corporate transactions.daitéon to providing general accounting services,also provide financial statement analysis
and preparation assistance for regulatory repodgiings. As part of our finance and accountimggess optimization services, we evaluate
effectiveness of our clients’ finance and accounprocesses through various diagnostic methods.

Operations and Process Excellence Management

We assist clients in understanding, controlling Bmplroving their business processes in a numbdifferent industries with a view to
improving the effectiveness and decreasing theafostich processes. Our services identify busipessesses that can be improved by
documenting processes, creating standard operating
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procedures, defining metrics and evaluation cetas well as creating customized dashboards aodtirggp using our proprietary methodology.
By diagnosing existing processes, we are abledistasur clients in improving their processes tigtomodifying the processes by eliminating
or automating certain activities. We are also ablassist our clients by transforming their bussngocess using Six Sigma and Lean Six
Sigma methodologies. Our professionals can advisand subsequently manage and validate the eféewtss of enterprisside cost reductio
or other projects.

Geographic and Segment Information

Please see the disclosures in notes 4 and 15 twoasplidated financial statements for segmentgaadiraphic information regarding our
business.

Business Strategy

Our goal is to continue to be a leading provideouwtsourcing and transformation services in theistiy sectors on which we are focus
Specific elements of our growth strategy include:

Maintaining Our Focus on Largescale, Long-term Relationships

We intend to continue to maintain our focus onéasgale, long-term client relationships. We belithere are significant opportunities
for additional growth with our existing clients,cawe seek to expand these relationships by inergake depth and breadth of the services we
provide. This strategy should allow us to use aedépth client-specific knowledge to provide maryfintegrated outsourcing and
transformation services and develop closer relatigps with our clients. Working with a small numloétarge-scale, long-term relationships
also allows us to focus on quality and to devotetiime and resources necessary to provide savimgpracess improvements and fully satisfy
the needs of our clients.

Offering a Broad Range of Outsourcing and Transfoation Services

In servicing our clients, we seek to differentiateselves by emphasizing the broad range of outgauand transformation services that
we provide, including BPO, decision analytics, rsid financial management and operations and psapellence. We believe that clients
increasingly viewing their service providers asgdgarm partners that provide a full range of serdfferings. Our evolving ability to provide
services in complementary areas (such as decisiaigtecs and risk and financial management seryiséls maximize opportunities for close
integrating our range of services with our cliefttgsiness needs and assisting our clients in amgig their outsourced processes to establish
their industry leadership. We also intend to cargito develop additional advisory and related fiangation services in order to expand our
client base further, migrate clients into our lontgggm BPO service offerings and provide our clantth integrated outsourcing and
transformation services.

Expanding Our Client Bas¢

We intend to develop long-term relationships thaspnt recurring revenue opportunities with newrts by leveraging our industry
experience and expanding our marketing activities inanner designed to strengthen, encourage apbtbeate longerm relationship building
We continue to target Global 1000 companies the¢ ke most complex and diverse processes anddiegly stand to benefit significantly
from the use of BPO. In developing these relatigqusstour primary focus will be to continue to prd@icomplex and integrated BPO service
clients in the United States and United Kingdomiclthiogether represent a substantial majority efttdtal BPO market. We believe that our
geographically distributed network of operationatees will enable us to expand our client baserande of services. In developing new client
relationships, we continue to be highly selectind aeek industry-leading clients who are commitéeldng-term and strategic relationships
with us.
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Extending Our Industry Expertise

We have developed expertise in transferring andaeg more than 520 BPO processes to our opemmtienters, including more than
325 processes in the insurance industry. This ¢éisperontinues to distinguish us from other offghproviders of BPO services and has
established our reputation as a leading provid&R®D services. We intend to continue to strengthermprocessing capabilities by focusing on
the more complex and value-enhancing servicesattteatommon to these sectors. We have recentlydtparforming services for the
transportation sector, which yield many procesBasfit our expertise. We intend to selectivelyritify industries in which we can develop
domain expertise and provide a range of outsouraimhtransformation services.

Continuing to Focus on Complex Processes

We intend to continue to leverage our industry etipeto provide increasingly more complex serviimesour clients. As a result of our
established and developing industry expertise aroaviedge of our clients’ businesses and processesmployees are able to handle
processes that are noodtine and that cannot be readily automated osfeared to other parties. Examples of our newetstamrcing process
include auditing of insurance premiums, providingort for clients who are underwriting businesnance, analyzing invoices based on loss
experience history, reviewing gas metering arrareges) verifying and settling cargo loss claims ealdulating and recovering overpayments.
Recent transformation services include the devetrand usage of tools to reconcile financial rds@nd minimize sources of revenue
leakage and the creation of methodologies to g&eh@sed analysis to maximize the effectivenessarketing opportunities and campaigns.

Continuing to Invest in Operational Infrastructure

We intend to continue to invest in infrastructineluding human resources, process optimizationdatigery platforms, to meet our
growing client requirements. We intend to also turg to invest in developing and refining method@ds, analytical models, technology and
tools. We intend to further refine and suppleméetihnovative methods we use to recruit, train r@tain our skilled employees. We intend to
continue to focus on recruiting highly qualified gloyees and to develop our employees’ leadershils srough specialized programs,
rigorous promotion standards, industry-specifimireg and competitive compensation packages tl@dtidie incentive-based compensation. We
also intend to continue our focus on process eseed by building on our extensive use of Six Sigme similar methodologies to identify and
eliminate inefficiencies, focusing on initiatives golicit and implement process improvements frompleyees at all levels and continuing to
develop proprietary tools to identify and deliventinued process enhancements. We also intendégtiim acquiring technology solutions t
will enable greater processing capability or eéfiwy for our clients. We believe that doing so wilhble us to increase the volume of business
from our clients and provide value-added servigés.intend to continue to invest in our operatidnéfastructure and operations centers in
response to our growing client requirements analgiéity enhancements. During 2009, our operaticarger in Pune, India became operational
and we commenced operations in the Czech RepWibcare also in the process of establishing newatioexs centers in Cluj, Romania and
Noida and Jaipur, Indi

Pursuing Strategic Relationships and Acquisitio

We intend to continue to selectively consider sgat relationships with industry leaders that ada tong-term client relationships,
enhance the depth and breadth of our servicesnoplemnent our business strategy. We also intendlex8vely consider acquisitions or
investments that will expand the scope of our exgsservices, add new clients or allow us to entav geographic markets. During 2009, we
completed the acquisition of the back office oderat of Schneider Logistics Europe S.R.O (Schne&lBrO) in the Czech Republic and
announced the entry into an asset purchase agréémayuire the American Express Global TravelBes Center located in Gurgaon, India
in 2009, which acquisition was completed on MarcR@10.

Other Information
ExIService Holdings, Inc. was incorporated in Dedagvon October 29, 2002.
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The Company files annual, quarterly and currenbrsp proxy statements and other information whth 8EC under the Exchange Act.
You may read and copy this information at the RuBkference Room of the SEC, Room 1580, 100 FtSiMee., Washington, D.C. 20549.
You may obtain information about the Public RefeeeRoom by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. hiitewh, the SEC maintains a website
(http://www.sec.gov) that contains reports, prorg information statements, and other informatiayarding issuers that file electronically
through the EDGAR System.

Certain U.S. dollar amounts in this Annual Repartr@rm 10-K have been converted from Indian ruggesrate of 46.53 Indian rupees
to $1.00 and from U.K. pound sterling at a raté&Jdf. pound sterling 1.00 to $1.61, the exchangesat effect as on December 31, 2009,
unless otherwise specified.

The Company also maintains a website at http://vexiservice.com. The Company makes available, ffeharge, on its website its
annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports om#10-Q, proxy statements, current reports on Fd#hand amendments to those reports
filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) ord)5(f the Exchange Act, as soon as reasonablyipadte after such reports are electronically
filed with, or furnished to, the SEC.

The BPO Industry

BPO service providers work with clients to devetoq deliver business operational improvements thithgoal of achieving higher
performance at lower costs. Outsourcing can er@iglanizations to enhance profitability and increeffieiency and reliability, permitting the
to concentrate on their core areas of competerie®. B a long-term strategic commitment for compsitti@t, once implemented, is generally
not subject to cyclical spending or informationheclogy budget reductions. Organizations outsotlre& key business processes to third
parties to reduce costs, improve process qualitydie increased transaction volumes and ensuradeduy. Increased global demand, cost
improvements in international communications areldhtomation of many business services have creaaghificant opportunity for offshore
business process service providers, and many cdaegpare moving select office processes to providéttsthe capacity to perform these
functions from overseas locations.

Companies have historically also used outsourandyitve revenue growth by expanding service offgsithat otherwise would be too
costly to administer or through enhanced receivabliections that would not be cost-efficient tague using internal staff. We believe the
demand for BPO services will be primarily led byustries that are transactidniven and that require significant customer int&oams, such €
insurance, utilities, banking and financial sergiemd transportation. The high cost of servicitarge number of small customer accounts
makes outsourcing a compelling strategic alterediv these industries.

Trend towards Offshore Delivery of BPO Services

Global demand for high quality, lower-cost BPO &g from external providers, combined with operai and cost improvements in
international telecommunications and the automatfomany business services, have created a signtf@gpportunity for BPO service
providers that are able to take advantage of ahofe talent pool. Many companies are moving sedeftbnt-, middle- and back-office
processes to providers with the capacity to perfimese functions from overseas locations.

Over the past decade, India and the Philippines kaverged as preferred locations for organizatiersing to outsource services
ranging from insurance claims processing, paynaltpssing, medical transcription, customer relatidgm management to back-office
operations such as accounting and data procesgiagng and organization. India currently accaaifdr the largest share of the offshore BPO
services market.
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Sales and Marketing and Strategic Account Managemeén

We market our services to new clients directly tigio our sales and marketing team and to our egistimtegic clients through our
strategic account management team. Our sales arkebting team and our strategic account managersant bperate out of the United States
and United Kingdom and work closely with our busiméevelopment team, which operates out of Noiutial

Our sales and marketing and business developmemistare responsible for new client acquisitionglipuelations and participation in
industry forums and conferences in the United Stdtee United Kingdom and India. Our sales and etarg and business development teams
identify prospective clients based on selectiveedd that apply our industry expertise to the peasive client’'s business lines, goals and
operating constraints, and qualify the long-tertatienship potential with the client. Our clientatonships typically evolve from a single,
discrete process into a series of additional corpheegrated processes across multiple business.li

Our strategic account management team is resperfsibserving as the primary relationship liaisondertain client relationships
identified as strategic accounts and working whitsse clients to deploy our full suite of outsougcamd transformation service offerings to ¢
these clients improve their operations. Strateggmant management professionals are also resperisibivorking closely with the operations
delivery team to ensure high levels of client $atison and are also responsible for business esiparand revenue growth from their strategic
accounts.

Our sales and marketing and strategic account neaneigt professionals operate collaboratively withlmusiness development
professionals based in India, the United Stated tla® United Kingdom. These professionals focuglentifying, qualifying and initiating
discussions with our current and prospective diewhile our business development team preparpsmess to requests for proposals, hosts
client visits to our facilities and coordinates dligence on processes to be outsourced to us.

As of December 31, 2009, we had 26 sales and nilagkand strategic account management professiom#ie United States and the
United Kingdom. Each member of these teams hadfisigmt experience in offshore outsourcing and égzertise in identifying outsourcing
opportunities and process migration. We intencetectively expand our sales and marketing andegfiataccount management teams. Our
sales and marketing, strategic account managemeriwsiness development teams work actively withsewvice delivery team as the sales
process moves closer to the client’s decision m®te either select or expand their relationshij &iservice provider. The strategic account
manager or sales executive works with the servitieety team to define the scope, services, assomgpand execution strategies for each
proposed project and to develop project estimatdsaicing and sales proposals. Senior manageraei@ws and approves each proposal. The
selling cycle varies depending on the type of servequired and generally ranges from six montleggbteen months.

Members of our sales and marketing, strategic atamanagement and business development teams rastaialy involved in a project
through the execution phase. Supporting each gtcadecount manager is a corporate sponsor, execstigering committee, operations
leadership team and, in some cases, a dedicateanhi@sources and infrastructure team.

Clients

We currently have approximately 80 clients. Ougéest clients in 2009 were Centrica and Travelerschvtogether accounted for
approximately 33.7% of our total revenues in 2@#her clients include over twenty of the leadinglUnsurance carriers, a leading global
credit card issuer and a Fortune 500 transportagowvices provider. While we are developing relatips with new clients and expect to
continue to diversify our client base, we belielvattthe loss of either of our two largest clierdald have a material adverse effect on our
financial performance. See “ltem 1A. Risk FactorsiskR Related to Our Business—We have a limited rermbclients and provide services
to few industries. In 2009, approximately 33.7%oof total revenues came from two clients.”
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Our long-term relationships with our clients typigaevolve from providing a single, discrete prog@sto providing a series of complex,
integrated processes across multiple business kogsoutsourcing services, we enter into long-tagreements with our clients with initial
terms of between typically three and eight yeagreAments for transformation services generallyetsorter initial terms. Each agreement is
individually negotiated with the client.

We provide services to Centrica under an agreethahexpires in April 2012. Centrica will have thgtion to extend the contract for t\
annual extension periods. This contract can beitated by Centrica without cause upon three mopitties notice and payment of a breakup
fee. See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to Business—Our client contracts contain certaimteation provisions that could have an
adverse effect on our business, results of operstnd financial condition.”

We provide services to Travelers under a servigeseanent and work assignments and orders genehaexlinder. Although the servic
agreement does not have a fixed term, the worlgassnts and work orders expire in December 2013@melv every year thereafter unless
either party elects not to renew within a specifiediod before the next renewal date. Travelers t@ayinate the services agreement, or any
work assignment or work order, without cause up@i&ys prior notice.

In addition, our agreements generally limit oubiidy to our clients to a maximum amount, subjectnany cases to certain exceptions
such as indemnification for third-party claims drdaches of confidentiality. In order to meet thecific needs of our clients, we enter into
contracts with varying contractual provisions.

Competition

Competition in the BPO services industry is inteasd growing. See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Reldo Our Business—We face
significant competition from U.S.-based and non-th&sed outsourcing and information technology camgs and from our clients, who may
perform outsourcing services themselves, eithdroinse, in the United States or through offshoreigsar other arrangements.” Many
companies, including certain of our clients, chomsperform some or all of their customer serviamlections and back-office processes
internally. Their employees provide these servaepart of their regular business operations. Smmganies have moved portions of their in-
house customer management functions offshore,dirgjuto offshore affiliates. We believe our key adtage over in-house business processes
is that we give companies the opportunity to fooasheir core products and services while we fanuservice delivery and operational
excellence. We believe that clients who operatghaiti business model—partnering with external BROvjaers while handling other BPO
functions in-house—have the opportunity to benclktiae performance of their internal BPO operatiagainst ours.

We compete primarily against:

. BPO service companies based in offshore locatjpensicularly India, such as Genpact Limited (Gertpand WNS (Holdings)
Limited (WNS);

. the BPO divisions of large information technology|T, service companies and global BPO servicespamies located in the
United States, such as Accenture, Cognizant Teolggdbolutions and International Business Machi

. the BPO divisions of IT service companies locatethiia such as Infosys BPO (owned by Infosys Tetdgies Limited), Tat:
Consultancy Services Limited and Wipro BPO (owngd\ipro Technologies Limited); ar

. leading accounting and management consulting fi

We compete against these entities by establishingetves as a service provider with deep industpggise, superior operational
capabilities and process expertise, and uniqusfwamation service capabilities, which enablesougspond rapidly to market trends and the
evolving needs of our clients in this sector. SeeBusiness Strategy—Offering a Broad Range of Outsng and Transformation

Services”,“—Extending Our Industry Expertise” and-Continuing to Focus on Complex Processes.”
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We expect that competition may increase. A sigaiftgart of our competitive advantage has histtlyiteeen a wage cost advantage
relative to companies in the United States and jgriend the ability to attract and retain highly exxgnced and skilled employees. We believe,
however, that as a result of rising wage costsdial and other locations of our operations ceraadsthe infrastructure improvements that are
taking place in other emerging markets around tbedyour ability to compete effectively will incsingly depend on our ability to provide
high quality, on-time, complex services that reguxpertise in certain technical areas and to ekgaographically.

Intellectual Property

We generally use our clients’ software systemsthind-party software platforms to provide our sees. We customarily enter into
licensing and nondisclosure agreements with oentdiwith respect to the use of their softwareesystand platforms. Our contracts usually
provide that all intellectual property created fige of our clients will automatically be assigneatir clients.

Our principal intellectual property consists of prietary software and the know-how of our managdmaie have received approvals for
several trademark applications, including applaradifor our logo and mark, with the U.S. Patent @ratlemark Office and the U.K.
Trademark Office. In addition, we have filed tradeknapplications for the EXL and INDUCTIS markdiia. We have four unregistered
trademarks that are publicly used: MOST, EXL Cdltats System (ECS), ProMPT and MICROANALYTIX. MOS$Sa proprietary
opportunity identification and migration methodojoigr processes that we have used in connectidmavfubstantial majority of our process
migrations. Our proprietary software includes ooitections software called ECS, an automated wetblen reconciliation software called E-
Track, a software to generate customer lists cAHEGROANALYTIX and our web based process managenagict performance tracking
service called ProMPT. ProMPT uses advanced analgtid assists our managers in process managentepedormance evaluation,
including tracking individual performance of agerntam leaders and other employees. We considdsusimess processes and implementation
methodologies to be confidential, proprietary infiation and to include trade secrets that are impbtb our business. Clients and business
partners sign a nondisclosure agreement requion§dential treatment of our information. Our emysdes are also required to sign
confidentiality agreements as a condition to teeiployment.

Technology

We have a welbeveloped international telecommunications capdoisupport our business operations. We use amattenal wide are
network from India, the Philippines and the Czedp&blic to connect to our points of presence indhéed States and the United Kingdom.
Our networking and telecommunications hubs areatatliin Sunnyvale, California, and New York, Newk,@roviding technology interface
locations on the east and west coasts of the USitatks. Our business continuity management ptandes plans to eliminate certain risks
inherent in critical applications by building redlamcies and resilience into the connectivity afettammunications infrastructure, network,
systems, power availability, transportation, phgkgecurity, and trained manpower availabilitywesl as utilizing distributed computing.

To increase stable data and telecommunicationitgpae lease bandwidth from a number of diffenerdviders globally, including
AT&T, VSNL, Cable & Wireless and British Telecomuently, we have a bandwidth of over 140 megapéissecond, or Mbps, in the Unit
States and over 90 Mbps in the United Kingdom, Wiie believe is adequate for our business. We magkemented multiprotocol label
switching connectivity across all processing centard technology hubs, which should allow seanttessition from one center to the other in
case of an outage.

Our infrastructure is built on industry standardd ave work closely with several leading originaligmment manufacturers and principal
technology partners. The robustness of our telecamizations network has allowed us to achieve anagesnetwork availability of over 99.%
for day-to-day operations.
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We customize our technology solutions in line watlr clients’ business and outsourcing requiremédis.technology teams are
comprised of expert professionals from technologyget management, infrastructure management,rimdtion security and technology
operational service delivery, thereby permittingaiadapt our infrastructure services to our cightough various phases of our client
engagements. We seek to understand our clientsidassand outsourcing requirements and their psgoi@sforms, develop and implement
customized services to our clients and deliveabddi services that facilitate the offshore condunt management of their business processes.

Our methodology on business continuity managemeahirsformation security involves implementationasf organization-wide
framework, including our business operations, huneaources, technology, facilities and marketind eammunications divisions. The
framework involves strategic planning, rigorous mgpienal implementation, scheduled testing and kitrans, reviews and strategy
formulation.

We have the following systems in place to proteetgrivacy of our clients and their customers anertsure compliance with the laws
and regulations governing our activities:

. our information security policies comply with Intational Standards, including ISO 27001, for optimanagement of variot
aspects of information security, including persdnpkysical, systems and operations center segl

. our information security framework addresses coamglé requirements and protection of our clientd’ #ueir customers’
information;

. specific provisions for complying with the FDIC 8aflarbor Provisions, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Acg thealth Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act, the EU PrivaBjrective and other clie-specific needs

. information systems teams formed for each clienttie development, implementation and coordinatibpolicies and procedurt
specific to that clier's processes; ar

. periodic internal and external audits and vulnditgtassessments of both our information securignagement system a
implemented controls

Process Compliance and Management

We have an independent quality compliance teamaioitor, analyze, provide feedback on and reportg@ss performance and
compliance. In addition, we have a customer expeddeam to assess and improve end customer exgefigr all processes. Currently, we
have over 280 quality compliance analysts and ocost@xperience analysts.

We report process performance on ProMPT a web-teey@ite accessible by both our clients and usitichides process control
capabilities such as digital dashboards for evalggirocess management and performance at anyvéthéh an organization, including
tracking the individual performance of agents, téaaders and other employees. ProMPT includes agdaanalytics capacity to provide Six
Sigma-based process analysis, including trend aisalglistribution analysis and cause-and-effeclyaigand tracking.

Employees

As of December 31, 2009, we had a headcount obappately 10,700 individuals (including personnedmaged under structured client
service agreements), the substantial portion ofrwhoe based in India. We have approximately 125@&yeps in the United States and United
Kingdom, approximately 800 employees in the Phitips and an aggregate of approximately 250 empoiyethe Czech Republic and
Romania. Our employees are not unionized. We haverrexperienced any work stoppages and belietetin@mployee relations are good.
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Hiring and Recruiting

Our employees are critical to the success of oaimnass. Accordingly, we focus heavily on recruititrgining and retaining our
professionals.

We have developed effective strategies that erabkfficient recruitment process. We have approteigs80 employees dedicated to
recruitment. Some of the strategies we have addpteatrease efficiency in our hiring practiceslinte online voice assessment and a
centralized hiring center. Our hiring policies fean identifying high quality employees who demoetst a high propensity for learning,
contribution to client services and growth. Cantidanust undergo numerous tests and interviewséfe extend offers for employment. We
also conduct extensive background checks on catedidiacluding criminal background checks as remliby clients or on a sample basis. In
addition, we perform random drug testing on theld@nce on a regular basis. In 2009, we receivedentioan 30,000 applications for
employment and hired approximately 4,000 new psifemls. We also have an employee referral proghatprovides us with a cost effective
way of accessing qualified potential employees.

We offer our professionals competitive compensgpiackages that include significant incenthessed compensation and offer a varie!
benefits, including free transport to and from hameertain circumstances, subsidized meals amddceess to recreational facilities that are
located within our operations centers. Our turnaaée for billable employees—employees who exebutness processes for our clients
following the completion of our six-month probatérg period—has come down significantly from approately 34.0% for the year ended
December 31, 2008 to approximately 22.6% for trer ymded December 31, 2009. However, as competitioar industry increases, our
turnover rate could increase. See “ltem 1A. Ris&téid—Risks Related to Our Business—We may fadittact and retain enough sufficiently
trained employees to support our operations, agetition for highly skilled personnel is intensedame experience significant employee
turnover rates.”

Training and Development

We dedicate significant resources to the trainimg) @evelopment of our professionals. At Decembe2809, we had over 160 full-time
certified trainers. Our trainers work with professls in our recruitment, operations and qualitytaa teams to create an end-to-end process
for value addition, skill evaluation, skill enhamgent and certification. We also use training tovte continuity by linking skill assessment at
the point of recruitment to subsequent assessmmehom@-the-job training.

We customize our training design to country, cli@gmustry and service, closely collaborating vifib client throughout the training
process. Approximately 900 employees receiveditrgiaon the insurance industry and processes atsamance academy established by us in
2009. Training for new employees includes cultumg¢e and accent training. We also have ongoingitrg that includes refresher training
programs and personality development programsddiitian, we develop our employees’ leadership skirough leadership development
programs, other talent identification and perforomeamanagement mechanisms and significant monetarmma@nmonetary incentives. We ha
also developed career development programs fomadolle and junior management employees that helmttiefine and identify their career
paths within the company. In 2009, over 400 marsgad assistant vice presidents participated in @0 hours of training.

Regulation

Because of the diversity and highly complex natifreur service offerings, our operations are suliige variety of rules and regulations
and several U.S. and foreign federal and statecg®enegulate aspects of our business. In additiongclients may contractually require that
comply with certain rules and regulations, evethdse rules and regulations do not actually applyst Failure to comply with any applicable
laws and regulations could result in restrictionsoar ability to provide our products and serviasell as the imposition of civil fines and
criminal penalties, which could have a materialeaade effect on our operations.
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We are one of the few service providers that cawige third-party administrator insurance servitesm India in 45 states of the United
States and from the Philippines in 14 states ofthiked States, having been licensed or exempted,for not subject to, licensing in each of
those states, which may help make us an attras#iméce provider to future clients.

Our debt collection services may be subject tdrhie Debt Collection Practices Act, which reguladebt collection practices. In additi
many states require a debt collector to applyldergranted and maintain a license to engage inaddlection activities within a state. We are
currently licensed (or exempt from licensing reguoients) to provide debt collection services froutidrin all but two states in the United
States and from the Philippines in 35 states ofdhi¢éed States that have non-exempt requirement$iave separate conditional exemptions
with respect to our ongoing collection obligations.

Our operations are also subject to compliance aithriety of other laws, federal and regulatiorat tpply to certain portions of our
business such as the Fair Credit Reporting ActGteanm-Leach-Bliley Act, the Health Insurance Ploiltey and Accountability Act of 1996,
the Truth in Lending Act, the Fair Credit Billingch the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and Ur&deral Deposit Insurance Company, or
FDIC, rules and regulations. Our client contrapscify what particular regulatory requirements wastrmeet in connection with the services
we provide. We train our employees regarding thdiegble laws and regulations.

Regulation of our business by the Indian governnaffiects our business in several ways. We berefilh fcertain tax incentives
promulgated by the Indian government, includingvatioliday from Indian corporate income taxes Far dperation of most of our Indian
operations centers. The tax benefit for some obfferations centers will expire in March 2010. S&am 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to
the International Nature of our Business—Our finahcondition could be negatively affected if fagrigovernments reduce or withdraw tax
benefits and other incentives currently provideddmpanies within our industry, or if the samemoeavailable for other reasons.” Our
subsidiaries in India are also subject to certaimency transfer restrictions. See “ltem 7. Managets Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Foreign Exclkdmad “—Income Taxes.”
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ITEM 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Related To Our Business

We have a limited number of clients and providedees to few industries. In 2009, approximately 3% of our total revenues came from
two clients.

We have derived and believe that we will contirudérive a substantial portion of our total revenfrem a limited number of large
clients. In 2009, our two largest clients, Centiacal Travelers, accounted for approximately 33.7%uo total revenues. We generated 20.5%
of our total revenues in 2009 from Centrica an@%3of our total revenues in 2009 from Travelers. pi@vide services to Centrica under an
agreement that expires in April 2012. Centricathasoption to extend the contract for two annu&étesion periods. This contract can be
terminated by Centrica without cause upon threethsoprior notice and payment of a breakup fee. Végige services to Travelers under a
services agreement and work assignments and aggdeesated thereunder. Although the services agmtesioes not have a fixed term, the
work assignments and work orders expire in Decer@d&8 and renew every year thereafter unless qitrgy elects not to renew within a
specified period before the next renewal date. dlexrg may terminate the services agreement, owanly assignment or work order, without
cause upon 60 days prior notice. We expect thigjrafisant portion of our total revenues will comtie to be contributed by a limited number of
large clients in the near future. The loss or faiahdifficulties of either of our large clients winl have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, financial conditiad cash flows.

The impact of the ongoing global economic downtucould negatively affect our business in multiple y&a

The ongoing global economic downturn has advelisghacted companies in the industries to which wevigle services including the
banking, financial services and insurance industesubstantial portion of our clients are concated in the insurance and utilities industry.
In 2009, 78.8% of our total revenues were derivethfclients in those industries, including 54.6%@of total revenues that were derived from
clients in the insurance industry. Our businesgdirdepends on continued demand for our servioes €lients and potential clients in these
industries. Adverse developments in these indsstoelld further unfavorably affect our businesh@ddevelopments, such as consolidations,
restructurings or reorganizations, particularlydlving our clients, could also cause the demanaéorservices in these industries to decline.

We currently derive, and are likely to continuadtive, a significant portion of our revenues frolients located in the United States.
Since the end of 2008, the United States econorsyéan in a recession and undergoing a periodbstaotial economic uncertainty, resulting
in credit market dislocations, declining businesd eonsumer confidence and increased unemployradntinuing deterioration in economic
activity in the United States could adversely affdemand for our services, thus reducing our regenu

In addition, the decrease in the general levetohemic activity, such as decreases in businessa@amslimer spending, could result in a
decrease in demand for our services, particularit@nsformation services, thus reducing our reeeiThe cost and availability of credit has
been and may continue to be adversely affectedligyid credit markets and wider credit spreadsnf@aied turbulence in global markets and
economies may adversely affect our liquidity amaficial condition, and the liquidity and finanataindition of our clients. If these market
conditions continue, they may limit our ability aocess financing or increase our cost of finantingeet liquidity needs, and affect the ability
of our customers to use credit to purchase ouice\or to make timely payments to us, resultingdaerse effects on our financial condition
and results of operations. If macroeconomic coadgiworsen, we may not be able to predict the itnfach worsening conditions will have
our targeted industries in general, and our restiltgerations specifically.

Our industry may not develop in ways that we curtlgranticipate due to negative public reaction ing United States and elsewhere to
offshore outsourcing, recently proposed legislationotherwise.

We have based our strategy of future growth orageessumptions regarding our industry and futeneetbpments in the market for
outsourcing services. For example, we believettiere will continue to be
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changes in product and service requirements, aresiments in the products offered by our clientsaintinue to increase. However, the tr

to outsource business processes may not contirtdlecad reverse. Offshore outsourcing is a politycsensitive topic in the United States and
elsewhere, and many organizations and public fghewe publicly expressed concern about a perceisgociation between offshore
outsourcing providers and the loss of jobs in tinétédl States and elsewhere. In addition, therédobasa limited publicity about the negative
experience of certain companies that use offshotgoarcing, particularly in India. Current or presfive clients may elect to perform such
services themselves or may be discouraged fromsfeaing these services to offshore providers wicany negative perception that may be
associated with using an offshore provider. Anywslown or reversal of existing industry trends wolidm our ability to compete effectively
with competitors that operate out of facilitiesdted in the United States and elsewhere.

A variety of U.S. federal and state legislation haen proposed that, if enacted, could restridisrourage U.S. companies from
outsourcing their services to companies outsiddJthieed States. For example, legislation has beepgsed that would require offshore
providers to identify where they are located arat thould require notice to individuals whose peedonformation is disclosed to non-U.S.
companies. Because most of our clients are lodatdae United States, any expansion of existingslawthe enactment of new legislation
restricting offshore outsourcing could adverselpact our ability to do business with U.S. cliems dave a material and adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, financial conditiad cash flows. In addition, it is possible tlegislation could be adopted that would restrict
U.S. private sector companies that have federslate government contracts or financing from outsiog their services to offshore service
providers. Such restrictions could affect our &pild attract or retain clients that have such @ois in the future.

In other countries, such as the United Kingdom clwliomprised 33.9% of our total revenues in 200&et has also been some negative
publicity and concern expressed regarding the ptessifect of job losses caused by outsourcingidlation introduced in the United Kingdom
(consolidating past case law) in 2006 provides iftmtompany transfers or outsources its businesspart of its business to a transferee or a
service provider, the employees who were emplogeslich business are entitled to become employeldebtyansferee or service provider on
the same terms and conditions as they had beerogetpbefore the transfer. The dismissal of suchleyeps as a result of such transfer of
business is deemed unfair dismissal and entiteegmhployees to compensation. As a result, we megrbe liable for redundancy payments to
the employees of our clients in the United Kingdetm outsource business to us. We are generallyrindied in our existing contracts with
clients in the United Kingdom to the extent we inmsses or additional costs due to the applicatiothis legislation to us, and we intend to
obtain indemnification in future contracts witheslts. However, if we are unable to obtain indematfon in future contracts with clients, we
may be liable under any agreements we enter intioeiiuture with United Kingdom clients. Similagielations has also been enacted in ce
other European jurisdictions.

Our client contracts contain certain termination ahother provisions that could have an adverse effec our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

Most of our client contracts may be terminated by dients without cause and do not commit oumtieo provide us with a specific
volume of business. Any failure to meet a clieetpectations could result in a cancellation or remewal of a contract or a decrease in
business provided to us. We may not be able tacepdny client that elects to terminate or notweit® contract with us, which would reduce
our revenues. For example, we provide serviceettri@a under an agreement that can be termingt€khtrica without cause upon three
months prior notice and payment of a breakup fekves provide services to Travelers under a senagesement that Travelers may terminate
without cause upon 60 days prior notice. We gerdra0.5% of our total revenues in 2009 from Ceataind 13.2% of our total revenues in
2009 from Travelers. The termination of eitherlafde contracts with or without cause could havaterial adverse impact on the
predictability of our expected revenue stream.

A limited number of our contracts allow a cliemt,dertain limited circumstances, to request a berack study comparing our pricing and
performance with that of an agreed list of othevise providers for
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comparable services. Based on the results of tly stnd depending on the reasons for any unfaverasiance, we may be required to make
improvements in the services we provide or redbeepticing for services on a prospective basistpdrformed under the remaining term of
the contract or our client could elect to termintiie contract, which could have an adverse effedw business, results of operations and
financial condition. Many of our contracts contaiovisions that would require us to pay penaltiesur clients and/or provide our clients with
the right to terminate the contract if we do noeingre-agreed service level requirements or if waat provide certain productivity benefits.
Failure to meet these requirements or accuratéiyate the productivity benefits could result ie iayment of significant penalties by us to
our clients which in turn could have a materialede effect on our business, results of operatiadsfinancial condition. Many of our
contracts with clients specify that if a changeafitrol of our company occurs during the term @f tontract, the client has the right to
terminate the contract. These provisions may réswtr contracts being terminated if there is saahange in control, resulting in a potential
loss of revenues. In addition, these provisions awtyas a deterrent to any attempt by a third gargcquire our company.

We may fail to attract and retain enough sufficidpttrained employees to support our operations casnpetition for highly skilled personne
is intense and we experience significant employ@mover rates.

The BPO industry is very labor intensive and ouwrcess depends to a significant extent on our phdiattract, hire, train and retain
gualified employees, including our ability to attt@mployees with needed skills in the geograpteasin which we operate. The industry,
including us, experiences high employee turnowveRd09, our turnover rate for billable employees wpproximately 22.6%. There is
significant competition for professionals with $&ihecessary to perform the services we offer tocbents. Increased competition for these
professionals, in the BPO industry or otherwiseilddave an adverse effect on us. A significantdase in the turnover rate among our
employees, particularly among the highly skilledrkforce needed to provide BPO services, would iaseeour recruiting and training costs
and decrease our operating efficiency, productigitg profit margins, and could lead to a declindémand for our services. High turnover
rates generally do not impact our revenues as eterfthe attrition rate into our pricing modelsibgintaining additional employees for each
process. However, high turnover rates do increaseast of revenues and therefore impact our pnoéitgins due to higher recruitment,
training and retention costs as a result of maiimagilarger hiring, training and human resourcgzsadgnents and higher operating costs due to
having to reallocate certain business processesgmuar operations centers where we have accehs tkilled workforce needed for the
business. In 2009, we incurred approximately $lilliam on recruitment and approximately $0.7 million training costs due to employee
turnover, thereby increasing our costs and reducingorofit margins for that period by $1.8 million

In addition, our ability to maintain and renew ¢ixig engagements and obtain new business will dpanarge part, on our ability to
attract, train and retain personnel with skillsttkeep pace with the demand for outsourcing, emglvindustry standards and changing client
preferences. A lack of sufficiently qualified pemsel could also inhibit our ability to establishepgtions in new markets and our efforts to
expand geographically. Our failure to attract,rtrand retain personnel with the qualifications 8seey to fulfill the needs of our existing and
future clients or to assimilate new employees ssafcdly could have a material adverse effect onbuginess, results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

We have a long selling cycle for our BPO servichattrequires significant funds and management resoes and a long implementation
cycle that requires significant resource commitment

We have a long selling cycle for our BPO serviedsich requires significant investment of capitasources and time by both our clients
and us. Before committing to use our services,miiatkclients require us to expend substantial tand resources educating them as to the
value of our services and assessing the feasibilitgtegrating our systems and processes witligh@ur clients then evaluate our services
before deciding whether to use them. Therefore selling cycle, which generally ranges from sixetghteen months, is subject to many risks
and delays over which we have little or no contiradjuding our clients’ decision to
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choose alternatives to our services (such as ptioeiders or in-house offshore resources) andithiag of our clients’ budget cycles and
approval processes. In addition, we may not be taldeiccessfully conclude a contract after therggliycle is complete.

Implementing our services involves a significantnooitment of resources over an extended periochaé from both our clients and us.
Our clients may also experience delays in obtaiimitgrnal approvals or delays associated with teldgy or system implementations, thereby
delaying further the implementation process. Oigmnt$ and future clients may not be willing or atdénvest the time and resources necessary
to implement our services, and we may fail to clesles with potential clients to which we have dedgignificant time and resources, which
could have a material adverse effect on our busjresults of operations, financial condition aadtcflows.

Once we are engaged by a client, it may take ugssEvnmonths before we start to recognize signifitaavenues.

When we are engaged by a client after the sellinggss for our BPO services, it takes from fousikoweeks to integrate the client’s
systems with ours, and up to three months theretafteuild up our services to the client’s requients. Depending on the complexity of the
processes being implemented, these time periodsmaignificantly longer. Implementing processes loa subject to potential delays similar
to certain of those affecting the selling cycleefidgfore, we do not recognize significant revenugs after we have completed the
implementation phase.

We enter into long-term contracts with our BPO dtits, and our failure to estimate the resources ade required for our contracts may
negatively affect our profitability.

The initial terms of our BPO client contracts tyglg range from three to five years. In many of 80O contracts we commit to long-
term pricing with our clients and therefore bear tisk of cost overruns, completion delays, wadlation and adverse movements in exchange
rates in connection with these contracts. If wetéagstimate accurately the resources and timeimed| for a contract, future wage inflation
rates or currency exchange rates (or fail to atelyr&aedge our currency exchange rate exposuréwar fail to complete our contractual
obligations within the contracted timeframe, owrengues and profitability may be negatively affected

Consistency in our revenues from period to periogp@énds in part on our ability to reflect the chamgj demands and needs of our existing
and potential BPO clients. If we are unable to adjour pricing terms or the mix of products and s&ges we provide to meet the changing
demands of our BPO clients and potential BPO clisnbur business, results of operations and finarlatandition may be adversely affecte

Most of our BPO contracts use a pricing model firavides for hourly or annual billing rates. Indyspricing models are evolving,
however, and we anticipate that clients may inénghg request transaction-based pricing. This pganodel will place additional pressure on
the efficiency of our service delivery so that veaenaintain reasonable operating margins. If weuaeble to adapt our operations to evolving
pricing protocols, our results of operations mayabeersely affected or we may not be able to gffaring that is attractive relative to our
competitors.

In addition, the BPO services we provide to ouerds and the revenues and income from those semviag decline or vary as the type
and quantity of services we provide under thoséraots changes over time, including as a resudt sifift in the mix of products and services
we provide. Furthermore, our clients, some of wiiakie experienced significant and adverse chamgéeir prospects, substantial price
competition and pressures on their profitabilitstyé in the past and may in the future demand peidections, automate some or all of their
processes or change their outsourcing strategydwng more work in-house or to other providers, ahwhich could reduce our profitability.
Any significant reduction in or the elimination thfe use of the services we provide to any of adentd, or any requirement to lower our prices,
would harm our business.
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Our transformation services are cyclical and basew specific projects involving short-term contracts

Our transformation services, such as our decisiatyéics services and our risk and financial manag services, are cyclical and can
be significantly affected by variations in businegsles. Changes in the deadlines or the scopedf required for compliance with the
requirements of legislation applicable to our diéecould have a significant impact on certain serdfferings of our risk and financial
management services business.

In addition, a majority of our decision analytie\gces and our risk and financial management sesvtonsist of specific projects with
contract terms generally not exceeding one yeamnamdnot produce ongoing or recurring businessi$oonce the project is completed. These
contracts also usually contain provisions perngttermination of the contract after a short nofieeiod. The short-term nature and specificity
of these projects could lead to material fluctuadiand uncertainties in the revenues generatedtiiese businesses.

Our operating results may experience significantriability and as a result it may be difficult for sito make accurate financial forecasts.

Our operating results may vary significantly froeripd to period. Although our existing agreemenithwriginal terms of three or more
years provide us with a relatively predictable raxebase for a substantial portion of our busirtbsslong selling cycle for our services and
budget and approval processes of prospective slimake it difficult to predict the timing of newieht acquisitions. The timing of revenue
recognition under new client agreements also valegending on when we complete the implementati@s@. The completion of
implementation varies significantly based upondbmplexity of the processes being implemented.

Our period-to-period results have in the past aag aiso in the future fluctuate due to other fastorcluding client losses, delays or
failure by our clients to provide anticipated bwsis, variations in employee utilization rates msgllfrom changes in our clients’ operations,
delays or difficulties in expanding our operati@esiters and infrastructure (including hiring newpéogees or constructing new operations
centers), changes to our pricing structure ordhaur competitors, currency fluctuation, seasat@nges in the operations of our clients and
other events identified in this Annual Report onrRd.0-K. Our revenues are also affected by chamgpscing under our contracts at the time
of renewal or by pricing under new contracts. Bamaple, because the majority of our revenues anerdmated in U.K. pounds sterling or
U.S. dollars while most of our expenses are inclard paid in Indian rupees and the Philippine pesorevenues can decrease or increase
significantly if the exchange rates among the Indigpee, the U.K. pound sterling, the Philippinegpand the U.S. dollar fluctuate
significantly. In addition, some of our contractsmbt commit our clients to provide us with a sfieciolume of business. These factors may
make it difficult to make accurate financial forstsaor replace anticipated revenues that we doegeive as a result of delays in implementing
our services or client losses. If our actual resdti not meet any estimated results that we aneowndf we underperform market expectations
as a result of such factors, trading prices forammmon stock could be adversely affected.

Our senior management team is critical to our camtied success and the loss of one or more membemipEenior management team cot
harm our business.

Our future success substantially depends on théncmd services and performance of the membersiofranagement team and other
key employees possessing technical and busineabitiips, including industry expertise, that aifficult to replace. Specifically, the loss of
the services of our Executive Chairman, Vikram Talvor of our President and Chief Executive Offijdohit Kapoor, could seriously impair
our ability to continue to manage and expand ogirtass. There is intense competition for experieésanior management and personnel with
technical and industry expertise in the industryhich we operate, and we may not be able to réiige officers or key employees. Although
we have entered into employment and non-competitgreements with all of our executive officers taierterms of those agreements may not
be enforceable and in any event these agreememistdmsure the continued service of these exexofficers. Messrs. Talwar and Kapoor
and certain of their affiliates have certain regison rights with respect to their shares of comratock.
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In addition, we currently do not maintain “key p&m8insurance covering any member of our managemeant. The loss of any of our key
employees, particularly to competitors, could haveaterial adverse effect on our business, resfitiperations, financial condition and cash
flows.

Our inability to effectively manage our rapid infgtructure and personnel growth could have a maté@averse effect on our operations,
results of operations and financial condition.

Since we were founded in April 1999, we have exgrared rapid growth and significantly expanded qarations. We have ten
operations centers in India, one in the Philippiawed one in the Czech Republic. Our headcountritasased from approximately 1,800 on
December 31, 2002 to approximately 10,700 (inclggiarsonnel managed under structured client seagioeements) on December 31, 2009.
We expect to develop and improve our internal sgsta the locations where we operate in order tiregb the anticipated growth of our
business. We are in the process of establishingapasation centers in Romania and India and acecstinuing to look for operation centers
at additional locations outside of India and thdippines. We believe expanding our geographic lidsgperations will provide higher value to
our clients by decreasing the risks of operatiogfa single country (including potential shortagéskilled employees, increases in wage ¢
during strong economic times and currency flucaret), while also giving our clients access to aawidlent pool and establishing a base in
countries that may be competitive in the futurewideer, we may not be able to effectively manageimuastructure and employee expansion,
open additional operations centers or hire addifigkilled employees as and when they are requiregeet the ongoing needs of our clients,
and we may not be able to develop and improverdgarnal systems. Our inability to execute our gtostrategy, to ensure the continued
adequacy of our current systems or to manage qaresion effectively could have a material advefeceon our business, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We may engage in strategic transactions that coatdate risks.

As part of our business strategy, we intend toinamrtto selectively consider acquisitions or inuemtts, some of which may be material.
Through the acquisitions we pursue, we may seekrbppities to expand the scope of our existingises/we provide, add new clients or to
enter new geographic markets. We have made adquisih the past, including our acquisition in 2@d3he back office operations of
Schneider S.R.O. in the Czech Republic and ourisitiqgun in 2010 of the American Express Global TebS8ervices Center located in Gurga
India. There can be no assurance that we will $mitable candidates in the future for strategindeations at acceptable prices, have sufficient
capital resources to accomplish our strategy aueeessful in entering into agreements for dedigtsactions.

Acquisitions, including completed acquisitions,case the risk that any business we acquire nsgydastomers or employees or could
underperform relative to expectations. We could alsperience financial or other setbacks if tratisas encounter unanticipated problems,
including problems related to execution or inteigratFollowing the completion of an acquisition, way have to rely on the seller to provide
administrative and other support, including finahceporting and internal controls, to the acquivediness for a period of time. There can be
no assurance that the seller will do so in a matiregris acceptable to us.

If more stringent labor laws become applicable te ar if our employees unionize, our profitability ay be adversely affecte

India has stringent labor legislation that protestgployee interests, including legislation thas $etth detailed procedures for dispute
resolution and employee removal and legislatiom ithaoses financial obligations on employers upstnenchment. Though we are exempt
from some of these labor laws at present underpixees in some states for providers of IT-enableises, there can be no assurance that
such laws will not become applicable to us in thteife. If these labor laws become applicable toevaployees, it may become difficult for us
to maintain flexible human resource policies arichat and employ the numbers of sufficiently quadifcandidates that we need or discharge
employees, and our compensation expenses may secsaaificantly.
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In addition, our employees may in the future formoms. If employees at any of our operations carttecome eligible for union
membership, we may be required to raise wage l@ralsant other benefits that could result in aréase in our compensation expenses, in
which case our profitability may be adversely dféelc

Employee wage increases may prevent us from sustgiour competitive advantage and may reduce ouofiirmargin.

Our most significant costs are the salaries aratedlbenefits of our operations staff and otherleyegs. For example, wage costs in
India have historically been significantly loweathwage costs in the United States and Europeofoparably skilled professionals, which has
been one of our competitive advantages. Howeveause of rapid economic growth in India, increadeishand for BPO services from India
and increased competition for skilled employeemdia, wages for comparably skilled employees iidrare increasing at a faster rate than in
the United States and Europe, which may reducectinigpetitive advantage. We may need to increasketeds of employee compensation
more rapidly than in the past to remain competitivattracting and retaining the quality and numtfeemployees that our business requires.
Wages are generally higher for employees perforrdagision analytics services and risk and finantiahagement services than for emplo
performing BPO services. As the scale of our denisinalytics services and our risk and financiahaggment services increases, wages as a
percentage of revenues will likely increase. Toekgent that we are not able to control or shargenacreases with our clients, wage increases
may reduce our margins. We will attempt to constath costs by our efforts to add capacity in lacetiwhere we consider wage levels of
skilled personnel to be satisfactory, but we maylosuccessful in doing so. Additionally, becaaiseajority of our employees are based in
India and paid in Indian rupees, while our reveraresprimarily in U.S. dollars and U.K. pounds ey, our employee costs as a percentage of
revenues may increase or decrease significantfyeiExchange rates among the Indian rupee, thepothd sterling and the U.S. dollar
fluctuate significantly.

We face significant competition from U.S.-based andn-U.S.-based outsourcing and information techogly companies and from our
clients, who may perform outsourcing services thatves, either in-house, in the United States ordbgh offshore groups or other
arrangements.

The market for outsourcing services is highly cotitppe, and we expect competition to intensify ancrease from a number of sources.
We believe that the principal competitive factarour markets are breadth and depth of processteseqyeservice quality, the ability to attract,
train and retain qualified people, compliance riggobal delivery capabilities, price, knowledgeirdustries served and marketing and sales
capabilities. We also face competition from non-th&sed outsourcing and IT companies (including¢ha the United Kingdom and India)
and U.S.-based outsourcing and IT companies. litiaddthe trend toward offshore outsourcing, inegional expansion by foreign and
domestic competitors and continuing technologitainges will result in new and different competitensering our markets. These competitors
may include entrants from the communications, saferand data networking industries or entranteoggaphic locations with lower costs
than those in which we operate. Some of theseiegiand future competitors have greater finangiatsonnel and other resources, a broader
range of service offerings, greater technologigglegtise, more recognizable brand names and mtablistied relationships in industries that
we currently serve or may serve in the future.dditon, some of our competitors may enter intatsigic or commercial relationships among
themselves or with larger, more established congsaini order to increase their ability to addregntineeds, or enter into similar arrangem
with potential clients. The trend in multendor relationships has been growing, which coedtlice our revenues to the extent that clientsn
services from other vendors. Increased competitianjnability to compete successfully against cetitprs, pricing pressures or loss of ma
share could result in reduced operating margingchwtould harm our business, results of operatiinancial condition and cash flows.

We expect competition to intensify in the futurenagre companies enter our markets. Increased cdiopehay result in lower prices
and volumes, higher costs for resources, espegiatiple, and lower profitability. We may not beeatwl supply clients with services that they
deem superior and at competitive prices and welosgybusiness to our competitors. Any inabilitctmnpete effectively would adversely
affect our business, results of operations anchfizd condition.
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We may disrupt our clients’ operations as a resoftinadequate service or other factors, includinglécommunications or technology
downtime or interruptions.

The services we provide are often critical to diends’ businesses, and any failure to provide ¢rgervices could result in a reduction in
revenues or a claim for substantial damages agasnsegardless of whether we are responsibléndrfailure. Most of our agreements with
clients contain service level and performance meguénts, including requirements relating to thelitpaf our services. Failure to consistently
meet service requirements of a client or errorseriadour employees in the course of deliveringisessto our clients could disrupt the client’
business and result in a reduction in revenuesctaim for damages against us. Additionally, weldancur liability if a process we manage
a client were to result in internal control failarer impair our client’s ability to comply with itsvn internal control requirements. Under a
majority of our agreements with our clients, oabliity for breach of certain of our obligationsgenerally limited to actual damages suffered
by the client and is typically capped at the greatean agreed amount or the fees paid or payahlis for a period of time under the relevant
agreement. These limitations and caps on liahitiy be unenforceable or otherwise may not proteétam liability for damages. In addition,
certain liabilities, such as claims of third pastfer which we may be required to indemnify ouents or liability for breaches of
confidentiality, are generally not limited undeodle agreements. Our agreements are governed byfawdtiple jurisdictions, therefore the
interpretation of such provisions, and the avalighdf defenses to us, may vary, which may conitébto the uncertainty as to the scope of our
potential liability.

Our dependence on our offshore operations cerggrgres us to maintain active voice and data conications among our operations
centers in India and the Philippines, our intewral technology hubs in the United States and bemts’ offices. Although we maintain
redundant facilities and communications links, uligions could result from, among other things, técél breakdowns, computer glitches and
viruses and weather conditions. We also dependerdain significant vendors for facility storage amethted maintenance of our main
technology equipment and data at those technolagg.hAny failure by these vendors to perform themwices, any temporary or permanent
loss of our equipment or systems, or any disrupttorbasic infrastructure like power and telecomitations could impede our ability to
provide services to our clients, have a negati@aithon our reputation, cause us to lose clieathjge our revenues and harm our business.

Our business could be materially and adversely afés if we do not protect our intellectual property if our services are found to infringe
on the intellectual property of others.

Our success depends in part on certain methodslogriactices, tools and technical expertise weatih designing, developing,
implementing and maintaining applications and ofireprietary intellectual property rights. In orderprotect our rights in these various
intellectual properties, we rely upon a combinatdmondisclosure and other contractual arrangesnanivell as trade secret, copyright and
trademark laws. We also generally enter into canftility agreements with our employees, consudtariients and potential clients and limit
access to and distribution of our proprietary infation. We also have submitted United States fédedhforeign trademark applications for
the names of additional service offerings. We matybe successful in maintaining or obtaining tradeks for these trade names. India is a
member of the Berne Convention, an internationalliectual property treaty, and has agreed to neizegprotections on intellectual property
rights conferred under the laws of other foreigortdes, including the laws of the United Statelsefe can be no assurance that the laws, rules
regulations and treaties in effect in the Uniteat&, India and the other jurisdictions in whichaperate and the contractual and other
protective measures we take, are adequate to pratdmom misappropriation or unauthorized usewfiotellectual property, or that such laws
will not change. We may not be able to detect umaniged use and take appropriate steps to enfanceghts, and any such steps may not be
successful. Infringement by others of our intellettproperty, including the costs of enforcing ouellectual property rights, may have a
material adverse effect on our business, resultpefations and financial condition.

Although we believe that we are not infringing e intellectual property rights of others, claimaynmonetheless be successfully
asserted against us in the future. The costs ehdé@ig any such claims could be
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significant, and any successful claim may requg¢aumodify, discontinue or rename any of our s&wi Any such changes may have a
material adverse effect on our business, resultpefations and financial condition.

Unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confidert@ient and customer data, whether through breaohour computer systems or otherwi
could expose us to protracted and costly litigatiand cause us to lose clients.

We are typically required to collect and store garesdata in connection with our services, inchglnames, addresses, social security
numbers, credit card account numbers, checkingsawithgs account numbers and payment history receuds as account closures and
returned checks. In addition, many of our agreemeiith our clients do not include any limitation ouar liability to them with respect to
breaches of our obligation to keep the informati@receive from them confidential. We take prea@msito protect confidential client and
customer data. However, if any person, including @our employees, penetrates our network secarittherwise mismanages or
misappropriates sensitive data, we could be subjesignificant liability and lawsuits from our efits or their own customers for breaching
contractual confidentiality provisions or priva@mis. Penetration of the network security of ouadanters could have a negative impact on
our reputation, which could have a material advefgect on our business, results of operationgyfoial condition and cash flows.

We may not be fully insured for all losses we magdir.

Although we attempt to limit and mitigate our lidyi for damages arising from negligent acts, esror omissions through contractual
provisions, limitations of liability set forth inun contracts may not be enforceable in all instarmzemay not otherwise protect us from liability
for damages. In addition, certain liabilities, sashclaims of third parties for which we may beuieed to indemnify our clients, are generally
not limited under those agreements. Although weetgneral liability insurance coverage, includiogearage for errors or omissions, property
damage or loss and breaches of privacy and netsearlirity, that coverage may not continue to belabi@ on reasonable terms or to be
available in sufficient amounts to cover one or enlarge claims, and our insurers may disclaim cayems to any future claim. The successful
assertion of one or more large claims against aisethceed available insurance coverage, or changes insurance policies (including
premium increases or the imposition of large ddablecbr co-insurance requirements), could have ter@d adverse effect on our business,
reputation, results of operations, financial canditand cash flows.

Oak Hill Capital Partners and its affiliates, Vikrmn Talwar and Rohit Kapoor exercise significant infénce over us, and their interests in
our business may be different than yours.

A majority of the issued and outstanding sharesunfcommon stock are currently beneficially owngddak Hill Capital Partners L.P.
and certain of its affiliates, our Executive ChaarmVikram Talwar, and our President and Chief Etige Officer, Rohit Kapoor. As of
December 31, 2009, Oak Hill Capital Partners Ll eertain of its affiliates beneficially owned 882,504 shares (or 36.2%) of our
outstanding common stock; Mr. Talwar and certaists for his benefit and that of his family colieety beneficially owned 1,658,079 shares
(or 5.7%) of our outstanding common stock; and K&apoor and certain trusts for his benefit and tfdtis family collectively beneficially
owned 1,790,935 shares (6.2%) of our outstandingnoon stock. Accordingly, each of these partiesearcise significant influence over our
business policies and affairs and all matters réygia stockholders’ vote, including the compositaf our board of directors, the adoption of
amendments to our certificate of incorporation tiredapproval of mergers or sales of substantidlligfaur assets. This concentration of
ownership also may delay, defer or even prevetisage in control of our company and may make soamsactions more difficult or
impossible without the support of these stockhad&he interests of these stockholders may confiiitt your interests.

We may not succeed in identifying suitable acquitit candidates or integrating an acquired busindsso our operations, which could have
a material adverse effect on our business, resolt®perations and financial condition.

One of our strategies is to broaden our geogrgpigisence, gain new clients, enter new streamsates and expand capacity both
organically and through strategic acquisitions. Mé&y not, however, succeed in
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identifying suitable acquisition candidates avdiaior sale at reasonable prices, have accese toaghital required to finance potential
acquisitions or be able to consummate any acquisiOur management may not be able to succesdfitdigrate any acquired business into
operations or maintain our standards, controlspaiidies, and any acquisition we do complete mayresult in long-term benefits to us.
Acquisitions involve a number of risks, includiniyersion of management’s attention, ability to fica the acquisition on attractive terms,
failure to retain key personnel, legal liabilitiasd the need to amortize acquired intangible gsaeysof which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operationspfifed condition and cash flows. Future acquisitioresy also result in the incurrence of
indebtedness or the issuance of additional eqaityrities.

We may choose to expand operations to additionalrtcies and may not be successful in maintainingrocurrent profit margins in our new
locations due to factors beyond our control.

We are currently continuing to evaluate additidoahtions other than India, the Philippines, the@zRepublic and Romania in which
invest in an operations center. We cannot prelleeitent of government support, availability oélified workers, or monetary and economic
conditions in other countries. Although some ofsthéactors will influence our decision to establigferations in another country, there are
inherent risks beyond our control, including expgesto currency fluctuations, political uncertaistiéoreign exchange restrictions and foreign
regulatory restrictions. One or more of these facto other factors relating to expanded intermati@perations could result in increased
operating expenses and make it more difficult ®/otaumanage our costs and operations, which cauith lour business and negatively impact
our operating results.

We may increase the range of services that we gtevo our clients and our business and future presgs are difficult to evaluate.

We are exploring opportunities to provide outsodrservices that we have not provided to date. $heeldecide to expand our service
offerings, our results of operations may be neghtiaffected during any transition or growth pertmfore such offerings achieve profitability.
For example, we may need to expand our traininguofexisting employees or recruit new, specialgirted employees to provide these
services, which could increase our costs of revedlisproportionately to the revenues generatedibly services. Other challenges we may
face include attracting and retaining clients factsservices, integrating any new services intocoarent suite of services and managing any
resulting growth in our operations.

Failure to adhere to the regulations that govern obusiness could have an adverse impact on our @giens.

Our clients are often subject to regulations thay mequire that we comply with certain rules argliations in performing services for
them that would not otherwise apply to us. Deblemtion services, for example, may be subject éoRhir Debt Collection Practices Act, wh
regulates debt collection practices. In additioansnU.S. states require a debt collector to apmlytfe granted and maintain a license to en
in debt collection activities in a state. We arerently licensed (or exempt from licensing requiests) to provide debt collection services in
the United States from India in all but two U.&tses and from the Philippines in 35 U.S. statestthae non-exempt requirements and have
separate conditional exemptions with respect tcoogoing collection obligations. Other U.S. feddaals and regulations that apply to certain
portions of our business include the Fair Credpdéténg Act, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, the Healttsurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, the Truth in Lending #\¢he Fair Credit Billing Act and the FDIC rulesdaregulations. If we do not maintain our
licenses or other qualifications to provide oungsrs, we may not be able to provide services istieg customers or be able to attract new
clients and could lose revenues, which could haveterial adverse effect on our business. Our aggats with some of our clients require us
to remain knowledgeable about and comply with almemof relevant consumer protection laws. Failorpdrform our services in a manner
that complies with any such requirement could tasubreaches of contracts with our clients. Oiulufa to comply with any applicable laws
and regulations could subject us to civil fines arithinal penalties.
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Risks Related to the International Nature of our Bisiness

Our financial condition could be negatively affeaef foreign governments reduce or withdraw tax tefits and other incentives currently
provided to companies within our industry, or if ¢hsame are not available for other reasol

Under the Income-Tax Act, 1961 of India, we havedfiied from a holiday from Indian corporate incotages. As a result, our service
operations have to date been subject to relatiogher tax liabilities. We incurred minimal incomaxtexpense in 2009 as a result of the tax
holiday, compared to approximately $3.1 milliontthee would have additionally incurred if the taxiday had not been available for that
period (without accounting for double taxation tyeset-offs). Our current tax holiday in respecsofme of our operations centers expires in
March 2010. Consequently, our tax expense will nitg increase and our after-tax profitability Wile materially reduced.

In May 2007, the Government of India adopted thiadn Finance Act, 2007, with effect from April 0@, that imposed a minimum
alternative tax, or MAT, on Indian companies thatén book profits but no tax profit which could lse ¥arious reasons, including tax holidays,
tax deductions or significant depreciation. Any MAaid by us can be carried forward for a maximumogeof ten years and can be used as a
credit against corporate income taxes payable laftas expiration of the tax holiday, subject te gatisfaction of certain conditions.

We currently benefit from a four-year income tatiday in the Philippines that is extendable foraatulitional two years. Our current
income tax holidays in the Philippines are expetteeipire in the middle of 2012, unless extendgHile we intend to apply for extensions of
these holidays, it is possible that such extensiondd be denied, or these holidays could be reshewveirely due to changes in the government
of the Philippines. Should either of these evertaun our Philippine tax liability could increase.

We may be required to pay additional taxes in coatien with audits by the Indian taxing authorities.

U.S. and Indian transfer pricing regulations regtiirat any international transaction involving &ssted enterprises be at an arm’s-length
price. Transactions among the Company’s subsidiame the Company may be required to satisfy seghirements. Accordingly, the
Company determines the pricing among its associtégtprises on the basis of detailed functiondlesonomic analysis involving
benchmarking against transactions among entitegsatte not under common control. The tax autharitive jurisdiction to review this
arrangement and in the event that they determettetie transfer price applied was not appropriag Company may incur increased tax
liability, including accrued interest and penalti€ee Company is currently involved in disputeshwtie Indian tax authorities over the
application of some of its transfer pricing pol&ier past years aggregating to approximately $&8l@n. The Company has already
deposited $7.8 million against the amounts demanded

Amount Amount
Entity Tax Year Issue Demanded Deposited

Exl India 2003-04 The assessment order alleges that the transfer weapplied to transactions betwt  $ 2.1 million $ 2.1 millior
EXL India and EXL Inc. in the 2003-04 tax year wem appropriate and also disallo
certain expenses claimed as tax deductible by Exial

Exl India 2004-05 The assessment order alleges that the transfer weapplied to transactions betwt  $ 2.0 million $ 2.0 million
EXL India and EXL Inc. for the 2004-05 tax year wa appropriate and also
disallows certain expenses claimed as tax dedediplEXL India.

Exl India 200%-06 The assessment order alleges that the transfer weapplied to transactions betwt  $ 5.2 million $ 1.6 million
EXL India and EXL Inc. for the 2005-06 tax year wax appropriate and also
disallows certain expenses claimed as tax dedediplEXL India.

Exl Inc. 200:-04 The assessment order alleges that EXL Inc. hasnagment establishment in Ind $ 3.2 million $ 1.7 million
Exl Inc. 2004-05 The assessment order alleges that EXL Inc. hasnagment establishment in Ind $ 0.1 million $ —
Exl Inc. 2005-06 The assessment order alleges that EXL Inc. hasnagpent establishment in Ind $ 0.7 million  $ 0.4 million
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Based on advice from our Indian tax advisors, #utsfunderlying our position and our experiencé Wiese types of assessments, we
continue to believe that the probability of lossemote and have not accrued any amount with réspdéitese matters in our consolidated
financial statements. Any amount paid by us as sigpwill be refunded to us with interest if we saed in our appeals with the appropriate tax
authorities. We cannot assure you that our appéllbe successful or that these appeals will balfy resolved in the near future. Please see
note 16 to our consolidated financial statementsi&ails.

Introduction of tax legislation and disputes witlax authorities may have an adverse effect on ouergions and our overall tax rate

Governments in countries in which we operate ovigi@services could enact new tax legislation whidluld have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations arah€ial condition. In addition, our ability to r@piate surplus earnings from our operations
centers in a tax-efficient manner is dependent uptamnpretations of local laws, possible changesuich laws and the renegotiation of existing
double tax avoidance treaties. Changes to anyesktmay adversely affect our overall tax rate, Wwhiould have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financatlition. Additionally, if a tax authority in anwijisdiction reviews any of our tax returns and
determines that the transfer prices and terms we &pplied are not appropriate, or that other ire@four affiliates should be taxed in that
jurisdiction, we may incur increased tax liabilitycluding accrued interest and penalties, whichild@ause our tax expense to increi
possibly materially, thereby reducing our profitdapiand cash flows.

Currency fluctuations among the Indian rupee, the.Kl pound sterling, the Philippine peso and the Ud®llar could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations.

Although a substantial portion of our revenuesdiEeominated in U.K. pounds sterling (33.9% in 20@9).S. dollars (63.8% in 2009),
most of our expenses (57.1% in 2009) are incurnedpaid in Indian rupees. We report our finanaiults in U.S. dollars. The exchange rates
among the Indian rupee, the U.K. pound sterling,Rhilippine peso and the U.S. dollar have chasgédtantially in recent years and may
fluctuate substantially in the future. The averlg#an rupee/U.S. dollar exchange rate in 2009 apmoximately 48.41 (based on the
Bloomberg Composite Rate (BCR)), representing degtien of the Indian rupee of 11.57% comparechaverage exchange rate in 2008.
The average Indian rupee/U.K. pound sterling exghaate in 2009 was approximately 75.69 (basetheBCR), representing appreciation of
the Indian rupee of 5.5% compared to the averagkasge rate in 2008. The average U.S. dollar/Udking sterling exchange rate in 2009
approximately 1.56 (based on BCR) representingegigtion of the U.S. dollar of 15.7% compared @ @lverage exchange rate in 2008. The
average Philippine peso/U.S. dollar exchange rmB909 was approximately 47.57 (based on the BE&Rjesenting depreciation of the
Philippine peso of 6.8% compared to the averaghange rate in 2008. Although we take steps to hadgéstantial portion of our Indian
rupee/U.S. dollar foreign currency exposures, eauits of operations may be adversely affecteaeifibdian rupee fluctuates significantly
against the U.K. pound sterling or the U.S. dolllae, U.K. pound sterling further depreciates agdims U.S. dollar, our hedging strategy is
unsuccessful or if the hedging markets have ingieffit liquidity or depth to allow us to implementrchedging strategy in a cost-effective
manner. Any failure by our hedging counterpart@meet their contractual obligations there undeldmaterially and adversely effect our
profitability. We are subject to legal restrictioms hedging activities as well as the convertipitif currencies in India. This could limit our
ability to use cash generated in one country irttearacountry and could limit our ability to hedger @xposures. Finally, our hedging policies
only provide near term protection from exchange flictuations.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence invislg India, the Philippines, the United States orhmr countries could adversely affect the
financial markets, result in a loss of client corféence and adversely affect our business, resultsgdrations and financial condition

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or, wenluding those involving India, the Philippingle United States or other countries,
may adversely affect worldwide financial markets aould potentially lead to
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economic recession, which could adversely affectoiginess, results of operations and financiatitmm. These events could adversely af
our clients’ levels of business activity and préeife sudden significant changes in regional antajleconomic conditions and cycles. These
events also pose significant risks to our peoptetarour operations centers. South Asia has, fioma to time, experienced instances of civil
unrest and hostilities among neighboring countireduding India, Pakistan and China. In recentgdhere have been several instances of
military confrontations along the Indo-Pakistand®nr There continues to be potential for hostgitietween India and Pakistan due to recent
terrorist activities and the geopolitical climatersg the border. Although this has not been the ¢taslate, such political tensions could cree
perception that there is a risk of disruption ofvgms provided by India-based companies, whicHctthave a material adverse effect on the
market for our services. Furthermore, if India werdecome engaged in armed hostilities, partibutzostilities that were protracted or
involved the threat or use of nuclear weapons, Wwghtmot be able to continue to operate. Our inscegolicies may not insure us against
losses and interruptions caused by terrorist adtackl other acts of violence or war.

We may face difficulties as we expand our operasidnto countries in which we have no prior operagjrexperience.

We intend to continue to expand our global footpinnorder to maintain an appropriate cost striemd meet our clientglelivery need:
This may involve expanding into countries othemnttiaose in which we currently operate. It may imeoéxpanding into less developed
countries, which may have less political, sociatoonomic stability and less developed infrastmecand legal systems. As we expand our
business into new countries we may encounter régylgoersonnel, technological and other difficgtihat increase our expenses or delay our
ability to start up our operations or become padifié in such countries. This may affect our retathips with our clients and could have an
adverse effect on our business, results of opamtnd financial condition.

A substantial portion of our assets and operaticer® located in India, and we are subject to regulat, economic and political uncertaintie
in India.

Our principal operating subsidiaries are incorpedldh India, and a majority of our assets and oafgssionals are located in India. We
intend to continue to develop and expand our ofisiiacilities in India. In the early 1990s, Indigperienced significant inflation, low growth
in gross domestic product and shortages of foreigrency reserves. The Indian government, howdaes exercised and continues to exercise
significant influence over many aspects of thedndtconomy. India’s government has provided sicguifi tax incentives and relaxed certain
regulatory restrictions in order to encourage fgménvestment in specified sectors of the econdmgjuding the BPO industry. Certain of the
programs, which have benefited us, include taxdagi, liberalized import and export duties andgneftial rules on foreign investment and
repatriation. We cannot assure you that liberabrgpolicies will continue. Various factors, such@hanges in the current federal government,
could trigger significant changes in India’s ecomoliberalization and deregulation policies andrdig business and economic conditions in
India generally and our business in particular.

In addition, the Government of India is considerimgoducing a reservation policy to the privatetsein India, pursuant to which all
private sector companies operating in India, incigaur subsidiaries, would be required to resereertain percentage of jobs for the
economically underprivileged population in the atatvhere such companies are incorporated. If tisypis adopted, our ability to hire
employees of our choice may be affected due toictens on our pool of potential employees and petition for these professionals.

The choice of India as an outsourcing destinatimhur financial performance may be adversely &ftby general economic conditic
and economic and fiscal policy in India, includicltanges in exchange rates and controls, interiest aad taxation policies, as well as social
stability and political, economic or diplomatic @édepments affecting India in the future. In part&gyindia has experienced significant
economic growth over the last several years, lméganajor challenges in sustaining that growtthéyears
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ahead. These challenges include the need for siiadtafrastructure development and improving asc® healthcare and education. Our
ability to recruit, train and retain qualified erapees, develop and operate our operations ceatsisgttract and retain clients could be
adversely affected if India does not successfuldetrthese challenges.

The Philippines periodically experiences political economic instability, which could disrupt our epations, increase our costs and harm
our business.

The Philippines continues to experience low grointits gross domestic product, significant inflatiand shortages of foreign exchange.
We are exposed to the risk of rental and otherioostases due to inflation in the Philippines, athivas historically been at a much higher rate
than in the United States. These conditions corddte political or economic instability that colldrm businesses operating in the Philippines.

In addition, the Philippines has and may contirsuexXperience political instability, including stei&, demonstrations, protests, marches,
coups d’état, guerilla activity or other types ofilcdisorder. These instabilities and any advesisanges in the political environment in the
Philippines could increase our operational costsgiase our exposure to legal and business riskenake it more difficult for us to operate «
business in the Philippines.

Restrictions on entry visas may affect our abiltty compete for and provide services to clientshie tnited States, which could have
material adverse effect on future revenues.

The vast majority of our employees are Indian metis. The ability of some of our executives and leyges to work with and meet our
U.S. and European clients and our clients fromratbentries depends on their ability to obtaintleeessary visas and entry permits. In
response to terrorist attacks, the global econdowenturn and public sentiments about the high ueympent rates in their respective
economies, U.S. and European immigration autheritgeve increased the level of scrutiny in grantisgs. Immigration laws in those count
may also require us to meet certain levels of caregton and comply with other legal requirementa asndition to obtaining or maintaining
entry visas. These restrictions have significatghgthened the time requirements to obtain visesdio personnel, which has in the past
resulted, and may continue to result, in delaythénability of our personnel to meet with our cteerin addition, immigration laws are subjec
legislative change and varying standards of apiitinaand enforcement due to political forces, eeoniwoconditions or other events, including
terrorist attacks. We cannot predict the politmaéconomic events that could affect immigrationdar any restrictive impact those events
could have on obtaining or monitoring entry visassdur professionals. If we are unable to obtagrhcessary visas for personnel who need to
get to our clients’ sites, or if the duration otbwisas is shortened or if such visas are delayednay not be able to provide services to our
clients or to continue to provide these servicea timely and cost effective basis, which couldédhawmaterial adverse effect on our business,
results of operations, financial condition and cfsivs.

An outbreak of an infectious disease or any otherisus public health concerns in Asia or elsewhareuld have a material adverse effect
our business and results of operations.

The outbreak of an infectious disease in Asia sewhere or any other serious public health conasyakl have a negative impact on the
economies, financial markets and business actvitiehe countries in which our end markets aratied, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business. Past outbreaks of SeveugeARespiratory Syndrome, avian influenza, or Birdor HIN1 across Asia and Europe h
adversely affected a number of countries and coiepaAlthough we have not been adversely impacyetthése recent outbreaks, we can give
no assurance that a future outbreak of an infestiisease among humans or animals or any otheusgsublic health concerns will not have a
material adverse effect on our business.
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We are vulnerable to natural disasters that coulkeverely disrupt the normal operation of our busireeand adversely affect our business,
results of operation and financial condition.

India is susceptible to natural disasters, inclgdiiphoons, tsunamis, floods and earthquakes. Flip@ines is additionally susceptible
volcanic eruptions. Substantially all of our opemas centers and employees are located in Indigran@hilippines. If our operations centers
are damaged by a typhoon, tsunami, flood, earthejuaicanic eruption or other natural disaster,aperations and our ability to provide
services to our clients could be interrupted oagedl significantly. Our insurance coverage maybeosufficient to cover all of our potential
losses. In addition, although all of our operatioaesters have access to other power sources, @isaghagement facilities in India may not be
adequate to protect against potential losses.ditiad, clients may terminate their contracts withif we cannot resume providing services
quickly enough. As a result, a natural disasténdia or the Philippines could have a material ageeffect on our business, results of
operation and financial condition.

If more stringent labor laws or other industry stalards in India become applicable to us, our profiitity may be adversely affecte

India has stringent labor legislation that proteébesinterests of workers, including legislatioattkets forth detailed procedures for
dispute resolution and employee removal and Ieipsidhat imposes financial obligations on emplayepon retrenchment. In addition, we are
subject to certain industry standards regardingeouployees, particularly with regard to overtimel &arnsportation of employees. Our
employees may also in the future form unions. ésthlabor laws or industry standards become mongent or are more strictly enforced, ¢
our employees unionize, it may become difficult dierto maintain flexible human resource policiescliarge employees or downsize, any of
which could have a material adverse effect on ogirtess, results of operations, financial conditiad cash flows.

The Government of India has recently focused orottoeipational health and safety concerns experiebgavorkers in the outsourcing
industry. The introduction of legislation imposirestrictions on working hours or conditions of @edionals in the outsourcing industry could
have an adverse effect on our business, resuttparhitions and financial condition.

Investors may have difficulty effecting service pfocess or enforcing judgments obtained in the WdtStates against our subsidiaries
India or our executive officers

Our primary operating subsidiaries are organizedide the United States and a number of our exexuofficers reside outside of the
United States. Most of our assets are locateddialrAs a result, you may be unable to effect seraf process upon our affiliates who resic
India outside their jurisdiction of residence. bidéion, you may be unable to enforce against tipessons outside the jurisdiction of their
residence judgments obtained in courts of the dritetes, including judgments predicated solelynupe federal securities laws of the United
States.

Sections 44A and Section 13 of the Indian Civild&dure Code, 1908, or the Civil Code, govern rettimgnand enforcement of foreign
judgments. Section 44A of the Civil Code providesriecognition and enforcement of a foreign judgtweithout having to file an original st
in India, provided such judgments have been remdeyecourts in a country or territory outside Indihich the Government of India has
declared to be a reciprocating territory. We haserbadvised by our Indian counsel that the UnitateS and India do not currently have a
treaty providing for reciprocal recognition and @eement of judgments (other than certain arb@ragiwards) in civil and commercial matters.
Therefore, a final judgment for the payment of morendered by any federal or state court in theddhStates based on civil liability, whether
or not it is predicated upon the federal securig@ss of the United States, would not be enforoe@blndia as such.

However, if the party in whose favor such finalgatent is rendered brings a new suit in a compeiautt in India based on a final
judgment that has been obtained in the United §t&ection 13 of the Civil Code provides that theeiign judgment will be conclusive as
certain matters. The suit must be brought in Indtain three years of the date of the foreign judgtn It is unlikely, however, that a court in
India would award damages on the same basis asrhicdhe United States if an action is broughindia. It is also unlikely that an Indian
court would enforce judgments obtained in the Uhi¢ates if it viewed the amount of damages awaadeskcessive or inconsistent with
Indian practice.
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ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

ITEM 2. Properties.

Our corporate headquarters is located in New YNEy York. We operate twelve operations centersidid, Philippines, the Czech
Republic and the U.S., with a current installedacdy of approximately 7,554 agent workstationg thizerate on an uninterrupted 24/7 basis
and are available to be staffed on a three-shéfisb®ur networking and telecommunication hubda@rated in Sunnyvale, California and in
New York, New York. Out of our ten operations cest@ India, we own an area representing 86,361t .sgnd containing 1,141 age
workstations in our operations center in Pune,dnWie lease all of our other properties. The follmtable describes each of our material
properties and lease expiration dates as of DeceBih@009. We do not have the option under ousqarelease agreements for these prop:

to buy the properties should we desire to do so.

Facility

Corporate Headquarters

U.S. Operations and Administration

Operations Center |

Operations Center
Operations Center |
Operations Center A

Operations Center V
Operations Center VI
Operations Center V

Operations Center VI

Operations Center I.

Operations Center .

Operations Center »

Operations Center XI|

All of our operations centers are equipped witkefibonnectivity and have access to other powercssur

Location

New York,

New York

Jersey City,
New Jerse!

Noida, India

Noida, India
Noida, India
Pune, Indie

Noida, India

Noida, India

Gurgaon, Indie

Gurgaon, Indie

Pasay City
Philippines

Noida, India

Pune, Indic

Olomouc, Czec

Republic

No. of Agent Lease
Space Workstations Expiration
8,650 sq. f N/A  May 30, 2019
20,469 sq. f N/A  February 28, 2014
50,750 sq. f 65€ March 14, 2015 (option to
extend until 2020
39,700 sq. f 485 May 17, 201:
68,800 sq. f 591 May 7, 2011
86,361 sq. f 1,141 Owned
105,000 sq. f 94¢  August 29, 2010 (option to
extend until 2023
100,000 sq. f 108z November 30, 2011 (optic
to extend until 2024
20,628 sq. f 197 July 19, 2011 (option t
extend until 2014
47,874 sq. f 57€ October 31, 201
92,300 sq. f 90C May 13, 2018 (option t
extend until 2028
23,824 sq. f 307 October 31, 2013 (option-
exit commencing November
30, 2009)
44,355 sq. f 50C October 31, 201
20,000 sq. f 167 June 30, 2011 (automatic

renewal every year until
June 30, 201¢

The Company is currently in the process of settipgnew operations centers in Cluj, Romania (whiehter will have approximately
11,000 sq. ft. of space), Noida, India (which cemt#l have approximately 227,000 sq. ft.of spaaeyl Jaipur, India (which center will have
approximately 38,700 sqg. ft. of space). The newatpen centers in Noida and Jaipur are locatediwgpecial economic zones and will ben

from tax holidays for services provided from sugbadtions.
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ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

In the course of our normal business activitiesious lawsuits, claims and proceedings may betirtstl or asserted against us. We
believe that the disposition of matters institubedsserted will not have a material adverse efiaaiur consolidated financial position, results
of operations or cash flows. Please see note b@rteonsolidated financial statements for det&itgarding our tax proceedings.
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PART II.

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Our common stock trades on the Nasdag Global Skladtet under the symbol “EXLS.”

The following table sets forth for the periods tatied the high and low sales prices for sharesio€ommon stock as reported by the
Nasdag Global Select Marki

Price Range

Calendar Period High Low
2008

First Quarte! $25.67  $16.4:
Second Quarte $26.0C $13.8¢
Third Quartel $17.08  $ 7.6(C
Fourth Quarte $92C $4.4c
2009

First Quartel $9.4¢ $5.8¢
Second Quarte $11.4C $ 8.1C
Third Quartel $14.9¢ $ 9.7¢
Fourth Quarte $18.3¢  $13.4:

As of February 26, 2010, there were 29 holdergodrrd of our outstanding common stock.

We have not paid or declared any cash dividendsuomommon stock. We currently expect to retairoathur earnings for use in
developing our business and do not anticipate gegity cash dividends in the foreseeable futuraurBuwtash dividends, if any, will be paid at
the discretion of our board of directors and wdpénd, among other things, upon our future opersitamd earnings, capital requirements and
surplus, general financial condition, contractesitrictions and such other factors as our boadire€tors may deem relevant.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During the three months ended December 31, 2089Ct&mpany did not acquire any shares of commolik $tom employees in
connection with withholding tax payments relatedhe vesting of restricted stock During the yeatezhDecember 31, 2009, the Company
acquired 4,329 shares of common stock from empkireeonnection with withholding tax payments rethto the vesting of restricted stock
for a total consideration of $39. The purchaseguot$9.08 per share was the average of the hidhcanprice of the Company’s shares of
common stock on the Nasdaq Global Select Mark¢hertrading day prior to the vesting date of thareh of restricted stock. These shares are
held as treasury stock.

During the three months ended December 31, 20@3Cthmpany did not purchase any shares of its constumk as part of its previous
announced share repurchase program. During theeyel®d December 31, 2009, the Company purchas2dl Skéres of its common stock for
an aggregate purchase price of approximately $34uding commissions, representing an average jpsechrice per share of $6.11. These
shares were purchased as part of the share regerphagram that authorized the purchase of up @090 of the Company’s outstanding
common stock on or prior to November 2009. Repwsetiashares have been recorded as treasury shdredlldre held until the Company’s
board of directors designates that these sharestibed or used for other purposes.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of Ded®er 31, 2009 with respect to the shares of oumeomstock that may be issued
under our existing equity compensation plans. We liee following equity
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compensation plans, each of which has been appimyvedr stockholders: (1) our 2003 Stock OptiomP(&) our 2003 India Stock Employee
Option Plan and (3) our 2006 Omnibus Award Planol(iding two India sub plans thereunder). For a dgson of each of our equity
compensation plans, please see note 13 to our lgdatsal financial statements.

Number of Securities Weighted
Average Exercist Number of Securities
to be Issued Upon Available for Future
Exercise/Vesting of Price of Issuance Under Equity
Outstanding Outstanding
Plan Category Equity Awards Options Compensation Plans
Equity compensation plans that have been approyed b
security holder: 3,595,87! $ 11.52 4,211,27.
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders — — —
Total 3,595,87! $ 11.5Z 4,211,27.

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative totatkholder return on our common stock with the clative total return of the Nasd.
100 Index (capitalization weighted), our peer grofisompanies for the period beginning October2B6. Our peer group of companies is
comprised of two companies that we believe arectmgest reporting issuer competitors: WNS and Gemngée returns of the component
entities of our peer group index are weighted atiogrto the market capitalization of each entity&the beginning of each period for which a
return is presented. The stock performance showthegraph below is not indicative of future prperformance.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Date

The following table sets forth our selected cordald historical financial data as of the datesfanthe periods indicated. Our selected
consolidated financial data set forth below as e€&mber 31, 2009 and 2008 and for each of the yle@es in the period ended December 31,
2009 has been derived from our consolidated firmstatements included elsewhere in this AnnualoRem Form 10-K. Our selected
consolidated financial data set forth below as e€@mber 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 and for each gfethies ended December 31, 2006 and
2005 are derived from our audited financial statetsiewvhich are not included in this Annual RepartForm 10-K. Our selected consolidated
financial information for 2009, 2008 and 2007 slibioé read in conjunction with our consolidated fiicial statements and the notes theretc
“ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis afaficial Condition and Results of Operations” whach included elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31

2005
2009 2008 2007 2006 (Unaudited)
(in millions, except share and per share date

Consolidated Statement o

Operations Data:
Total revenues(l $ 191.( $ 181.7 $ 152.( $ 98.1 $ 54.2
Cost of revenues (exclusive of

depreciation and amortization)( 109./ 112.¢ 100.1 62.€ 38.1
Gross profil 81.€ 69.2 51.¢ 36.1 16.1
Selling, general and administrati

expenses(Z 45.¢ 42.4 37.¢ 23.4 14.2
Depreciation and amortization

expenses(4 11.4 11.2 9.2 7.1 4.C
Income/(loss) from continuin

operations 24.L 15.7 4.8 5.6 (2.2
Total other income (expens (4.9 (5.9 11.¢ 0.8 0.4
Income/(loss) from continuin

operations before income tax 19.5 9.8 16.€ 6.4 2.7
Income tax provision/(benefi 3.7 (1.9 (1.0 (0.9 3.C
Income from continuing operatiol 15.¢ 11.1 17.€ 6.7 1.3
Income/(loss) from discontinue

operations, net of tax¢ (0.7) 3.3 9.4 7.3 5.7
Net income 15.7 14.4 27.C 14.C 7.C
Dividend and accretion to preferred

stock — — — (0.6) (0.2)
Net income to common stockhold $ 15.7 $ 14.4 $ 27.C $ 13.4 $ 6.8
Earnings per shar
Basic:
Continuing operation $ 0.5t $ 0.3¢ $ 0.6Z $ 0.21 $ 0.0t
Discontinued operatior $ — $ 0.11 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.32Z $ 0.27
Diluted:
Continuing operation $ 0.54 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.6(¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.0t
Discontinued operatior $ — $ 0.11 $ 0.3Z $ 0.3Z $ 0.2i
Weighted average number of comn

shares outstandir
Basic 28,963,77 28,811,04 28,480,03 22,863,53 21,174,54
Diluted 29,417,91 29,212,04 29,191,19 23,033,26 21,591,02
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At December 31,

2006 2005

2009 2008 2007 (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(in millions)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Date

Cash and cash equivale $132.2 $112.2 $101.¢ $ 84 $ 23¢

Working capital(5] 143.2 118.¢ 119.¢ 85.C 24.C

Total asset 249.€ 212.( 218.¢ 169.2 63.€

Other long term obligations(t 5.6 0.2 0.2 0.2 5.8

Preferred stock (liquidation preferent — — — — 6.2

Stockholder’ equity 205.7 171.3 174.( 127.2 30.¢

(1)
(@)

3)

(4)

(5)
(6)

Revenues include reimbursable expenses of $9.®miti 2009, $11.8 million in 2008, $7.1 million #8007, $4.4 million in 2006 ar
$2.7 million in 2005. Revenues also include con-termination fee of $5.1 million in 2009 and $0.4lion in 2008.

Cost of revenues for the years ended Decenmhe2@9, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 include $1.4amjl$1.1 million, $1.1 million, $0.5
million and $0, respectively, as non-cash amoiitivadf stock compensation expense relating toghednce of equity awards to
employees directly involved in providing serviceour clients

SG&A expenses for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 include $5.7 millich2%nillion, $3.2 million, $1.:
million and $0.1 million respectively, as non-cashortization of stock compensation expense reldtirtge issuance of equity awards to
our nor-operations stafi

Depreciation and amortization for the years endeddinber 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 inslf@e million, $0.5 million
$1.6 million, $1.2 million and $0, respectively,amortization of intangible:

Working capital means total current assets mintad tmrrent liabilities
Other lon-term obligations include senior lo-term debt“ASC No. 74+-10" reserves and capital leas

36



Table of Contents

ITEM 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

You should read the following discussion in conioactvith our consolidated financial statements dinel related notes included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Sofithe statements in the following discussion are&rd looking statements. See “—
Forward looking statemen”

Overview

We are a leading provider of outsourcing and tramsétion services focused on providing a competiédge to our clients by
outsourcing and transforming their business pra=e<3ur outsourcing services provide integratedtfraniddle- and back-office process
outsourcing services for our principally U.S.-based U.K.-based clients. Outsourcing services wevdhe transfer to us of select business
operations of a client, such as claims process$ingnce and accounting and customer service, attiérh we administer and manage the
operations for our client on an ongoing basis. l8e affer a number of transformation services thelude decision analytics, risk and
financial management and operations and procesdlence services. These transformation servicgs dl clients improve their operating
environments through cost reduction, enhancedieffdy and productivity initiatives, and improve tligk and control environments within our
clients’ operations whether or not they are outsedrto us. A significant portion of our businedates to processes that we believe are integra
to our clients’ operations, and the close natureusfrelationships with our clients assists usemedoping strong strategic long-term
relationships with them. We serve primarily thedeef Global 1000 companies in the insurance tieslj banking and financial services and
transportation and logistics sectors.

We market our services directly through our safebrmarketing and strategic account management tegish operate out of the Unit
States and the United Kingdom, and our businessldpment team, which operates out of Noida, India.currently operate ten operations
centers in India, one operations center in theifffiles and one operations center in the Czech IitieptVe are also in the process of
establishing new operations centers in Cluj, Rommanid Noida and Jaipur, India.

On July 3, 2009, we acquired a 100% stake in Sdené&.R.O. which is located in the Czech Republit\ahich provides complex
transaction processing services to its clientsuirofe and the U.S. The acquisition provided us withti-lingual delivery capabilities and a
cost-effective delivery location in Eastern Europe.

On November 4, 2009, we entered into an asset psechgreement with American Express pursuant tohwhaé acquired the operations
of the American Express Global Travel Service Cemtédusiness unit of American Express locatedung&on, India, that provides the travel-
related business process outsourcing services @friéan Express. American Express is an existirenthhf the Company. The purchase price
of the transaction is approximately $29 millionbgct to certain post-closing adjustments. Thes@ation closed on March 1, 2010.

On August 11, 2008, the Company completed theafadd of its shares of Noida Customer Operatiorigd®e Limited (“NCOP’) to
Aviva Global Services Singapore Pte Ltd. For al fleriods presented, NCOP is reported as a diseratioperation and any discussion
throughout this Management’s Discussion and Analg§iFinancial Condition and Results of Operatiand consolidated financial statements
relates to continuing operations unless otherwidecated.

Revenues

We generate revenues principally from contracisréwide outsourcing and transformation services.the year ended December 31,
2009, we had total revenues of $191.0 million coragdo total revenues of $181.7 million in 2008,merease of $9.3 million or 5.1%.
Revenues from outsourcing services were higherll3y8million in 2009 when compared to 2008, prittyadiue to volume increases within
existing clients of approximately $12.5 millioncedpt of a contract termination fee of $5.1 millisavenues of $4.2 million from new clients,
including the acquisition of Schneider S.R.O., \Whhiocreases were partially offset by a $7.9 million
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reduction due to the appreciation of the U.S. dalzainst the U.K. pound sterling. Revenues frangformation services were lower by $4.5
million in 2009 when compared to 2008, primarilyedo lower client discretionary spending arising @ithe continuing broalased weakne
in the economy and the effect of appreciation eftthS. dollar against the U.K. pound sterling.

We anticipate that our revenues will grow as weaxpour service offerings and client base, bottawigally and through acquisitions.
We provide our clients with a range of outsourcegvices, including insurance services, bankingfarahcial services, utilities support
services, finance and accounting services, anéat@h services. Our clients transfer the managémrah execution of their processes or
business functions to us. As part of this transferhire and train employees to work at our operaticenters on the relevant outsourcing
services, implement a process migration to theseatipns centers and then provide services eithtret client or directly to the client’s
customers. Each client contract has different tdyased on the scope, deliverables and complexitiyeoéngagement. The outsourcing services
we provide to any of our clients (particularly under general framework agreements), and the reageand income that we derive from those
services, may decline or vary as the type and gyaftservices we provide under those contractsge over time, including as a result of a
shift in the mix of products and services we previd

For outsourcing services, we enter into long-tegreaments with our clients with initial terms ramgifrom three to five years. Although
these agreements provide us with a relatively ptabie revenue base for a substantial portion obasiness, the long selling cycle for our
outsourcing services and the budget and approwakpses of prospective clients make it difficulptedict the timing of new client
acquisitions. Revenues under new client contrdsts\ary depending on when we complete the setlirdde and the implementation phase.

Our transformation services include various ses/migch as decision analytics services, which dgeaded to facilitate more effective
data-based strategic and operating decisions bgliauts, risk and financial management servicesaperations and process excellence
services.

Our transformation services can be significantfeeted by variations in business cycles. In addjtmur transformation services consist
primarily of specific projects with contract terrgenerally not exceeding one year and may not peduagoing or recurring business for us
once the project is completed. These contractsuedsally contain provisions permitting terminatiwinthe contract after a short notice period.
The short-term nature and specificity of thesegatsj could lead to further material fluctuationd ancertainties in the revenues generated
from these businesses.

We serve clients mainly in the United States arddhited Kingdom, with these two regions generatipgroximately 63.8% and 33.9%,
respectively, of our total revenues for the yeateghDecember 31, 2009 and approximately 56.4% ar&¥4, respectively, of our total
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2008.

In both the United States and the United Kingddrare has been recent negative publicity and praplesgslation with regard to
outsourcing. See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Reldb Our Business—Our industry may not developags that we currently anticipate
due to negative public reaction in the United Stated elsewhere to offshore outsourcing, recemtdpgsed legislation or otherwise.” If these
trends continue and result in the enactment oftimadil legislation for which we are unable to cawctually protect ourselves, our revenues
could be materially affected. With the recent glalsmnomic downturn and resulting increases in ypleyment in both of these countries, we
expect these publicity and legislative trends totitme and possibly intensify. Our management abtimonitors legislative activities in the
United States and United Kingdom, both directly #mdugh industry organizations. However, if legign were enacted in the United States
or the United Kingdom that has the effect of selyecartailing our activities in such countriesjdtunlikely that we would be able to quickly
replace such lost revenues.
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We derive a significant portion of our revenuesrira limited number of large clients. In the yearded December 31, 2009 and 2008,
our total revenues from our two largest clientsev84.3 million and $61.7 million, respectivelycaanting for 33.7% and 34.0% of our total
revenues, respectively, during these periods.

We provide services to Centrica, which represefi@di2 million, or 20.5%, of our total revenues ttoe year ended December 31, 2009
and $42.4 million, or 23.3% of our total revenuessthe year ended December 31, 2008, under anragreehat is scheduled to expire in April
2012. Centrica may terminate the agreement witbause upon three months prior notice and paymeaboéakup fee.

We provide services to Travelers, which represefiiil million, or 13.2%, of our total revenues fioe year ended December 31, 2009
and $12.4 million, or 6.8% of our total revenuestfe year ended December 31, 2008, under a ssragreement. Travelers may terminate
services agreement, or any work assignment or watér thereunder, each of which expires in Decerb&B, without cause upon 60 days
prior notice.

We derived revenues from nineteen and twehtge new clients for our services, including sansformation services, in the years er
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Althauglare increasing and diversifying our customeebag expect in the near future that a
significant portion of our revenues will continuelie contributed by a limited number of large disen

Revenues also include amounts representing reirablerexpenses that are billed to and reimbursealibglients and typically include
telecommunication and travel-related costs. Thewarhof reimbursable expenses that we incur, andeswylting revenues, can vary
significantly from period to period depending orlealient’s situation and on the type of servicesvjged. For the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008, 5.0% and 6.5%, respectively, ofevenues represent reimbursement of such expenses.

To the extent our client contracts do not contaovisions to the contrary, we bear the risk ofatiin and fluctuations in currency
exchange rates with respect to our contracts. Vilgdna substantial portion of our Indian rupee/dd@lar and U.K. pound sterling/U.S. dollar
foreign currency exposure.

Our management has observed in recent perioddtarsimnidustry pricing models toward transactiorséd pricing and other pricing
models. We believe this trend will continue andhage begun to use transaction-based pricing medtissome of our current clients and are
seeking to move certain other clients from a lgllrate model to a transaction-based pricing mddahsaction-based pricing places the focus
on operating efficiency in order to maintain oueoating margins.

In addition, we have also observed that prospeddinger clients are entering into multi-vendor tielaships with regard to their
outsourcing needs. We believe that the trend towarlti-vendor relationships will continue. A muitendor relationship allows a client to seek
more client-friendly pricing and other contractnarfrom each vendor, which can result in signiftiareduced operating margins from the
provision of services to such client for each vendo the extent our large clients expand theirafsaulti-vendor relationships and are able to
extract more favorable contract terms from otherdegs, our operating margins and revenues mayceeel with regard to such clients to the
extent we are required to modify the terms of @lationship with such clients.

Expenses
Cost of Revenues
Our cost of revenues primarily consists of:

. employee costs, which include salary, retention@hdr compensation expenses; recruitment andrigagosts; no-cash
amortization of stock compensation expense; anetlireg and lodging costs; at
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. costs relating to our facilities and communicatioeswvork, which include telecommunication and I'Btsp facilities and custom
management support; operational expenses for daoorcing centers; and rent expen:

The most significant components of our cost of nexs is employee compensation, recruitment, trgiaird retention. Salary levels in
India, employee turnover rates and our abilityffwiently manage and utilize our employees sigréfitly affect our cost of revenues. Salary
increases are generally awarded each year effe&fiviel. Accordingly, employee costs are generédlyer in the first quarter of each year
compared to the rest of the year. We make eveoytdfi manage employee and capacity utilization @minuously monitor service levels and
staffing requirements. Although we generally hagerbable to reallocate our employees as client déras fluctuated, a contract termination
or significant reduction in work assigned to usaayajor client could cause us to experience a hitffa-expected number of unassigned
employees, which would increase our cost of revemsea percentage of revenues until we are albéltee or reallocate our headcount. A
significant increase in the turnover rate amongesaployees in India, particularly among the higsijlled workforce needed to execute
outsourcing services, would increase our recruiding training costs and decrease our operatingeifiy, productivity and profit margins. In
addition, cost of revenues also includes a non-aasbrtization of stock compensation expense redtrour issuance of equity awards to
employees directly involved in providing servicesour clients.

We expect our cost of revenues to continue to agges we continue to add professionals in Indé&Philippines and the United States
to service additional business and as wages cantmincrease in India. In particular, we expeaining costs to continue to increase as we
continue to add staff to service new clients. Theggnificant competition for professionals witkills necessary to perform the services we
offer to our clients. As our existing competitomstinue to grow, and as new competitors enter taeket, we expect competition for skilled
professionals in each of these areas to continuetease, with corresponding increases in our @ostvenues to reflect increased
compensation levels for such professionals. We etpect our cost of revenues to increase due tdoge turnover resulting in higher
recruitment and training costs. See Item 1A—"Riskters—Employee wage increases may prevent ussustaining our competitive
advantage and may reduce our profit margin.”

Cost of revenues is also affected by our longrsghiycle and implementation period for our outsmgeervices, which require
significant commitments of capital, resources amethy both our clients and us. Before committiogise our services, potential clients rec
us to expend substantial time and resources edgddem as to the value of our services and asgptis feasibility of integrating our systems
and processes with theirs. In addition, once aatkegages us in a new contract, our cost of reaemay represent a higher percentage of
revenues until the implementation phase for thatreat, generally three to four months, is complete

We also expect cost of revenues to increase wheaddi@ew operations centers due to increaseseicai@munication, rent expenses and
other facilities operating costs. As we increageamount of physical infrastructure available tdfgren our operations, we expect that
utilization will decrease and this will have a ni#ggaimpact on our operating margin.

SG&A Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses are coatpatexpenses relating to salaries of senior memagt and other support personnel,
legal and other professional fees, telecommuninatiatilities and other miscellaneous administeatiosts. Selling and marketing expenses
primarily consist of salaries of sales and marlgetind strategic account management personnelt oiiltionship management, travel and
brand building. We expect that sales and markegipgenses will continue to increase as we investiirfront-end sales and strategic account
management functions to better serve our clients.al§o expect our costs to increase as we contiinsteengthen our back-end support and
enabling functions and invest in leadership devalept,
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performance management and training programs. S&g§enses also include non-cash amortization okstompensation expense related to
our issuance of equity awards to senior managemmearhbers of our board of directors and advisorydhaather support personnel and
consultants.

Depreciation and Amortizatio

Depreciation and amortization pertains to depremieind amortization of our tangible assets, inicigchetwork equipment, cabling,
computers, office furniture and equipment, motdrigies and leasehold improvements and intangitdetasAmortization of intangible assets
acquired is part of depreciation and amortizatismwe add facilities, including our three new opierss center in Cluj Romania, Noida, India
and Jaipur, India, we expect that depreciation eseavill increase, reflecting additional investngeintequipment such as desktop computers,
servers and other infrastructure.

Foreign Exchange
Exchange Rate

We report our financial results in U.S. dollars ansubstantial portion of our total revenues isiediin U.K. pounds sterling.
Accordingly, our results of operations are advegrsdiected if the U.K. pound sterling depreciatgaiast the U.S. dollar. Although
substantially all of our revenues are denominated.5. dollars or U.K. pounds sterling (63.8% aB®d%6, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2009 as compared to 56.4% and 42e&fectively, for the year ended December 31, 20083t of our expenses were incurred
and paid in Indian rupees and the Philippine p83ald and 6.0%, respectively, in the year endeceBder 31, 2009 as compared to 62.5%
and 2.9%, respectively, in the year ended Dece@be?008). The exchange rates among the Indiarerdpe U.K. pound sterling and the U
dollar have changed substantially in recent yeadsmaay fluctuate in the future. The results of operations could be substantially impacte:
the Indian rupee appreciates or depreciates aghm&l.S. dollar or the U.K. pound sterling. Seter@ and 7 to our consolidated financial
statements and Item 7A—"Quantitative and Qualiaisclosures about Market Risk—Foreign CurrenskRi

Currency Regulation

According to the prevailing foreign exchange regalss in India, an exporter of outsourcing servites is registered with a software
technology park or an export processing zone imlrglich as our Indian subsidiaries in India, (pined to realize its export proceeds within a
period of 12 months from the date of exports. Sinhyjl in the event that such exporter has receargdadvance against exports in foreign
exchange from its overseas customers, it will tawvender the requisite services so that the adsasac received are earned within a period of
12 months. If those subsidiaries in India did neeftrthese conditions, they would be required taialjgermission to export foreign currency
from the Reserve Bank of India.

Income Taxes

The fiscal year under the Indian Income Tax Actseond March 31. Certain facilities leased by the @any’s Indian subsidiaries qualify
for an exemption from corporate tax under secti@A ar 10B of the Indian Income Tax Act. This exefoptis available for a period of ten
consecutive years beginning with the financial yieawhich the facility begins to manufacture or gwoe eligible goods and services. During
the year ended December 31, 2009, the Indian gmemheffected further amendments to the Indianrmedax Act and extended the tax
holiday for eligible units to March 31, 2011. Aftilre expiration of the tax holiday period for soaféhe facilities leased by the Company’s
Indian subsidiaries on April 1, 2010, any profiengrated from the services provided from suchifeslwill be fully taxable. As a result of the
expiration of the tax holiday period during 2010Qr tax expense will materially increase in andra?@10.

We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilitiesgfmporary differences between the financial stat@ carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective taxebasnd operating loss carry forwards. We deterihim&aluation allowance is required or not on
the basis of an assessment of whether it is mkedylthan not that a deferred tax asset will béized.

41



Table of Contents

In May 2007, the Government of India adopted thian Finance Act, 2007, that imposed MAT on Indiampanies that benefit from a
tax holiday with effect from April 1, 2007. Any MAPaid by us can be used as a credit against caepim@ome taxes payable by us after
expiry of the tax holiday for up to ten years, gabjto the satisfaction of certain conditions. ¢de@dance with ASC No. 740, a deferred tax
asset of $4.3 million has been recognized as oeBéer 31, 2009.

Ex| Philippines, our subsidiary that conducts opemtions in the Philippines, enjoys a four yeapme tax holiday extendable up to six
years beginning April 2008, the date of commencdronperations. The income tax holiday is subjectalidation by the Philippine
Economic Zone Authority based on certain minimurestments. If Exl Philippines does not attain thguired investments it will not qualify
for the income tax holiday and will be subject t6% gross income tax.

The Company is currently in the process of esthisiggnew operations centers in Noida and JaipualialnThese new operations centers
are located within special economic zones andhweifiefit from tax holidays for services providednfreuch locations.

U.S. and Indian transfer pricing regulations regtiirat any international transaction involving &ssted enterprises be at an arm’s-length
price. Transactions among the Company’s subsidiame the Company may be required to satisfy seghirements. Accordingly, the
Company determines the pricing among its associtétprises on the basis of detailed functiondlesonomic analysis involving
benchmarking against transactions among entitegsatte not under common control. The tax autharitive jurisdiction to review this
arrangement and in the event that they determitetie transfer price applied was not appropriag Company may incur increased tax
liability, including accrued interest and penalti€ee Company is currently involved in disputeshwtie Indian tax authorities over the
application of some of its transfer pricing pol&eier past years aggregating to approximately $&8l@on. The Company has already
deposited $7.8 million against the amounts demanded

Amount Amount
Entity Tax Year Issue Demanded Deposited

Exl India 2003-04 The assessment order alleges that the transfer weapplied to transactions betwt  $ 2.1 million $ 2.1 millior
EXL India and EXL Inc. in the 2003-04 tax year we appropriate and also disallo
certain expenses claimed as tax deductible by Exial

Exl India 2004-05 The assessment order alleges that the transfer weapplied to transactions betwt  $ 2.0 million $ 2.0 million
EXL India and EXL Inc. for the 2004-05 tax year wa appropriate and also
disallows certain expenses claimed as tax dedediplEXL India.

Exl India 200%-06 The assessment order alleges that the transfer weapplied to transactions betwt  $ 5.2 million $ 1.6 million
EXL India and EXL Inc. for the 2005-06 tax year wax appropriate and also
disallows certain expenses claimed as tax dedediplEXL India.

Exl Inc. 200:-04 The assessment order alleges that EXL Inc. hasnagment establishment in Ind $ 3.2 million $ 1.7 million
Exl Inc. 2004-05 The assessment order alleges that EXL Inc. hasnagment establishment in Ind $ 0.1 million $ —
Exl Inc. 2005-06 The assessment order alleges that EXL Inc. hasnagpent establishment in Ind $ 0.7 million  $ 0.4 million

Based on advice from our Indian tax advisors, #uotsfunderlying our position and our experiencé wiese types of assessments, we
continue to believe that the probability of lossemote and have not accrued any amount with réspdéitese matters in our consolidated
financial statements. Any amount paid by us as sigpwill be refunded to us with interest if we saed in our appeals with the appropriate tax
authorities. We cannot assure you that our appéhlbe successful or that these appeals will balfy resolved in the near future. Please see
note 16 to our consolidated financial statementsi&ails. There is a likelihood that we might rigeesimilar orders for other years until the
above disputes are resolved. We are subject toikk8me taxes on the profits we recognize in thaéddnStates.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial caodiand results of operations are based upon tiaedial statements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, which have been prephire&accordance with U.S. GAAP. The notes to oursotidated financial statements
contain a summary of our significant accountingges. We consider the policies discussed belobetaritical to an understanding of our
consolidated financial statements, as their apjitingplaces the most significant demands on managémjudgment regarding matters that are
inherently uncertain. These policies include reweracognition, estimating tax liabilities, stocksbd compensation, goodwill, intangibles and
long-lived assets, derivative instruments and gemnplan liabilities. These accounting policies #mel associated risks are set out below. Future
events may not develop exactly as forecast, amha&sts routinely require adjustment.

Revenue Recognitio

The Company derives its revenues from outsourambteansformation services. Revenues from outsogreervices are recognized
primarily on a time-and-material, cost-plus or ywiiced basis; revenues from transformation sesvare recognized primarily on a time-and-
material, fixed price or contingent fee basis. Shevices provided within our contracts generallgtam one unit of accounting. Revenue is
recognized under our contracts generally when psige evidence of an arrangement exists, the palasis fixed or determinable and
collection of amounts billed is reasonably assured.

Revenue is recognized on time-and-material corgnaémarily on the basis of full time equivalent@oyees, including direct and
indirect costs, incurred on a client contract. Remgeis recognized on cost-plus contracts on this lsdgontractually agreed direct and indirect
costs incurred on a client contract plus an agegexh profit mark-up. Revenue is recognized on prite based contracts based on the number
of specified units of work (such as the number-aial responses) delivered to a client. Such reveaue recognized as the related service
provided in accordance with the client contract.eWVlthe terms of the client contract specify serlésel parameters that must be met (such as
turnaround time or accuracy), we monitor such serlevel parameters to determine if any servicditg®r penalties have been incurred.
Revenue is recognized net of any service crediiisate due to a client. We have experienced mingmalice credits and penalties to date.

Revenue is recognized on fixgdice contracts using the proportional performameghod. We estimate the proportional performance
contract by comparing the actual number of hourdays worked to date to the estimated total nurabbours or days required to complete
each engagement. The use of the proportional pedioce method requires significant judgment relativestimating the number of hours or
days required to complete the contracted scopeodf vincluding assumptions and estimates relativia¢ length of time to complete the
project and the nature and complexity of the worké performed. We regularly monitor our estimédesompletion of a project and record
changes in the period in which a change in an eséins determined. If a change in an estimate tesuh projected loss on a project, such loss
is recognized in the period in which it is firsertified.

Revenue on contingent fee based contracts is rezbwhen the related contingency has been mégtaclient’s satisfaction.

The Company accrues for revenue and receivablesefgices rendered between the last billing datetlae balance sheet date.
Accordingly, our accounts receivable include amsdat services that we have performed and for whitlnvoice has not yet been issued to
the client. These are included in accounts recégvaib our consolidated balance sheet and the amaunatdisclosed in the notes to our
consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill, intangible assets and long-lived assets

Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) topic 83ysiness Combinations{ASC No. 805), requires that the purchase method of
accounting be used for all business combinatiohs.guidance specifies criteria as
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to intangible assets acquired in a business cortibimthat must be recognized and reported sepgriteh goodwill. In accordance with ASC
topic 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other{ASC No. 350), all assets and liabilities of thg@iced businesses including goodwill are
assigned to reporting units. We evaluate goodwilifpairment at least annually, or as circumstamnearrant. When determining the fair va

of our reporting units, we utilize various assurps, including projections of future cash flows.yfadverse changes in key assumptions abou
our businesses and their prospects or an adveasgelin market conditions may cause a change iagtimation of fair value and could result
in an impairment charge.

We review long-lived assets and certain identifiaibtangibles for impairment whenever events ongea in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recbiertn general, we will recognize an impairmersslevhen the sum of undiscounted
expected future cash flows is less than the cagrgimount of such asset. The estimate of undiscdwateh flows and the fair value of assets
require several assumptions and estimates likevéighted average cost of capital, discount raieksfree rates, market rate of return and risk
premiums and can be affected by a variety of factocluding external factors such as industry es@homic trends, and internal factors such
as changes in our business strategy and our ihfemeaasts. Although we believe the historicalumsptions and estimates we have made are
reasonable and appropriate, different assumptindsatimates could materially impact our reportedrfcial results.

Stock-based Compensation

Under the fair value recognition provisions of AgQPic 718,“Compensation—Stock Compensatigli®SC No. 718), cost is measured at
the grant date, based on the fair value of the daad is amortized on a straight-line basis overéguisite service periods of the awards,
which is generally the vesting periods. Determirtimg fair value of stock-based awards at the gitate requires significant judgment,
including estimating the expected term over whiwhdtock awards will be outstanding before theyeamrcised, the expected volatility of our
stock and the number of stock-based awards thabgrected to be forfeited. In order to determireedhtimated period of time that we expect
employees to hold their shabased options, we have used data on the histexeatise pattern of employees. We use the histaradatility of
our common stock and the volatility of stocks of oamparative companies in order to estimate fushiare price trends. We use historical
to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures and rd@tock-based compensation expense only for thaseds that are expected to vest. The risk-
free interest rate that we use in the option vaaanodel is based on U.S. treasury zero-coupoddwaiith a remaining term similar to the
expected term of the options. We do not anticipatgng any cash dividends in the foreseeable fiancetherefore use an expected dividend
yield of zero in the option valuation model. If taetual forfeiture rate differs significantly froour estimates, our stc-based compensation
expense and our results of operations could berralliyempacted.

Derivative Instruments and hedging activitit

In the normal course of business, we actively ltwknitigate the exposure of foreign currency marisit by entering into various
hedging instruments, authorized under Company igslievith counterparties that are highly ratedriicial institutions. Our primary exchange
rate exposure is to U.K. pound sterling and thealmdupee. We use derivative instruments for thp@se of mitigating the underlying
exposure from foreign currency fluctuation risksasated with forecasted transactions denominateertain foreign currencies and to
minimize earnings and cash flow volatility assoethtvith the changes in foreign currency exchantgsrand not for speculative trading
purposes.
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We hedge anticipated transactions that are sutgdoteign exchange exposure with foreign curreexghange contracts that are
designated effective and that qualify as cash tiedges under ASC topic 815D¢€rivatives and Hedging(ASC No. 815). Changes in the fair
value of these cash flow hedges which are deenfedtiek, are deferred and recorded as a compotiemicomulated other comprehensive
income/(loss), net of tax (AOCI) until the hedgeahsactions occur and are then recognized in theotidated statements of income. Changes
in the fair value of cash flow hedges deemed irtiffe are recognized in the consolidated statemkimcome and are included in foreign
exchange gain/(loss).

We also use derivatives consisting of foreign auryeexchange contracts not designated as hedgitgiinents under ASC No. 815 to
hedge intercompany balances and other monetarisassiéabilities denominated in currencies othert the functional currency. Changes in
the fair value of these derivatives are recognindtie consolidated statements of income and ataded in foreign exchange gain/(loss).

We value our derivatives based on market obseniaplés including both forward and spot pricesdorrencies. Derivative assets and
liabilities included in Level 2 primarily represeforeign currency forward contracts. The quotestaken primarily from highly rated financial
institutions.

We evaluate hedge effectiveness at the time aarir entered into as well as on an ongoing bHsisiring this time, a contract is
deemed ineffective, the change in the fair valued®rded in the consolidated statements of incanakeis included in foreign exchange gain/
(loss). For hedge relationships that are discoetinbecause the forecasted transaction is not eegoezbccur by the end of the originally
specified period, any related derivative amountsmeed in equity are reclassified to earnings.

Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing our consoliifiteancial statements, we estimate our incomestéxeach of the jurisdictions in
which we operate. Tax estimates include decisieganding the timing and amount of deductions aedatlocation of income among various
tax jurisdictions. Based on our evaluation of @x position, we believe we have adequately accimegrobable exposures as of Decembet
2009. To the extent we are able to prevail in matter which accruals have been established oregyeired to pay amounts in excess of our
reserves, our effective tax rate in a given finahsfatement period may be materially impacted.

We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilitie$ufture tax consequences attributable to tempatdfgrences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assetsiabditlies and their respective tax bases and dper¢oss carry forwards. We measure
deferred tax assets and liabilities using enactedates expected to apply to taxable income irydaes in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. We rezeghe effect on deferred tax assets and lialsiliifea change in tax rates in income in the
period that includes the enactment date. We deterihia valuation allowance is required or not loa basis of an assessment of whether it is
more likely than not that a deferred tax assetbélrealized. At December 31, 2009, we performedreatysis of the deferred tax asset
valuation allowance for certain units of our Indgubsidiaries, currently under the tax holiday @e&trend concluded that a valuation allowance
offsetting those deferred tax assets be recordethebasis that it is more likely than not tharéhwill not be future taxable income to realize
the deferred tax assets. We perform this assessahtre end of each reporting period. Please skeelriin the notes to our consolidated
financial statements.

Retirement Benefit:

We provide our employees in India and the Philippiwith benefits under a defined benefit plan, Whie refer to as the Gratuity Plan.
The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment &iactemployees on retirement or on terminatiomgfleyment in an amount based on the
respective employee’s salary and years of employmigh us. We determine our liability under the Giity Plan by actuarial valuation using
the
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projected unit credit method. Under this methoddetermine our liability based upon the discounaldie of salary increases until the date of
separation arising from retirement, death, resignair other termination of services. Critical asgtions used in measuring the plan expense
and projected liability under the projected unidit method include the discount rate, expectadrmein assets and the expected increase in th
compensation rates. We evaluate these criticahgsisons at least annually. If actual results digmnificantly from our estimates, our gratuity
expense and our results of operations could beriayampacted.

Results of Operations
The following table summarizes our results of opiers:

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
(in million)

Total revenues(1 $191.C $181.% $152.(
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation andréiration)(2) 109.¢ 112.¢ 100.7
Gross profil 81.€ 69.2 51.¢
Operating expense

General and administrative expense! 31.¢ 31.1 28.1

Selling and marketing expenses 13.¢ 11.c 9.2

Depreciation and amortization expense:! 11.4 11.2 9.2
Total operating expens: 57.2 53.€ 47.1
Income from continuing operatiol 24.4 15.7 4.8
Other income/(expense

Foreign exchange gain/(los (5.9 (9.9 7.t

Interest and other incon 1.C 3.5 4.3
Income from continuing operations before incomess 19.5 9.8 16.€
Income tax provision/(benefi 3.7 (1.9 (1.0
Income from continuing operatiol 15.¢ 11.1 17.€
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, nebgés (0.7 3.3 9.4
Net income $ 15.7 $ 14.4 $ 27.C

(1) Revenues include reimbursable expenses ofrBlién in 2009, $11.8 million in 2008 and $7.1 fiwh in 2007. Revenues also include
contract termination fees of $5.1 million in 2008e$0.4 million in 2008

(2) Cost of revenues includes $1.4 million, $1.1 milend $1.1 for the years ended December 31, 2@@8B &nd 2007, respectively, as -
cash amortization of stock compensation expensginglto the issuance of equity awards to emplog@estly involved in providing
services to our clients as described in note I8itcconsolidated financial statemer

(3) General and administrative expenses and sdlmgmarketing expenses include $5.7 million, $dillon and $3.2 million for the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respsgtasehon-cash amortization of stock compensatipemse relating to the issuance
of equity awards to our n-operations staff as described in note 13 to ousalistated financial statemen

(4) Depreciation and amortization includes $0.2 millif.5 million and $1.6 million for the years end2ecember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2(
respectively, of amortization of intangibles asalié®ed in note 5 to our consolidated financial estagnts
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Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2008

RevenuesRevenues increased 5.1% from $181.7 million forytsar ended December 31, 2008 to $191.0 millioriferyear ended
December 31, 2009. Revenues from outsourcing swreased from $138.8 million during the yeateghDecember 31, 2008 to $152.6
million during the year ended December 31, 200%® iflerease is primarily due to volume increasehiwiéxisting clients and the addition of
approximately 120 processes during 2009 aggreg#difid2.5 million, receipt of a contract terminati@e of $5.1 million, revenues of $4.2
million from new clients, including the acquisitiof Schneider S.R.O., which increases were partadfset by a $7.9 million reduction due to
the appreciation of the U.S. dollar against the .Ua&und sterling.

Revenues from transformation services decreased $42.9 million during the year ended December2BD9 to $38.4 million during tt
year ended December 31, 2008. The decrease inueveprimarily due to reduced client spending merétionary projects in 2009 and $:
million of the reduction is due to the appreciatafrthe U.S. dollar against the U.K. pound sterliRgvenues from new clients for
transformation services were $1.8 million and $8iBion during the year ended December 31, 200920G8B, respectively.

Cost of RevenuesCost of revenues decreased 2.7% from $112.4 miltiothe year ended December 31, 2008 to $109 komilor the
year ended December 31, 2009. Employee costs decré@m $78.4 million for the year ended Decen#igr2008 to $76.1 million for th
year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease isrpyimhae to the depreciation of the Indian rupeaiagt the U.S. dollar, resulting ir
decrease in of $6.2 million and a decrease in eyegldransportation costs of $2.1 million as pawf cost management initiatives. This
decrease is partially offset by an annual incrémsalaries and other related costs of $3.8 miliod costs of $2.2 million related to our new
operations center in Olomouc, the Czech Republisefoperating costs decreased from $34.1 millosrtHe year ended December 31, 2008 to
$33.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2@@@narily due to the depreciation of the Indiapea against the U.S. dollar. As a
percentage of revenues, cost of revenues decréased1.9% for the period ended December 31, 20087t3% for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased 17.8% from $69.3 million floe year ended December 31, 2008 to $81.6 milbothe year ended
December 31, 2009. The increase in gross profitwiasarily due to an increase in revenues of $9I8am and decrease in cost of revenues of
$3.0 million. Gross profit as a percentage of rexenincreased from 38.1% for the year ended Dece®ihe@008 to 42.7% for the year ended
December 31, 2009, primarily due to an improvenoérit60 basis points as a result of the receiptadrgract termination fee, approximately
200 basis points as a result of higher productivitgur outsourcing services and a balance incrdasdo a decrease in cost of revenues, as
mentioned above.

SG&A ExpensesSG&A expenses increased 7.9% from $42.4 milliortheryear ended December 31, 2008 to $45.8 milbothe year
ended December 31, 2009. The increase in SG&A esgeis primarily due to an increase in selling anradketing expenses of $2.6 million ¢
acquisitionrelated transaction costs of $0.5 million. As acpatage of revenues, SG&A increased from 23.4%heyear ended December
2008 to 24.0% for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Depreciation and AmortizationDepreciation and amortization increased 2.2% frdrh.% million for the year ended December 31, 2008
to $11.4 million for the year ended December 3D @rimarily due to an increase in depreciatidatesl to our operations centers in India
Philippines of $1.0 million and $0.2 million reldtéo our new operations center in Olomouc, the 8&epublic. This increase is offset by the
depreciation of the Indian rupee against the UoBad resulting in a decrease in cost of $1.0iomll As we add more operations centers, we
expect that depreciation expense will increasefiect the additional investment in equipment apdrations centers necessary to meet our
service requirements.

Income from Operationsincome from operations increased 55.8% from $15lifomfor the year ended December 31, 2008 to 424.
million for the year ended December 31, 2009. Ag@entage of revenues, income from operationgésed from 8.6% for the year ended
December 31, 2008 to 12.8% for the year ended DieeeB1, 2009. The increase in income from operativas primarily due to an increase
revenues.
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Other Income/(expensePther income/(expense) is comprised of foreign arge gains and losses, interest income, interestnse an
other. Other expenses decreased from $(5.9) miliothe year ended December 31, 2008 to $(4.9)amifor the year ended December 31,
2009 as a result of a decrease in net foreign exghbpsses by $3.4 million attributable to movenwdrihe Indian rupee against the U.S. dollar
and the U.K. pound sterling relative to our foreexthange hedged position. This decrease is panigiset by lower interest income of $2.4
million during the year ended December 31, 200@, tduower interest rates.

Provision for Income TaxesProvision for income taxes increased from a bewéffl.3 million for the year ended December 308
an expense of $3.7 million for the year ended Ddxar1, 2009. The effective rate of taxes has asd significantly from a benefit of 13.7%
for the year ended December 31, 2008 to an expErk® 0% for the year ended December 31, 2009,giiyndue to higher income in the U
and realization of a contract termination fee ofi$sillion. Please see Note 12 to our notes to @lideted financial statements for further
details.

Income/(loss) from Continuing Operationsncome from continuing operations increased frorh. $Imillion for the year ended
December 31, 2008 to $15.8 million for the yearezhBecember 31, 2009, primarily due to increadegher operating income, partially off:
by a higher provision for taxes. As a percentageweénues, income from continuing operations irggddrom 6.1% for the year ended
December 31, 2008 to 8.3% for the year ended Deee3th 2009.

Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2007

RevenuesRevenues increased 19.5% from $152.0 million ferytkar ended December 31, 2007 to $181.7 millioth® year ended
December 31, 2008. The overall increase of $29llfomiwas attributable to an increase of $17.9ionillin outsourcing services and $11.8
million in transformation services and is net afexrease of $6.1 million due to the appreciatiothefU.S. dollar with respect to the U.K.
pound sterling. Revenue increases from new clieetg $0.5 million in outsourcing services and $8iBion in transformation services during
the year ended December 31, 2008. Revenue incrragegxisting clients were attributable to voluinereases within existing processes and
the addition of 91 new processes during 2008.

Cost of RevenuesCost of revenues increased 12.3% from $100.1 mifiiw the year ended December 31, 2007 to $112lbmfor the
year ended December 31, 2008. Salaries and pelssxpenses for the Company increased from $69.8omilor the year ended December
2007 to $78.4 million for the year ended Decemldgr2B08 as a result of an increase in headcounsalady levels. The operating costs related
to our operations centers increased from $17.0anifor the year ended December 31, 2007 to $2@l®mfor the year ended December 31,
2008, primarily reflecting our increased workfoared increased operating capacity. Cost of revedeeased by $5.3 million due to the
depreciation of the Indian rupee with respect ®UhS. dollar. Cost of revenues includes $1.1 amliind $1.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, resplctioe non-cash amortization of stock compensaggpense relating to the issuance of
equity awards to employees directly involved inyidang services to our clients. As a percentagesgénues, cost of revenues decreased from
65.8% for the year ended December 31, 2007 to 6108%he year ended December 31, 2008.

Gross Profit.Gross profit increased 33.4% from $51.9 million flee year ended December 31, 2007 to $69.3 milbothe year ended
December 31, 2008. The increase in gross profitpuiasarily the result of increase in revenue by $28illion, offset by increase in cost of
revenues by $12.3 million. Gross profit as a petaga of revenues increased from 34.2% for the geded December 31, 2007 to 38.1% for
the year ended December 31, 2008.

SG&A ExpensesSG&A expenses increased 12.0% from $37.9 milliarttie year ended December 31, 2007 to $42.4 mifbotthe yea
ended December 31, 2008. General and administrexpenses increased 8.3% from $28.7 million foryeser ended December 31, 2007 to
$31.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2808 selling and marketing expenses increased 286i#%$9.2 million for the year ended
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December 31, 2007 to $11.3 million for the yearezhBecember 31, 2008. Salary and personnel experdeded in SG&A increased from
$24.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2@0$27.8 million for the year ended December 3D&0rimarily due to the addition of non-
operations staff. Overall general and administeaéixpenses increased by $1.1 million due to théiadaf a new operations center in the
Philippines and costs associated with setting ecénter. SG&A expenses include $4.2 million an@ $3illion for the years ended

December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, resplctdfenon-cash amortization of stock compensaéigpense relating to our issuance of
stock options to our nooperations staff. We expect our SG&A expensesdrease as we add significant additional sales aariteting staff il
the United States and the United Kingdom. As agrage of revenues, SG&A expenses decreased mirdinen 24.9% for the year ended
December 31, 2007 to 23.4% for the year ended Dieeei, 2008.

Depreciation and AmortizationDepreciation and amortization increased 21.1% @2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007
to $11.2 million for the year ended December 3D&This increase was due to expansion of ourstrnature, including our new operations
center in Pasay City, Philippines, which becameatmal in April 2008. However, this was partialiffset by a decrease in amortization of
intangibles. As we add more operations centergxpect that depreciation expense will increasefiect the additional investment in
equipment and operations centers necessary tosaedte requirements.

Income from Operationsincome from operations increased 225.4% from $4liBomfor the year ended December 31, 2007 to $15.
million for the year ended December 31, 2008. Asixentage of revenues, income from operationsased from 3.2% for the year ended
December 31, 2007 to 8.6% for the year ended DeeeBih 2008. The increase in income from operatizas primarily the result of an
increase in gross profit of $17.4 million, offsgtdn increase in operating expenses of $6.5 million

Other Income/(expensePther income is comprised of foreign exchange gairslosses, interest income and interest exp€tker
income decreased significantly from $11.8 million the year ended December 31, 2007 to ($5.9)aniflor the year ended December 31,
2008 as a result of a significant increase in aegifin exchange losses attributable to movemetiteoindian rupee against the U.S. dollar and
the U.K. pound sterling relative to our hedged posi

Provision for Income TaxesProvision for income taxes decreased from a bea€$t..0 million for the year ended December 302
a benefit of $1.3 million for the year ended Decem®il, 2008. The effective rate of taxes has irsddrom a benefit of 5.9% for the year
ended December 31, 2007 to a benefit of 13.7%@year ended December 31, 2008. This is primdtig/to lower income as a result of the
increase in foreign exchange losses and changhs geographic distribution of our income.

Income from continuing operationsincome from continuing operations decreased from&nillion for the year ended December 31,
2007 to $11.1 million for the year ended DecemHtgr2B08 due to a significant increase in foreigohenge losses attributable to the
movement of the Indian rupee against the U.S. dalta the U.K. pound sterling relative to our hatigesition, partially offset by higher
income from operations. As a percentage of reverinesme from continuing operations decreased ftdn6% for the year ended
December 31, 2007 to 6.1% for the year ended DeeeBih 2008.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
At December 31, 2009, we had $136.2 million in casti cash equivalents and short-term investments.

Cash flows provided by operating activities incezhfrom $28.9 million in the year ended December28D8 to $35.7 million in the ye
ended December 31, 2009. Generally, factors tiiattedur earnings—including pricing, volume of dees, costs and productivity—affect our
cash flows provided by or used for operations &nailar manner. However, while management of wagldapital, including timing of
collections and payments, affects operating resullg indirectly, the impact on working capital acaish flows provided by operating activities
can be significant. The increase in cash flows igled by operations for the year ended Decembe?2@®19 is predominantly due to changes in
working capital by $8.1 million, partially offseytihe
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decrease in net income adjusted for non-cash ilgn$9.5 million. Trade accounts receivable incrdagightly from $33.7 million at
December 31, 2008 to $34.9 million at December2BD9. However, our daysales outstanding, including unbilled receivablesrdased fro
approximately 70 days as of December 31, 2008 tday® as of December 31, 2009. Increase in cashffton working capital changes is
primarily due to changes in deferred revenue, atissets, income-tax payable and accounts payahlking in net cash inflow aggregating to
$17.7 million, offset by the changes in restrictedh and accounts receivable resulting in net castow of $9.7 million during the year end
December 31, 2009 as compared to the year endezhibee 31, 2008.

Cash flows used for investing activities increaeth $16.0 million in the year ended December 30&to $17.3 million in the year
ended December 31, 2009. The increase is primduigyto net investments in time deposits of $3.8aniland net payout for business
acquisitions of $1.4 million during the year end®ecember 31, 2009 (reflecting our purchase of Sden&.R.O. for approximately $3.5
million) as compared to the year ended Decembe2@08 (during which period we completed acquisiifor approximately $2.1 million),
partially offset by lower capital expenditures &4 million and net proceeds of $1.4 million froalesof discontinued operations during the
year ended December 31, 20

Cash flows provided by financing activities wersignificant during the years ended December 31920@ 2008.

We expect to use cash from operating activitiemaintain and expand our business. As we have fdomsexpanding our cash flow
from operating activities, we continue to make talpnvestments, primarily related to new faciltiend capital expenditures associated with
leasehold improvements to build out our facilitéesl purchase of telecommunications and networkipdpenent and computer hardware and
software in connection with managing client openagi We incurred approximately $11.4 million of italpexpenditures in the year ended
December 31, 2009. We expect to incur capital ediperes of approximately $20 million to $22 milliam the calendar year 2010 primarily to
meet the growth requirements of our clients, inicigdadditions to our existing facilities and estsihihg new operations centers in Cluj,
Romania, Noida, India and Jaipur, India as wetbamprove our internal technology. The timing armdume of such capital expenditures in
future will be affected by new contracts we mayeetmto or the expansion of our existing contrattgiough December 31, 2009, we had
repurchased an aggregate of approximately $0.4omilinder our previously announced program to remase up to $10.0 million of our
common stock.

In addition, in connection with the tax assessnoedérs issued against Exl India and Exl Inc. we ipayequired to deposit additional
amounts with respect to the assessment orderveelcky us and for similar orders for subsequentsytiaat may be received by us. As requ
by the Mutual Agreement Procedure (MAP), we obtdibank guarantees of approximately $2.9 milliodpril 2009 to stop the collection of
the outstanding tax demands by the Indian tax aitig®and interest for the assessment ordersweddiy Exl Inc. for the 2003-04, 2004-05
and 2005-06 tax years. Subsequent to Decembei089, the Company has also obtained a bank guarahtgproximately $3.5 million with
respect to the assessment orders received by &l for the 2005-06 tax year. If additional assessnorders are received for subsequent
years, we may invoke the MAP for such orders andlevbe required to obtain additional bank guaras

We anticipate that we will continue to rely uposltdrom operating activities to finance our acdigss, capital expenditures and
working capital needs. Based on economic conditaengf December 31, 2009, we believe that cashfilom operations will be sufficient to
meet our ongoing capital expenditure, working ad@ihd other cash needs in the near term. If we Bignificant growth through acquisitions,
we may need to obtain additional financing.

On July 3, 2009, we acquired a 100% stake in Sden&.R.O., which is located in Olomouc, the CzZeepublic, for cash consideration
of approximately $3.5 million (net of cash acquigdb0.9 million), which was funded through ouremal cash accruals. On November 4,
2009, we entered into an agreement with Americgur&ss to acquire the operations of the Americanré&gGlobal Travel Service Center, a
business unit of American Express located in Gungéaldia, which acquisition was completed on Mat¢R010 for a purchase consideratio
approximately $29 million funded through our in@roash accruals.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of December 31, 2009, we had no off-balancetsdmeangements or obligations.

Contractual Obligations
The following table sets forth our contractual ghtions as of December 31, 2009:

Payment Due by Period (in millions)

Less thar
1-3 4-5 After
1 year years years 5 years Total
Capital lease $ 0.2 $0.1 $— $— $ 0.2
Operating lease 3.5 4.2 1.8 2.3 11.¢
Purchase obligatior 3.1 — — — 3.1
Other obligations(a 0.5 1.2 1.1 1.4 4.2
Total contractual cash obligatio $ 73 $5.E $2.9 $ 3.7 $19.4

(@) Represents estimated payments under the Cor’s Gratuity Plan

Certain units of our Indian subsidiaries have bestablished as 100% Export-Oriented units undetERkport Import Policy” (the
“Policy”) or Software Technology Parks of India ts{*STPI") under the STPI guidelines issued by @evernment of India that has provided
us with certain incentives on imported and indigenocapital goods. Under the Policy, these unitstmcisieve certain export ratios and realize
revenues attributable to exports over a specifexibd. In the event that these units are unabhadet the requirements over the specified
period, we may be required to refund these incestalong with penalties and fines. However, weebelithat these units will achieve the
export levels within the required timeframe as thaye consistently generated the required levetxpbrt revenues.

Ex| Philippines is registered as an Ecozone IT gpmige with the Philippines Economic Zone Authorikl Philippines has an export
obligation of $13.1 million during the three yearipd ending March 2011. The registration has pteeided us with certain incentives on the
import of capital goods. We believe that Ex| Plglipes will achieve these export levels within thquired timeframe.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2009, the Financial Accounting Stestl&oard (FASB) issued Update No. 2009-1Biuitiple-Deliverable Revenue
Arrangemeni—a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task FOASH) 2009-13). It updates the existing multipleraent revenue
arrangements guidance currently included under &f{e 605-25, which originated primarily from thaidance in EITF Issue No. 00-21,
“Revenue Arrangements with Multiple DeliverableEITF 00-21). The revised guidance primarily prowdeo significant changes: first, it
eliminates the need for objective and reliable enitk of the fair value for the undelivered eleniemrder for a delivered item to be treated
separate unit of accounting, and second, it eliteBthe residual method to allocate the arrangentergideration. In addition, the guidance
also expands the disclosure requirements for revezeognition. ASU 2009-13 will be effective foetfirst annual reporting period beginning
on or after June 15, 2010, with early adoption petech provided that the revised guidance is retiigaly applied to the beginning of the yea
adoption. We are currently assessing the futureanpf this new accounting update on our consaidiéihancial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued FAS 168ht FASB Accounting Standards Codification andHiggarchy of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principle;,” which was principally codified into ASC topic 20 Generally Accepted Accounting StandaidaSC No. 105). This
standard will become the single source of authiiréanongovernmental U.S. generally accepted adoogiprinciples. All existing accounting
standard documents will be superseded and all attmryunting literature not included in the FASB @lodtion will be considered
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non-authoritative. This guidance is effective fioterim and annual periods ending after Septembe2d@. As ASC No. 105 was not intended
to change existing accounting guidance, its adopid not have an impact on our consolidated firerstatements.

In May 2009, the FASB issued ASC topic 855-18ubsequent eventswhich is effective for interim and annual persoending after
June 15, 2009. The guidance is intended to estagdineral standards of accounting for and discéssaf events that occur after the balance
sheet date but before financial statements aredssutare available to be issued. It requires tbeabure of the date through which an entity
has evaluated subsequent events and the basimfatate—that is, whether that date representddtesthe financial statements were issued or
were available to be issued. This disclosure shal@d all users of financial statements that aityehas not evaluated subsequent events after
that date in the set of financial statements bpimegented. The adoption of this guidance did ne¢ llamaterial impact on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cdslé. Please see note 18 to our notes to consetidatancial statements for further details.

In April 2009, the FASB amended the authoritativédgnce on financial instruments to require disetes about fair value of financial
instruments in interim as well as in annual finahstatements of publicly traded companies. Thdange is effective for interim and annual
periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early &dogpermitted for periods ending after March 1802. Because the guidance applies only to
financial statement disclosures, the adoption dichave a material effect on our consolidated fom@rposition, results of operations or cash
flows. Please see note 6 to our notes to consetidf@tancial statements for further details.

In December 2007, the FASB issued new accountifgpgae for business combinations. The new accogigtindance changes the
accounting for business combinations includingrtteasurement of acquirer shares issued in consiierfat a business combination, the
recognition of contingent consideration, the actimgnfor pre-acquisition gain and loss contingeactae recognition of capitalized in-process
research and development, the accounting for aitiguiselated restructuring cost accruals, thettremnt of acquisitiorrelated transaction co:
and the recognition of changes in the acqusrertome tax valuation allowance. We acquired &d8€ke in Schneider S.R.O. on July 3, 2
The acquisition was accounted for in accordanch this new accounting guidance. Please see nat®rtnotes to consolidated financial
statements for further details.

In December 2007, the FASB issued ASC topic 81®3.0-Consolidation—Transition and Open Effective Dat®imation.” ASC topic
810-10 establishes accounting and reporting stdsdar a non-controlling interest in a subsidiang or the deconsolidation of a subsidiary.
ASC topic 810-10-65 establishes accounting andrtiegostandards that require (i) the ownershipriggein subsidiaries held by parties other
than the parent to be clearly identified and presgin the consolidated balance sheet within egbity separate from the parent’s equity,

(i) the amount of consolidated net income attréilé to the parent and the non-controlling inteteste clearly identified and presented on the
face of the consolidated statements of income (ifihdhanges in a parent’s ownership interest wihiile parent retains its controlling financial
interest in its subsidiary to be accounted for ieatly. The adoption of this guidance did notdnavmaterial impact on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations or casiws.

Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardkimg statements. You should not place undue rediam those statements because
they are subject to numerous uncertainties andr&ctlating to our operations and business enrieot, all of which are difficult to predict
and many of which are beyond our control. Forwanking statements include information concerningpmssible or assumed future result
operations, including descriptions of our busirgsategy. These statements often include words asi¢may,” “will,” “should,” “believe,”
“expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “estimateor similar expressions. These statements are lmasadsumptions that we have made in
of our experience in the industry as well as oucggtions of historical trends, current conditioggpected future developments and other
factors we believe are appropriate under the cistantes. As you read and consider this Annual RepoForm 10-K, you should understand
that these statements are not guarantees of penficeror results. They involve known and unknown
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risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Although aleete that these forward looking statements asetb@n reasonable assumptions, you
should be aware that many factors could affectaatwal financial results or results of operationd eould cause actual results to differ
materially from those in the forward looking statets. These factors include but are not limited to:

. our dependence on a limited number of clientslimaed number of industrie:

. worldwide political, economic or business condii

. negative public reaction in the United States sewhere to offshore outsourci

. fluctuations in our earning

. our ability to attract and retain clien

. restrictions on immigratior

. our ability to hire and retain enough sufficierttigined employees to support our operatis
. our ability to grow our business or effectively rage growth and international operatio

. increasing competition in our industi

. telecommunications or technology disruptic

. fluctuations in exchange rates between the curesriniwhich we receive our revenues and the cueeme which we incur our
costs;

. regulatory, legislative and judicial developmeisjuding changes to or the withdrawal of governtakfiscal incentives
. technological innovatior

. political or economic instability in the geographia which we operate

. our ability to successfully consummate or integsdtategic acquisitions; ar

. adverse outcome of our disputes with the Indiaratathorities

These and other factors are more fully discusssgdlere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Thesga@ther risks could cause actual
results to differ materially from those implied foyward looking statements in this Annual Reportramm 10-K.

You should keep in mind that any forward lookingtetment made by us in this Annual Report on Fora16r elsewhere, speaks only
as of the date on which we make it. New risks amzkttainties come up from time to time, and inipossible for us to predict these events or
how they may affect us. We have no obligation tdaip any forward looking statements in this AnriReport on Form 10-K after the date of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, except as requingdederal securities laws.

ITEM 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
General

Market risk is the loss of future earnings, to faifues or to future cash flows that may resulirfrm change in the price of a financial
instrument. The value of a financial instrument rehginge as a result of changes in the interest, faieign currency exchange rates,
commodity prices, equity prices and other markeingfes that affect market risk sensitive instrumevitgket risk is attributable to all market
sensitive financial instruments including foreigmrency receivables and payables.

Our exposure to market risk is a function of oypenses and revenue generating activities in foreigrencies. The objective of market
risk management is to avoid excessive exposureéarnings and equity to loss. We manage marklethirough our treasury operations. Our
senior management and our board of directors
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approve our treasury operation’s objectives anitigsl The activities of our treasury operationdude management of cash resources,
implementing hedging strategies for foreign curgeexposures, borrowing strategies, if any, and emgwompliance with market risk limits
and policies.

Components of Market Risk

Foreign Currency RiskOur exposure to market risk arises principally frexchange rate risk. Although substantially albof revenues
are denominated in U.S. dollars (63.8% in the yealed December 31, 2009) or U.K. pounds sterliBg@ in the year ended December 31,
2009), substantial portion of our expenses wererhed and paid in Indian rupees and Philippine peY.1% and 6.0%, respectively in the
year ended December 31, 2009). We also incur ergendJ.S. dollars, the Czech koruna and the caiesrof the other countries in which
have operations. The exchange rates primarily antfumg¢ndian rupee, U.K. pound sterling and the dd@lar have changed substantially in
recent years and may fluctuate substantially irftihere.

Our exchange rate risk primarily arises from ouefgn currency revenues, expenses incurred byavaigh subsidiaries and foreign
currency accounts receivable and payable. Basew oypolevel of operations during the year endeddbdmer 31, 2009 and excluding any
hedging arrangements that we had in place duriagpériod, a 5.0% appreciation/depreciation inuhi€. pound sterling against the U.S. do
would have increased/decreased revenues in theepdad December 31, 2009 by approximately $3.2amilSimilarly, a 5.0%
appreciation/depreciation in the Indian rupee agjaime U.S. dollar would have increased/decreaseéxpenses incurred and paid in Indian
rupees in the year ended December 31, 2009 by sppately $5.2 million.

We have sought to reduce the effect of Indian rupel€. pound sterling and certain other local coagexchange rate fluctuations on
operating results by purchasing forward foreignhexmge contracts to cover a substantial portioruofeapected cash flows. Forward exchange
contracts with a notional amount of $90.0 milliordeGBP 7.7 million were outstanding at December2BD9 and of $110.2 million and
GBP 30.3 million were outstanding at December 30& The forward foreign exchange contracts typiaalture within one to thirty-six
months, must be settled on the day of maturity ay fve cancelled subject to the payment of any gaitesses in the difference between the
contract exchange rate and the market exchangemdtee date of cancellation. We use these instntsress cash flow hedges and not for
speculative purposes. We may not purchase contidetguate to insulate ourselves from Indian rupelelhK. pound sterling foreign exchar
currency risks. In addition, any such contracts metyperform adequately as a hedging mechanismm@jg in the future, adopt more active
hedging policies, and have done so in the past.

We hedge our net recognized foreign currency assetdiabilities with foreign exchange forward c@uts to reduce the risk that our
earnings and cash flows will be adversely affetigdhanges in foreign currency exchange rates.eTtlesvative instruments hedge assets and
liabilities that are denominated in foreign curriescand are carried at fair value with changesénfair value recorded as foreign exchange
gain/(loss). These derivative instruments do nbjestt us to material balance sheet risk due toaxgé rate movements because gains and
losses on these derivatives are intended to afisies and losses on the assets and liabilitiegbedged. At December 31, 2009, the
outstanding balance sheet hedging derivatives tetdrities of 30 days or less.

Interest Rate RiskWe had cash, cash equivalents and short-term imess$ totaling $136.2 million at December 31, 2008se
amounts were invested principally in a short-temrestment portfolio primarily comprised of highlgted mutual funds, money market
accounts and time deposits. The cash and cashatepiis are held for potential acquisitions of caenpéntary businesses or assets, working
capital requirements and general corporate purpd¥esio not enter into investments for tradingmecilative purposes. We believe that we
have no material exposure to changes in the fairevaf our investment portfolio as a result of afgesiin interest rates. The interest income
from these funds will be subject to fluctuation®da changes in interest rates. Declines in inteatss would reduce future investment incc
A 1.0% decrease in short term rates would reducénderest income for the year ended December @29 by approximately $0.3 million.
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Credit Risk. As of December 31, 2009, we had accounts recevafi$h34.9 million. Accounts receivable from ourglest client account
for 19.2% of our total outstanding receivable aBetember 31, 2009. We believe that our creditcpdireflect normal industry terms and
business risk. We do not anticipate non-performdaycthe counterparties and, accordingly, do notiireccollateral. Credit losses and write-
offs of accounts receivable balances have histityinat been material to our financial statememtd have not exceeded our expectations.

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

The financial statements required to be filed pansuo this Item 8 are appended to this Annual RepoForm 10-K. A list of the
financial statements filed herewith is found aefit 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.”

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreement with Accountants on Aoanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

The Company maintains disclosure controls and phares that are designed to ensure that informagiquired to be disclosed in the
reports the Company files under the Securities Brgh Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) is recordeacessed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s suged forms, and that such information is accuredland communicated to the Company’s
management, including its Chief Executive Offic&EQ”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFQ”), to al@timely decisions regarding required
financial disclosure. In connection with the preggimm of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Compa management carried out an
evaluation, under the supervision and with theigigetion of the CEO and CFO, of the effectivenasd operation of our disclosure controls
and procedures as of December 31, 2009. Basedthpbavaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded disaof December 31, 2009, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management’'s Responsibility for Financial Statemers

Responsibility for the objectivity, integrity, apdesentation of the accompanying financial stateésnand other financial information
presented in this report rests with the Companydsagement. The accompanying financial statements lbeen prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetd¢hStates. The financial statements include ansahat are based on estimates and
judgments which management believes are reasooatlkr the circumstance

Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered puddicounting firm, is retained to audit EXd.¢onsolidated financial statements anc
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirgancial reporting. Its accompanying reports laased on audits conducted in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accoun@wgrsight Board.

The Audit Committee of the board of directors isngmsed solely of independent directors, and isaresiple for recommending to the
Board the independent public accounting firm tadtained for the coming year. The Audit Committezets regularly and privately with the
independent public accountants, with the compaimg&snal auditors, and with management to revieeoanting, auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters.
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Managemen’s Annual Report on Internal Control over FinanciaReporting

Management of the Company is responsible for estaby and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting as defined
in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) promulgated undexr Exchange Act. Those rules define internal corttvelr financial reporting as a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regatdmgliability of financial reporting and the pegption of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with accounting principtsegally accepted in the United States. The Conipamtgrnal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras th

. pertain to the maintenance of records that, inoealsle detail, accurately and fairly reflect thensactions of the Compar

. provide reasonable assurance that transactionmreeoeded as necessary to permit preparation ofidiadstatements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted m thmited States

. provide reasonable assurance that receipts andhditpees of the Company are being made only in mzowe with the
authorization of management and board of direaibteke Company; an

. provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, esaisposition of the
Compan'’s assets that could have a material effect ondhsatidated financial statemen

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effectivehdgsesCompany’s internal control over financieporting as of December 31,
2009. In making this assessment, management usexitbria described inlhternal Control—Integrated Framewotkissued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd®@ommission. Management’s assessment includedanation of the design of the
Company'’s internal control over financial reportiaugd testing of the operational effectivenesssoiriternal control over financial reporting.
Management reviewed the results of its assessnidntive Audit Committee of the board of directdssed on this assessment and those
criteria, management concluded that the Companyptaiaed effective internal control over financiaporting as of December 31, 2009. See
Ernst & Young LLP’s accompanying report on theidiwf the Company’s internal controls over finaalaieporting.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportmn

During the three months ended December 31, 20@%e threre no changes in our internal control overfcial reporting (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchang® that have materially affected, or are reasonéibély to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. Other Information.

Effective March 16, 2010, we have increased Mr.d@js annual base salary to $500,000, extendetktheof his employment to
December 31, 2012, and increased the amount w@alfor the lease of an automobile for Mr. Kaptm$1,400 per month. In addition, we
corrected the provisions that relate to acceleraésting of equity on certain terminations of hispdoyment within 12 months following a
change in control (which were inadvertently modifighen Mr. Kapoor’s prior employment agreement vegdaced in 2008 with his current
employment agreement), so that such acceleratioasiing will apply to all unvested equity awardarged on and after September 30, 2006
(rather than applying to only those unvested ecautgrds granted on and after December 16, 2008).
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PART III.

ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
Code of Ethics.

We have adopted a code of conduct and ethics pipdiea to all of our directors, officers and empey, including our principal executive
officer, principal financial officer, principal aoanting officer, and persons performing similardtions. Our code of conduct and ethics can be
found posted in the investor relations section mnveebsite at http://www.exlservice.com.

We incorporate by reference the information respent® this Item appearing in the definitive prastatement for our 2010 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which we refer to as owaxly Statement, which we intend to file with theGtithin 120 days after the fiscal year
end of December 31, 2009.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation
We incorporate by reference the information respen® this Iltem appearing in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matters
We incorporate by reference the information respen® this Iltem appearing in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence.
We incorporate by reference the information respen® this Iltem appearing in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
We incorporate by reference the information respent® this Item appearing in our Proxy Statement.
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PART IV.

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(@ 1. Financial Statemen
The consolidated financial statements are listetbuttem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
2. Financial Statement Schedul

Financial statement schedules as of December 8B, &0d 2008, have been omitted since they arereititeequired, not material
or the information is otherwise included in our solidated financial statements or the notes tacousolidated financial statemer

3. Exhibits.

The Exhibits filed as part of this Annual Reportfeorm 10-K are listed on the Exhibit Index immediatpreceding such Exhibits,
which Exhibit Index is incorporated in this AnniRé¢port on Form 10-K by reference.

(b) Exhibit——see Item 15(a)(3) abov
(c) Financial Statement Schedi—see Item 15(a)(2) abov

58



Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amentiedRegistrant has duly caused
this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed orbébalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized

Date: March 16, 201 EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/ VISHAL C HHIBBAR
Vishal Chhibbar
Chief Financial Officer
(Duly Authorized Signatory, Principal
Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, as amended, this Annual RepoRam 10-K has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Regnt and in the capacities and on the datesarel.

Signature Title Date
/s/ ROHITK APOOR Chief Executive Officer, March 16, 2010
Rohit Kapoor President and Director (Principal Executive
Officer)
/s/ VISHAL C HHIBBAR Chief Financial Office March 16, 201(
Vishal Chhibbar (Principal Financial and Accounting Office
/sl VIKRAM T ALWAR Executive Chairman March 16, 2010

Vikram Talwar

/s/ STEVENB. GRUBER Director March 16, 201(
Steven B. Gruber
/s/ EDwARD V. D ARDANI Director March 16, 2010
Edward V. Dardani
/s/  KIRAN K ARNIK Director March 16, 2010
Kiran Karnik
/s/ DAaviD B. KELSO Director March 16, 201(
David B. Kelso
/s/ CLYDEW. OSTLER Director March 16, 2010

Clyde W. Ostler

/s/ M OHANBIR S AWHNEY Director March 16, 201(
Dr. Mohanbir Sawhney

/sl GARENK. STAGLIN Director March 16, 2010
Garen K. Staglin
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are being filed as part bistAnnual Report on Form 10-K:

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

10.1**

10.2
10.3
10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatinoofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to ther€ntr Report on Form 8-K
filed on October 25, 2006

Second Amended and Restated By-laws (incorporatedfbrence to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current ReporfFonm 8-K filed on
April 30, 2008).

Specimen Stock Certificate (incorporated by refeegio Exhibit 4.1 of Amendment 6 to our Registnati&tatement on Form-1
(No. 33:-121001)).

Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated bynefee to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on F8-K filed on October 25
2006).

Professional Services Agreement, dated March 76, 208&tween The Travelers Indemnity Company and é&xiSe Holdings, In
as amended by Amendment 3, effective January 9.

Employment Agreement, dated May 1, 2009, betwedsesxice.com (India) Private Limited and Vishal Uithar.
Letter Agreement, effective June 1, 2009, betwedB&tvice Holdings, Inc, and Vishal Chhibb

Employment Contract, as amended, effective Oct8p2006, by and between ExIService Inc. and Amé@sblank (incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of Amendment 6 to Baegistration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Amended and Restated Employment and Non-Competitgyreement entered into by and among ExIServicalidgk, Inc. and
Vikram Talwar (incorporated by reference to Exhiit10 to Annual Report on Form-K filed on March 16, 2009

Amended and Restated Employment and Non-Competitgyreement entered into by and among ExIServicalidgk, Inc. and
Rohit Kapoor (incorporated by reference to Exhilfit11 to Annual Report on Form-K filed on March 16, 2009

Amendment to the Amended and Restated EmploymehNan-Competition Agreement entered into by and amon&eE&xlice
Holdings, Inc. and Rohit Kapoc

ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2003 India Stock OptidarP(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18\afendment 6 to oL
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plarc@rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 of Ameadtr6 to oul
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Plan (incogted by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of Amendmetd 6ur Registration
Statement on Form-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2006 Omnibus India Subgla(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 Aofendment 6 to our
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 Omilndia Subplan 1 (incorporated by reference toilkik10.22 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

ExIService Holdings, Inc. Management Incentive Rlanorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 of Aweent 6 to ou
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under2®@6 Omnibus Award Plan (incorporated by refer¢ndexhibit 10.31 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 Ommidward Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHiBiB2 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under2®@6 Omnibus India Subplan 1 (incorporated by esfee to Exhibit 10.33
of Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement omrFg-1 (No. 33:-121001)).
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10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34*

Amended and Restated Nonqualified Stock Option Awsgreement between Amit Shashank and the Compategddune 1
2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3%wmfendment 6 to our Registration Statement on F&-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Separation Agreement, dated as of October 10, 2#®&een EXL Service Holdings Inc. and Matthew Apecorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Reporform 1-Q filed on May 11, 2009

ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2006 Omnibus India Sub@a(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3&\ofendment 6 to our
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 Ommnilndia Subplan 2 (incorporated by reference toilti10.39 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under2®@6 Omnibus India Subplan 2 (incorporated by ezfee to Exhibit 10.4
of Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement om€-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Restricted Stock Award Agreement between VikranwBaland the Company dated July 27, 2006 (incorpdrhy reference to
Exhibit 10.41 of Amendment 6 to our Registratioat8ment on Form-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement between Rohit &@pand the Company dated July 27, 2006 (incorpdrhy reference
to Exhibit 10.42 of Amendment 6 to our Registrat®tatement on Form-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Amendment to ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2006 OmniBmgard Plan (incorporated by reference to ExhibidB of Amendment
to our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 1 undera@@6 Omnibus Award Plan (incorporated by referdndexhibit 10.44 o
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 2 undera@@6 Omnibus Award Plan (incorporated by referdndexhibit 10.45 o
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Amendment No. 2 to ExIService Holdings, Inc. 200@ribus Award Plan (incorporated by reference toiliiki0.46 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Letter Agreement, dated March 10, 2009, between EEtvice Holdings Inc. and Matthew Appel (incorgechby reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Quarterly Report on Form-Q filed on May 11, 2009

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 1dimporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the QuirReport on Form 8-K
filed on February 4, 2010

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 2dmporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the QuirReport on Form-K
filed on February 4, 2010

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 3dmporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the QuirReport on Form-K
filed on February 4, 2010

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 4dmporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to the QurReport on Form 8-K
filed on February 4, 2010

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 5d¢mporated by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to the QurReport on Form 8-K
filed on February 4, 2010

Framework Agreement, dated July 25, 2005, betwesnr€a plc, the Company and ExIService.com (InBiayate Limitec
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to Aalnkeporion Form 1+K filed on March 16, 2009
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10.35 Notice of Extension between Centrica plc and then@any, dated July 11, 2008 (incorporated by refeze¢a Exhibit 10.1 to tt
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed on November 10, 200¢

10.36** Amendment No. 6, dated April 1, 2009, to the FramdwAgreement between Centrica plc, the CompanyEad8ervice.com
(India) Private Limited

10.37 Amendment No. 3 to ExIService Holdings, Inc. 200@ribus Award Plan (incorporated by reference toiliikH.6 to our
Registration Statement on Forr-8 (No. 33:-157076)).

211 Subsidiaries of the Registra

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

311 Certification of the Executive Chairman of ExISes/iHoldings, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Erge Act, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of ESérvice Holdings, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) offkehange Act, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

31.3 Certification of the President and Chief Execut®icer of ExIService Holdings, pursuant to Rules-14(a) of the Exchanc
Act, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of thea®ar-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of the Executive Chairman pursuanRtde 13-14(b) of the Exchange Act and 18 U.S.C. SectiorD135 adopte
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo Rule 13a-14(b) of the Exchange Act and 18.C.Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

32.3 Certification of the President and Chief Execut®#icer pursuant to Rule 1384(b) of the Exchange Act and 18 U.S.C. Sec

1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 cSarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

* Portions of this exhibit have been omitted purstamonfidential treatment granted by the Commiss
**  Certain portions of this exhibit have been omiftedonnection with an application for confidentis@atment therefo
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To Board of Directors and Stockholders of
ExIService Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of ExIService Holdings, Inc. and subseliaas of December 31, 2009
and 2008, and the related consolidated stateméirisame, stockholders’ equity and comprehensiveine (loss) and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 3B. Ahese consolidated financial statements areeponsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementsdasa our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamlogUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the consolidated financial
position of ExIService Holdings, Inc. and subsitiaras of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the bkdatsal results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years ingigéod ended December 31, 2009, in conformity WwitS. generally accepted accounting
principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), ExIService
Holdings Inc.’s internal control over financial m@ting as of December 31, 2009, based on critesti@xdished in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission and our tegeted March 16, 2010 expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 16, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of ExISaruioldings, Inc.

We have audited ExIService Holdings, Inc.’s intégatrol over financial reporting as of Decembér 3009, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framdwissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organiratiaf the Treadway Commission (the
COSO criteria). ExIService Holdings, Inc.’s manageirnis responsible for maintaining effective introontrol over financial reporting, and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intezoatrol over financial reporting included in thecampanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our r@sgibility is to express an opinion on the comparigternal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri@d@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etést#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancesdlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablezassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thagté€ttain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢t@isstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepracedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, ExIService Holdings, Inc. maintainén all material respects, effective internalttohover financial reporting as of
December 31, 2009, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of ExIService Holdingsas of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and theetetansolidated statements of income,
stockholdersequity and comprehensive income (loss) and cas¥sffor each of the three years in the period em@ztember 31, 2009 and ¢
report dated March 16, 2010 expressed an unqudhbifiénion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 16, 2010
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

December 31 December 31
2009 2008
Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivale $ 132,21! $ 112,17.
Shor-term investment 4,00¢ 152
Restricted cas 65 202
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $262 in 2009 and $128 in 2! 34,85¢ 33,71«
Employee receivable 17¢ 203
Prepaid expenst 2,48¢ 2,63t
Deferred tax asse 4,87 3,401
Advance incom-tax, net — 2,03:
Other current asse 2,86¢ 3,36:
Total current asse 181,54¢ 157,87¢
Fixed assets, ni 23,96¢ 24,51¢
Restricted cas 3,89t 281
Deferred tax asse 8,48: 3,045
Intangibles, net of amortizatic 627 —
Goodwill 19,61¢ 17,55:
Other asset 11,48 8,68¢
Total asset $ 249,62( $ 211,96¢
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 5,34t $ 3,371
Deferred revenu 4,74¢ 2,961
Accrued employee co 16,02( 14,72t
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 11,53( 17,89(
Income taxes payab 543 —
Current portion of capital lease obligatic 144 121
Total current liabilities 38,32 39,06¢
Capital lease obligations, less current por 137 17¢
Other nol-current liabilities 5,43¢ 1,39(
Total liabilities 43,90: 40,63’
Commitments and contingenci
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 15,000,000 sheuthorized, none issu — —
Stockholder equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 sleargmrized, 29,278,103 shares issued and
29,031,073 shares outstanding as of December 89, &@d 29,054,145 shares issued
and 28,817,065 shares outstanding as of Decembh@088. 29 29
Additional pait-in capital 124,49; 116,67¢
Retained earning 85,67« 70,02:
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(lt (3,51%) (14,49)
206,68: 172,23!
Less: 247,030 shares as of December 31, 2009 ah@8Bshares as of December 31, 2008, he
treasury, at cos (97€) (903)
ExIService Holdings, Inc. stockhold’ equity 205,70! 171,33:
Noncontrolling interes 13 —
Total stockholder equity 205,71¢ 171,33:
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 249,62 $ 211,96¢

See accompanying notes
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Revenue:
Revenues (from related partie
Total revenue

Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation andrénation)

Gross profil
Operating expense
General and administrative expen
Selling and marketing expens
Depreciation and amortizatic
Total operating expens
Income from continuing operatiol
Other income/(expense
Foreign exchange gain/(los
Interest and other income, r
Income from continuing operations before incomes&
Income tax provision/(benefi
Income from continuing operatiol
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, nebgés
Net income

Earnings per share(e
Basic:

Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Diluted:
Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Weighte-average number of shares used in computing earpergshare

Basic
Diluted

(@) Per share amounts may not foot due to rounc

See accompanying notes
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Year ended December 31,

2009
$ 190,42¢
56¢
190,99
109,38
81,60¢

31,85(
13,95(
11,40¢

57,20¢
24,40

(5,929)
1,02°
19,49t
3,70%
15,79:
(139)

$ 1565

$ 0.5t

$ 0.54

$ 0.54

$ 0.5¢

28,963,77
29,417,91

2008
$ 181,08t
62€
181,71
112,43¢
69,27¢

31,11
11,344
11,15¢
53,61
15,66¢

(9,276)
3,40¢

9,797
(1,340
11,13
3,271

$  14,40¢

$ 0.3¢
0.11

$ 0.5C

$ 0.3¢
0.11

$ 0.4¢

28,811,04
29,212,04

2007
$ 150,40:
1,631
152,03¢
100,11
51,92:
28,72¢
9,171
9,217
47,107
4,81¢

7,58¢

4,20:
16,60:
(974)

17,57¢
9,46¢

$ 27,04

$ 0.62
0.3

$ 0.9¢

$ 0.6(
0.32

$ 0.9¢

28,480,03
29,191,19
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Stock issued on exercise/vesting of equity aw

Non-employee stock optior

Issuance of stock on acquisition of Indur

Stock based compensati

Excess tax benefit from Stock Based Compens:

Acquisition of treasury stoc

Comprehensive incom

Translation adjustmen

Unrealized gain on cash flow hed¢

Retirement benefits, net of taxes of $8,!
Reclassification adjustmer

Cash flow hedge

Net income

Total comprehensive incon

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Adjustment for change in measurement date pursodfAS
158, net of taxes of $5,720 Service cost and Istar@si
Amortization of actuarial los

Stock issued on exercise/vesting of equity aw

Non-employee stock optior

Stock based compensati

Excess tax expense from stock based compens

Acquisition of treasury stoc

Comprehensive incom

Translation adjustmen
Unrealized (loss) on cash flow hedges, net of t&¢
Retirement benefits, net of taxes
Reclassification adjustmer
Cash flow hedge

Net income

Total comprehensive lo:

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Stock issued on exercise/vesting of equity aw

Non-employee stock optior

Stock based compensati

Excess tax expense from stock based compens

Acquisition of treasury stoc

Non controlling interes

Comprehensive incom

Translation adjustmen
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, net of taxes
$566
Retirement benefits, net of taxes $:.
Reclassification adjustmer
Unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hed
Retirement benefit
Net income

Total comprehensive incon
Balance as of December 31, 2(

Common Stock

Accumulated
Other

Treasury Stock

Additional ; Non-
Retained Comprehensive Controlling
Paid-in

Shares  Amount Capital Earnings Income/(Loss) Shares  Amount Interest Total
28,262,28 $ 28 $ 9842¢ $ 28665 $ 11C  (149,13) $ (36) —  $127,19¢
371,48: 1 1,864 — — — — — 1,86¢
— — 187 — — — — — 187
257,27: — 5,44¢ — — — — — 5,44¢
— — 4,307 — — — — — 4,301

— — 752 — — — — — 752
— — — — — (14,557) (280) — (280)

— — — — 2,24; — — — 2,24;

— — — — 12,26: — — — 12,26:
— — — — (202) — — — (202)
— — — — (6,847) — — — (6,847)

— — — 27,04: — — — — 27,04:

— — — — — — — — 34,50:
28,891,04 $ 29 $ 110,98¢ $ 55,70¢ $ 7,57C  (163,69) $ (31¢) —  $173,98(
— — — (70) — — — — (70

— — — (25) 25 — — — —
163,10: — 62C — — — — — 62(C
— — (70) — — — — — (70)

— — 5,27¢ — — — — — 5,27¢
— — (141) — — — — — (141
— — — — — (73,390 (587) — (587)
— — — — (10,199 — — — (10,199
— — — — (15,64)) — — — (15,64)
— — — — 82 — — — 82
— — — — 3,671 — — — 3,671
— — — 14,40¢ — — — — 14,40¢
— — — — — — — — (7,67%)
29,054,14 $ 29 $ 116,67¢ $ 70,02 $ (14,497 (237,08) $ (90%) —  $171,33:
223,95¢ — 97¢ — — — — — 97¢
— — 80 — — — — — 8C
— — 7,09: — — — — — 7,09¢
— — (343 — — — — — (347)
— — — — — (9,950 (73) — (73
— — 8 — — — — 13 21
— — — — 3,02¢ — — — 3,02¢
— — — — 1,72t — — — 1,72¢
— — — — (246) — — — (24€)
— — — — 6,39¢ — — — 6,39¢
— — — — 73 — — — 73
— — — 15,65¢ — — — — 15,65:
— — — — — — — — 26,62¢
29,278,10 $ 29 $ 124,490 $ 8567: $ (3,515 (247,030 $ (97¢) 13 $205,71¢

See accompanying notes
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activiti
Net income $ 15,65: $ 14,40¢ $ 27,04«
(Income)/ Loss from discontinued operations, natgés 13¢ (3,279 (9,469)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashkigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 11,40¢ 11,15¢ 9,217
Shar-based compensation expel 7,09t 5,27¢ 4,307
Non-employee stock optior 14C 28¢ 54t
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/lc (998) 1,597 (1,165
Deferred income taxe (8,400 (2,065 (3,763
Excess tax expense/(benefit) from s-based compensatic 343 141 (753)
Change in operating assets and liabilities (netffeict of acquisitions)
Restricted cas (3,25¢) (51 88t
Accounts receivabl (287) 6,19¢ (12,419
Prepaid expenses and other current a (54) (2,79¢) 2,41¢
Accounts payabl 1,211 (1,609 1,42¢
Deferred revenu 3,33¢ (1,016 (2,052)
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 3,84¢ 6,53¢ 3,97¢
Income taxes payab 2,514 (2,80¢6) (2,039
Other asset 2,115 (3,129 (5,399
Net cash provided by operating activi—continuing operation 35,69t 28,87: 12,75¢
Net cash provided by operating activi-discontinued operatior — 5,501 10,66¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 35,69¢ 34,37: 23,42¢
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchase of fixed asse (11,41¢ (14,832) (8,589
Business acquisition (net of ca (3,529 (2,156 —
Purchase of sh¢-term investment (3,98%) — (25%)
Proceeds from redemption of sk-term investmen 158 — —
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operat 1,44¢ 1,03¢ —
Net cash used in investing activi-continuing operation (17,33) (15,95() (8,842
Net cash used in investing actividiscontinued operatior — (40) (123)
Net cash used in investing activiti (17,33) (15,990 (8,96%)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Principal payments on capital lease obligati (119 (133 (159)
Proceeds from exercise of stock optii 97¢ 62C 1,641
Excess tax benefit/(deficiency) from st-based compensatic (342 (141) 758
Proceeds from issuance of stock to minority shddshe 21 — —
Acquisition of treasury stoc (73) (587) (280)
Net cash provided by/(used for) financing actia 47C (241 1,961
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casaénts 1,207 (8,17¢ 423
Net increase in cash and cash equival 20,04 9,964 16,84«
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of ' 112,17: 102,21( 85,36¢
Cash and cash equivalents, end of 132,21! 112,17 102,21(
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of discontinuechtipes, end of yee — — 804
Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operatiemd of yea $132,21! $112,17- $101,40¢
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid for intere: $ 22 $ 52 $ 42
Cash paid for taxes, net of refu $ 4,84t $ 4,19¢ $ 7,017
Assets acquired under capital le $ 1o¢ $ 22t $ 10€
Issuance of stock on acquisition of Indut $ — $ — $ 5,44¢

See accompanying notes

69



Table of Contents

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2009
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation
Organization

ExIService Holdings, Inc. (“ExIService Holdings§ organized as a corporation under the laws ostidte of Delaware. ExIService
Holdings, together with its subsidiaries (colleetiy the “Company”), is a leading provider of outsting services and transformation services.
The Company’s clients are located principally ia thnited States and the United Kingdom.

Basis of Presentatio
Certain amounts in the prior year's financial staats and related notes have been reclassifieohforen to the 2009 presentation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation and Principles of Consolidatic

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiesnte been prepared in conformity with U.S. gengradicepted accounting principl
The accompanying financial statements have begraped on a consolidated basis and reflect the dinhstatements of ExIService Holdings
and all of its subsidiaries. All intercompany bales and transactions have been eliminated in ddasioh.

The minority interest represents the minority parthinterest in the operation of Ex| India and ghefits associated with the minority
partner’s interest in those operations, in the otidated balance sheet and consolidated statemhé@mtame, respectively. The minority
partner’s interest in the operations for the yewleel December 31, 2009 was insignificant.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetiets in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedoamting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiettthe reported amounts of assets and liaksligied disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated finahsitatements and the consolidated statementsaifie during the reporting period. Estimates
are based upon management’s best assessmentooifriteet business environment. Actual results cdiffer from those estimates. The
significant estimates and assumptions that affecfihancial statements include, but are not lichite allowance for doubtful receivables,
future obligations under employee benefit plan$eided tax valuation allowances, income-tax undetitss and other contingencies, valuation
of derivatives financial instruments, stock-basethpensation expense, depreciation and amortizpgands, recoverability of longerm asse
including goodwill and intangibles, and estimatesdmplete fixed price contracts.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of each entity in the Compas its respective local country currency, whiglalso the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates unlebgmtise specified. Monetary assets and liabilitiefreign currencies are re-measured into
functional currency at the rates of exchange
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2009
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

prevailing at the balance sheet dates. Transaditicioseign currencies are re-measured into fumeti@urrency at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the date of the transaction. All saction foreign exchange gains and losses arededan the accompanying consolidated
statements of income.

The assets and liabilities of the subsidiariesafbich the functional currency is other than the Wl@lar are translated into U.S. dollars,
the reporting currency, at the rate of exchangegsliag on the balance sheet dates. Revenues grahsas are translated into U.S. dollars ¢
exchange rates prevailing on the last busines®flagich month, which approximates the average npaxthange rate. Resulting translation
adjustments are included in accumulated other cehgmsive income/(loss).

Revenue Recognitio

The Company derives its revenues from outsouraéngces and from transformation services. Revefmo@s outsourcing services are
recognized primarily on a time-and-material, cdsispr unit-priced basis; revenues from transforomaservices are recognized primarily on a
time-and-material, fixed price or contingent fesibaThe services provided within the Company’stiamis generally contain one unit of
accounting. Revenue is recognized under the Compaontracts generally when persuasive eviden@narrangement exists, the sales price
is fixed or determinable and collection of amouritled is reasonably assured.

Revenue is recognized on time-and-material corgnaémarily on the basis of full time equivalent@oyees, including direct and
indirect costs, incurred on a client contract. Remeis recognized on cost-plus contracts on this lbdsontractually agreed direct and indirect
costs incurred on a client contract plus an agegexh profit mark-up. Revenue is recognized on prite based contracts based on the number
of specified units of work (such as the number-afal responses) delivered to a client. Such reveaue recognized as the related service
provided in accordance with the client contract.eWlthe terms of the client contract specify serlésel parameters that must be met (such as
turnaround time or accuracy), the Company mongach service level parameters to determine if @nyice credits or penalties have been
incurred. Revenue is recognized net of any serviedits that are due to a client. The Company kpsréenced minimal credits and penaltie
date.

Revenue is recognized on fixed-price contractsguie proportional performance method. The Compsstiynates the proportional
performance of a contract by comparing the actualilver of hours or days worked to date to the estichtotal number of hours or days
required to complete each engagement. The use girtiportional performance method requires sigaifigudgment relative to estimating the
number of hours or days required to complete tmtraoted scope of work, including assumptions atinates relative to the length of time to
complete the project and the nature and complefitiie work to be performed. The Company regulargnitors its estimates for completion
of a project and record changes in the period irthve change in an estimate is determined. If aghan an estimate results in a projected loss
on a project, such loss is recognized in the pdriaghich it is first identified.

Revenue on contingent fee based contracts is rezmbwhen the related contingency has been mégtaclient’s satisfaction.

The Company accrues for revenue and receivablesefoices rendered between the last billing datktlam balance sheet date.
Accordingly, our accounts receivable include amsdat services that we have performed and for whitlnvoice has not yet been issued to
the client.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2009
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

During the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2868C06mpany received $5,075 and $436 of contractination fees. These amounts
are included in revenues in the consolidated stésof income.

Reimbursements of out-of-pocket expenses receieen €lients have been included as part of reveituascordance with EITF 01-14, “
Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursenfeedgived fo“Out-of-Pocket” Expenses Incurred.

Revenues for the following periods include reimieanents of out-of-pocket expenses:

Year ended December 31, 2C $ 9,56¢
Year ended December 31, 2C $11,80:"
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 7,077

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

The Company considers all highly liquid investmemischased with an original maturity of three mantih less to be cash equivalents.
Pursuant to the Company’s investment policy, itplsis funds are kept as cash or cash equivaledtsuaninvested in highly-rated mutual
funds, money market accounts and time depositsdoae its exposure to market risk with regard gs¢hfunds.

Current restricted cash represents amounts on dlegtsbanks against bank guarantees issued tirbagks for equipment imports that
will mature on various dates before December 31020

Non-current restricted cash represents amounts on lle@gtsbanks against bank guarantees issued thrbagks for equipment impor
amounts in an escrow account related to acquisitom for demands against pending income tax asses$s (see note 16 for details), that will
mature on various dates after December 31, 2010.

Investments

The Company'’s investments consist of time depaéits financial institutions which are valued at taad approximate fair value.
Interest earned on such investments is includéaténest income. Investments with maturities o§l#san twelve months from the balance s
date are classified as sheetm investments. Investments with maturities gnetitan twelve months from the balance sheet datelassified ¢
long-term investments.

Accounts Receivabl
Accounts receivable are recorded net of allowafmedoubtful accounts. Allowances for doubtful acots are established through the
evaluation of accounts receivables aging and podection experience to estimate the ultimateemébility of these receivables.

Accounts receivable include unbilled accounts neafgie which represents revenue for services peddrbut yet to be billed to the clie
As on December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company b@®@ and $1,292 of unbilled accounts receivalelgpectively.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulgpeelciition and amortization. Equipment held undgital leases is stated at the lower of
present value of minimum lease payments at theptiwre of the leases or its fair value. Advances paivards acquisition of fixed assets and
the cost of fixed assets not yet placed in sefvafere the end of the period are classified astooction in progress.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2009
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Fixed assets are reviewed for impairment whenewents or changes in circumstances indicate thatahging amount may not be
recoverable through an assessment of the estirfigtee undiscounted cash flows related to suchtasiethe event that assets are found to be
carried at amounts that are in excess of estimatdiscounted future cash flows, the carrying valfithe related asset or group of assets is
reduced to a level commensurate with fair valuebtas a discounted cash flow analysis.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-lineéhod over the following estimated useful lives loé assets. Depreciation and
amortization on equipment held under capital leasesleasehold improvements are computed usingtthigihtline method over the shorter
the assets’ estimated useful lives or the lease. ter

Estimated
Useful Life
gYears
Network equipment, cabling and comput 3-5
Buildings 30
Land —
Leasehold improvemen 3-5
Office furniture and equipmel 3-7
Motor vehicles 34

Business Combinations, Goodwill and Other IntangiRsset:

Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) topic 85Business Combinations{*ASC No. 850”), requires that the purchase metabd
accounting be used for all business combinatiohs.duidance specifies criteria as to intangibletsscquired in a business combination that
must be recognized and reported separately frordwiloASC topic 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other(*"ASC No. 350"), all assets and
liabilities of the acquired businesses, includingdwill, are assigned to reporting units.

Goodwill represents the cost of the acquired bissieg in excess of the fair value of identifiablegthle and intangible net assets
purchased. Goodwill is not amortized but is teseedmpairment at least on an annual basis, relging number of factors including operating
results, business plans and future cash flows. WReability of goodwill is evaluated using a two{stgrocess. The first step involves a
comparison of the fair value of a reporting unithwits carrying value. The fair value of the repagtunit is measured by discounting estimated
future cash flows. If the carrying amount of thparing unit exceeds its fair value, the secong sfethe process involves a comparison of the
fair value and carrying value of the goodwill otheporting unit. If the carrying value of the gdll of a reporting unit exceeds the fair value
of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recogniieén amount equal to the excess. Goodwill of @y unit will be tested for impairment
between annual tests if an event occurs or circamests change that would more likely than not redliedair value of the reporting unit below
its carrying amount.

Intangible assets are initially valued at fair neirkalue using generally accepted valuation metlpgsopriate for the type of intangible
asset. Intangible assets with definite lives arerimed over the estimated useful lives and areevesd for impairment, if indicators of
impairment arise. The evaluation of impairmentasdd upon a comparison of the carrying amounteifrttangible asset to the estimated fu
undiscounted net cash flows expected to be genkbgtéhe asset. If estimated future undiscountsti flaws are less than the carrying amount
of the asset, the asset is considered impairediriipairment expense is determined by comparinggienated fair value of the intangible a:
to its carrying value, with any shortfall from faialue recognized as an expense in the currerdcperi
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2009
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

The Company’s definite lived intangible assetsaar®rtized over their estimated useful lives agdidtelow using a straight-line method
or a method of amortization that reflects the patte which the economic benefits of the intangitdssets were consumed or otherwise
realized:

Customer relationshif 1-3 years
Trademarks 1.5 years
Non-compete agreemer 1 year

Derivative Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company elgtlaoks to mitigate the exposure of foreign coogmarket risk by entering into
various hedging instruments, authorized under Compalicies, with counterparties that are highlgethfinancial institutions. The Company
uses derivative instruments for the purpose ofgaithg the underlying exposure from foreign cursefigctuation risks associated with
forecasted transactions denominated in certaingioreurrencies and to minimize earnings and cash flolatility associated with changes in
foreign currency exchange rates, and not for spdigel trading purposes.

The Company hedges anticipated transactions thadudnject to foreign exchange exposure with foreigmency exchange contracts that
are designated effective and that qualify as clast liedges under ASC topic No. 819)érivatives and Hedgin§(“ASC No. 815"). Changes
in the fair value of these cash flow hedges whiehdeemed effective, are recorded in accumulategl @omprehensive income/(loss)
(*AOCI") until the hedged transactions occur andheit time are recognized in the consolidated states of income. Changes in the fair value
of cash flow hedges deemed ineffective are receghiz the consolidated statement of income andéhaheded in foreign exchange gain/(loss).
The Company also uses derivatives instruments stimgiof foreign currency exchange contracts nstgiated as hedging instruments under
ASC No. 815 to hedge intercompany balances and atbaetary assets or liabilities denominated irengies other than the functional
currency. Changes in the fair value of these déviga are recognized in the consolidated statenwrntecome and are included in foreign
exchange gain/(loss).

The Company evaluates hedge effectiveness atrtieeaticontract is entered into as well as on aniagduasis. If during this time, a
contract is deemed ineffective, the change in @lirevilue is recorded in the consolidated statemehincome and is included in foreign
exchange gain/(loss). For hedge relationshipsatetliscontinued because the forecasted transastimt expected to occur by the end of the
originally specified period, any related derivatamounts recorded in equity are reclassified taiegs.

Retirement Benefit:

Contributions to defined contribution plans arergea to consolidated statements of income in thi@gén which services are rendered
by the covered employees. Current service costddfined benefit plans are accrued in the periodtizh they relate. In accordance with A
No. 715, Compensation Retirement Benef{tASC No. 715"), the liability in respect of defidébenefit plans is calculated annually by the
Company using the projected unit credit methocrPérvice cost, if any, resulting from an amendmer plan is recognized and amortized
over the remaining period of service of the coveserbloyees. The Company recognizes its liabilfiecompensated absences in accordance
with ASC topic 710, “Compensation-General” (“ASC .Nd.0").
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2009
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Share-Based Compensation

The Company follow guidance under ASC topic 7T&)mpensation—Stock CompensatigfiASC No. 718”), which requires the
recognition of stock-based compensation expentigeigonsolidated financial statements for awardsgoity instruments to employees and
non-employee directors based on the grant-datediie of those awards. The Company recognizee tbesmpensation costs, net of an
estimated forfeiture rate over the requisite seryieriod of the award.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC topic 740;Income Taxes"(“ASC No. 740”). Under ASC No. 740,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recogniaetlture tax consequences attributable to diffees between the financial statement carrying
value of existing assets and liabilities and thespective tax basis and all operating lossesexhforward, if any. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using tax rates expeaepply to taxable income in the years in whichdpplicable temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effedederred tax assets and liabilities of a changexirates or tax status is recognized in the
statement of income in the period in which the gjeais identified. Deferred tax assets are redugea\mluation allowance if, based on
available evidence, it is more likely than not teame portion or all of the deferred tax assetsneil be realized.

ASC No. 740 clarifies the accounting for incomeetsoy prescribing the minimum recognition thresteotdx position is required to me
before being recognized in the financial stateméntdso provides guidance on de-recognition, messent, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesamd transition. The guidance contains a two-apgpoach to recognizing and measuring
uncertain tax positions accounted for in accordamite ASC No. 740. The first step is to evaluate thx position for recognition by
determining, based on the technical merits, thaptbsition will be more likely than not sustainggbn examination. The second step is to
measure the tax benefit as the largest amounedabthbenefit that is greater than 50% likely ahigerealized upon settlement. Interest and
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefitbaneg included in provision for income-tax expemsthe consolidated statements of income.

Financial Instruments and Concentration of CreditiBk

Financial Instrumentsi-or certain financial instruments including casd aash equivalents, short-term investments, aceaectivable,
accounts payable, accrued expenses, and othentliatglities, recorded amounts approximate failue due to the relatively short maturity
periods of such instruments.

Concentration of Credit RiskFinancial instruments that potentially subjeet @ompany to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents, time déppaccounts receivable and derivative finariostruments. By their nature, all such
financial instruments involve risks including thedit risks of non-performance by counterpartiagsBant to the Company’s investment
policy, its surplus funds are maintained as cagtash equivalents and are invested in highly-ratatual funds, money market accounts and
time deposits to reduce its exposure to marketwith regard to these funds. Trade accounts rebivare incurred pursuant to contractual
terms with customers. Credit losses on accountsvalole have not been material because of a langeenitration of revenues with a small
number of large, established companies. The Compealyates the creditworthiness of its clientsdnjanction with its revenue recognition
processes as well as through its ongoing collditfabssessment processes for accounts receivable.
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During the year ended December 31, 2009, two cust®eccounted for 21% and 13% respectively, oCtimpany’s total revenues.
During the year ended December 31, 2008, two custeccounted for 23% and 11%, respectively, otpany’s total revenues. During
the year ended December 31, 2007, two customeasiatad for 29% and 14% respectively, of the Comfsatojal revenues.

As of December 31, 2009, two customers accountedid® and 17% respectively, of the Company’s tatzlounts receivable. As of
December 31, 2008, two customers accounted for @5d4.3% respectively, of the Company’s total act®weceivable.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividaigntome to common stockholders by the weightedtamye number of common
shares outstanding during each period. In detengitiie income to common stockholders, net incommm® ftontinuing operations has been
reduced by dividends and accretion on preferrecks@iluted earnings per share are computed usiagveighted average number of common
shares plus the potentially dilutive effect of coomstock equivalents issued and outstanding aefharting date. Stock options, restricted
stock and restricted stock units that are antitidduare excluded from the computation of weigtagdrage shares outstanding.

Any cash or in-kind dividends paid with respectitovested shares of restricted stock and restratteak units are withheld by the
Company and paid to the holder of such sharesstriicged stock, without interest, only if and whsrch shares of restricted stock and restr
stock units vest. Any unvested shares of restristedk and restricted stock units are immediatetfefted without consideration upon the
termination of holder’'s employment with the Compamyts affiliates. Accordingly, the Company’s usted restricted stock and restricted
stock units do not include non-forfeitable righasdividends or dividend equivalents and are theesfmt considered as participating securities
for purposes of earnings per share calculationsyaunt to the two-class method. However, the Conipargsted restricted stock units against
which the underlying common stock has not beereidscontain non-forfeitable rights to dividendglosidend equivalents and are therefore
after vesting considered as participating secusrftie the purposes of computing basic earningspare pursuant to the two-class method.
Application of this treatment had an insignificaffiect.

The following table sets forth the computation agle and diluted earnings per share:

Year ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Numerators:
Net income:
Continuing operation $ 15,79 $ 11,13% $ 17,57t
Discontinued operatior (139 3,271 9,46¢
$ 15,65! $  14,40¢ $ 27,04
Denominators:
Basic weighted average common shares outstal 28,963,77 28,811,04 28,480,03
Dilutive effect of share based awai 454,14( 401,00¢ 711,16t
Diluted weighted average common shares outstar 29,417,91 29,212,04 29,191,19
Weighted average common shares considere-dilutive in computing
diluted earnings per sha 2,193,14 1,537,12. 498,00(
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income/(Lo

ASC topic 220, “Reporting Comprehensive Income” $@ No. 220")establishes rules for the reporting of comprehensicome and it
components. Comprehensive income is defined ahafiges in equity from non-owner sources. For th@@any, comprehensive income/
(loss) consists of net earnings/(loss), amortizatibactuarial gain/(loss) on retirement benefitd ahanges in the cumulative foreign currency
translation adjustments. In addition, the Compantgrs into foreign currency exchange contractsciviare designated as cash flow hedges in
accordance with ASC No. 815. Changes in the fduesof contracts that are deemed effective ar@rded as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income until the settlemetiaif contract. The balances of different componastsf December 31, 2009 and 2008 a
follows:

December 31 December 31

2009 2008
Cumulative translation adjustmet $ (4,97 $ (8,009
Unrealized gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges, nétxds $566 and ¢ 1,84: (6,287
Retirement benefits, net of taxes $136 ani (380 (207)
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(l¢ $ (3,519 $ (14,49)

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In September 2009, the Financial Accounting Stastsl&oard (FASB) issued Update No. 2009-13, “Mudtipleliverable Revenue
Arrangements—a consensus of the FASB Emerging $sBask Force” (ASU 2009-13). It updates the exgstinultiple-element revenue
arrangements guidance currently included under & 605-25, which originated primarily from theidance in EITF Issue No. 00-21,
“Revenue Arrangements with Multiple DeliverableEITF 00-21). The revised guidance primarily prowdeo significant changes: 1)
eliminates the need for objective and reliable enak of the fair value for the undelivered elememrder for a delivered item to be treated
separate unit of accounting, and 2) eliminategals&lual method to allocate the arrangement coretida. In addition, the guidance also
expands the disclosure requirements for revenwggretion. ASU 20093 will be effective for the first annual reportipgriod beginning on ¢
after June 15, 2010, with early adoption permitieavided that the revised guidance is retroactieglglied to the beginning of the year of
adoption. The Company is currently assessing thedumpact of this new accounting update on itssotidated financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued FAS 168, “The FASBodniting Standards Codification and the Hierarch@enerally Accepted
Accounting Principles,” which was principally coei into ASC topic 105 “Generally Accepted AccouagtiStandards” (ASC No. 105). This
standard will become the single source of authibréganongovernmental U.S. generally accepted adoogiprinciples. All existing accounting
standard documents will be superseded and all atteyunting literature not included in the FASB (fiodtion will be considered non-
authoritative. This guidance is effective for imerand annual periods ending after September 1@).28s ASC No. 105 was not intended to
change existing accounting guidance, its adoptidmdt have an impact on the Company’s consolidfitethcial statements.

In May 2009, the FASB issued ASC topic 855-10 “Sghgent events”, which is effective for interim anthual periods ending after
June 15, 2009. The guidance is intended to estagpdineral standards of accounting for and discéssaf events that occur after the balance
sheet date but before financial statements aredssuare available to be issued. It requires tbeabure of the date through which an entity
has evaluated subsequent events and the basimfatate—that is, whether that date representddteethe financial statements were
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issued or were available to be issued. This discoshould alert all users of financial statemémas an entity has not evaluated subsequent
events after that date in the set of financiakestents being presented. The adoption of this gaildid not have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, resafteperations or cash flows. See note 18 for furteails.

In April 2009, the FASB amended the authoritatiuédgnce on financial instruments to require disates about fair value of financial
instruments in interim as well as in annual finahstatements of publicly traded companies. Thdange is effective for interim and annual
periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early &dogpermitted for periods ending after March 1602. Because the guidance applies only to
financial statement disclosures, the adoption dichave a material effect on the Company’s conatdid financial position, results of
operations or cash flows. See note 6 for furthéaitbe

In December 2007, the FASB issued new accountitidggae for business combinations. The new accogigfiidance changes the
accounting for business combinations includingrtteasurement of acquirer shares issued in consimierfat a business combination, the
recognition of contingent consideration, the ac¢mgnfor pre-acquisition gain and loss contingeactbe recognition of capitalized in-process
research and development, the accounting for aitigunigselated restructuring cost accruals, thettresmt of acquisitiorrelated transaction co
and the recognition of changes in the acquirecsiime tax valuation allowance. The Company acquaréd0% stake in Schneider Logistics
Europe S.R.O. (“Schneider SRO”) on July 3, 2003 &bquisition was accounted for in accordance thiginew accounting guidance. See
note 5 for further details.

In December 2007, the FASB issued ASC topic 813 0€onsolidation—Transition and Open Effective ®&tformation”. ASC topic
810-10 establishes accounting and reporting stasdar a non-controlling interest in a subsidiang dor the deconsolidation of a subsidiary.
ASC topic 810-10-65 establishes accounting andrtieygpstandards that require (i) the ownershipregein subsidiaries held by parties other
than the parent to be clearly identified and prestin the consolidated balance sheet within eqbity separate from the parent’s equity,

(ii) the amount of consolidated net income attrtlé to the parent and the non-controlling intere$te clearly identified and presented on the
face of the consolidated statements of income (i#hdhanges in a parent’s ownership interest ltile parent retains its controlling financial
interest in its subsidiary to be accounted for &ieatly. The adoption of this guidance did notdavmaterial impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial position, results of opemasi or cash flows.
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3. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Summarized quarterly results for the years endezkdéer 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2009

Revenue:!

Gross profil

Income from continuing operatiol
Income/(loss) from discontinued operatic
Net income

Basic EPS

Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Diluted EPS

Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Weightec-average number of shares use

computing earnings per sha
Basic
Diluted
Note:
Stock compensation expe—Cost of
revenue
Stock compensation expe~SG&A
Amortization of intangible:

2008

Revenue:

Gross profil

Income from continuing operatiol
Income/(loss) from discontinued operatic
Net income/(loss

Basic EPS

Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Diluted EPS

Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Weightec-average number of shares use

computing earnings per sha

Basic

Diluted

Note:

Stock compensation expense—Cost of
revenues

Stock compensation expe~SG&A

Amortization of intangible:

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Three months endec

March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31 Full Year
$  40,98¢ $ 42,38¢ $  48,18¢ $ 59,43¢ $ 190,99
16,63( 16,55¢ 19,38 29,03¢ 81,60¢
3,02z 1,252 3,99 7,524 15,79:
(139) — — — (139)
$ 2,88: $ 1,252 $ 3,994 $ 7,52¢ $ 15,65
$ 0.1C $ 0.04 $ 0.14 $ 0.2¢€ $ 0.5t
$ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
$ 0.1C $ 0.04 $ 0.1 $ 0.2t $ 0.5¢
$ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
28,843,19 28,906,05 28,930,34 29,044,34 28,963,77
29,079,67 29,159,54 29,368,39 29,932,88 29,417,91
$ 301 $ 454 $ 341 $ 30¢ $ 1,40¢
$ 1,23¢ $ 1,52( $ 1,53¢ $ 1,39t $ 5,68¢
$ — $ — $ 84 $ 83 $ 167
Three months ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Full Year

$ 44,43 $ 47,01 $ 46,57 $ 43,69t $ 181,71
15,791 16,79 18,527 18,16! 69,27¢
4,71°F 2,59¢ 374 3,45(C 11,130

2,08t 2,667 (1,45(0) (31) 3,271

$  6,80( $  5,26¢ $ (1,079 $  3,41¢ $  14,40¢
$ 0.1€ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.01 $ 0.12 $ 0.3¢
$ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.05) $ — $ 0.11
$ 0.1€ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.01 $ 0.1 $ 0.3¢
$ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.05) $ — $ 0.11
28,757,07 28,799,51 28,846,13 28,839,72 28,811,04
29,292,83 29,351,03 29,127,30 29,075,29 29,212,04
$ 133 $ 45¢E $ 39¢€ $ 12¢ $ 1,112
$ 85€ $ 1,432 $ 1,15¢ $ 72% $ 4,16¢
$ 212 $ 221 $ 51 $ 50 $ 534
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4. Segment Information

The Company is organized around its outsourcing@es and transformation services segments. Thef operating decision maker
generally reviews financial information at the colidated statement of income level but does naereany information except for revenues
and cost of revenues of the individual segmentseréfore, the Company does not allocate or evahyedeating expenses, interest expense or
income, capital expenditures, and income taxetstogderating segments. Consequently, it is nottigeldo show assets, capital expenditures,
depreciation or amortization by segment.

Revenues and cost of revenues for each of the gedesd December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, for ouisguservices and
transformation services segments, respectivelyagfellows:

Year ended December 31, 20C Year ended December 31, 20C
Outsourcing Transformation Outsourcing Transformation
Services Services Total Services Services Total
Revenue: $ 152,63¢ $ 38,357 $190,99! $ 138,77( $ 42,944 $181,71:
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation andréipadion) 83,06¢ 26,32¢ 109,38t 85,197 27,23¢ 112,43t
Gross profit $ 69,574 $ 12,03: $ 81,60¢ $ 53,57 $ 15,70¢ $ 69,27¢
Operating expense 57,20¢ 53,61¢
Other Income / (expens (4,90¢) (5,86¢)
Income tax provision / (benefi 3,707 1,34(
Income from continuing operatiol 15,79: 11,137
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, netgés (139 3,271
Net income $ 15,65: $ 14,40¢

Year ended December 31, 2007
Outsourcing Transformation

Services Services Total
Revenue: $ 120,900 $ 31,12¢ $152,03:
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation andréizadion) 78,21¢ 21,89: 100,11:
Gross profif $ 42,68¢ $ 9,23: $ 51,92:
Operating expense 47,10
Other Income / (expens 11,787
Income tax provision / (benefi 9749
Income from continuing operatiol 17,57¢
Income from discontinued operations, net of te 9,46¢
Net income $ 27,04«

5. Business Combinations, Goodwill and Intangible #sets

On July 3, 2009, the Company acquired a 100% staBehneider SRO, which is located in Olomouc,@zech Republic, for a cash
consideration of approximately $3,529 (net of castuired of $942), including post-closing adjusttseBchneider SRO provides complex
transaction processing services to its clientsuroge and the U.S. The acquisition provides the @omy with multi-lingual delivery
capabilities and a cost effective delivery locatiofEastern Europe.
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The Company made an allocation of the purchase poithe tangible and intangible assets and lt&slacquired, based on their fair
values, including approximately $2,062 to non-tadukctible goodwill and $794 to intangible assetqipally customer relationships. The
intangible assets are being amortized over a wedbhterage life of 3 years. The Company recograzedisition related costs of
approximately $150 related to this transaction amdincluded in the general and administrative egpe in the consolidated statements of
income.

On November 4, 2009, the Company entered into set @asirchase agreement with American Express pursuavhich the Company
acquired the operations of the American Expresb@&@Idravel Service Center, a business unit of AozariExpress located in Gurgaon, India,
that provides the travel-related business procetarcing services of American Express. Americapress is an existing client of the
Company. The purchase price of the transactioppsaximately $29 million, subject to certain pokising adjustments. The purchase price
was paid in cash using cash on hand and the tidmsa&tosed on March 1, 2010. See note 18 for &rrttetails.

Goodwill
Following are details of the Company’s goodwilldrate as of December 31, 2009:

Outsourcing Transformation
Services Services Total
Balance at January 1, 20 $ — $ 16,78 $16,78¢
Goodwill arising from acquisitio 987 — 987
Allocation of Goodwill to discontinued operatio (17§ — (17¢)
Foreign currency translatic (37 — (37
Balance at December 31, 2C $ Iy $ 16,78t $17,557
Goodwill arising from acquisitio 2,062 — 2,062
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 2,83 $ 16,78t $19,61¢

Based on the results of its first step impairmestd performed during the year ended December(8B, 2he Company's goodwill was
not impaired. The Company makes every reasonafue & ensure that it accurately estimates thevaliue of the reporting units. However,
future changes in the assumptions used to make #etBnates could result in the recording of anaimmpent loss. In the event the Company
records an impairment loss in the future, such arhaill not be deductible for tax purposes.

Intangible Asset:
Information regarding the Company’s intangible ésgeas follows:

Year ended December 31, 2009

Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Customer Relation $ 79 $ (167) $ 627

$ 794 $ (167 $ 627
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Year ended December 31, 2008

Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Trade Marks $ 33C $ (330 $ —
Customer Relation 1,55¢ (1,554 —
Non-compete agreemer 1,46( (1,460 —
$3,34¢ $ (3,349 $ —

Amortization expense for the year ended Decembge2@19, 2008 and 2007 was $167, $534 and $1,680ectvely. The estimated
amortization of intangible assets for the yearsrap®ecember 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 is $329, $280568, respectively.

6. Fair Value Measurements

ASC topic 820, ‘Fair Value Measurements and Disclosufg$ASC No. 820") defines fair value as the price that would be rexiupot
sale of an asset or paid upon transfer of a lighitian orderly transaction between market paréints at the measurement date and in the
principal or most advantageous market for thattamskability. The fair value should be calculatedsed on assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset oriliigh not on assumptions specific to the entity.addition, the fair value of liabilities should
include consideration of non-performance risk, tidahg the Company’s own credit risk.

ASC No. 820 establishes a three-level hierarchfpiofvalue measurements based on whether the inptitdse measurements are
observable or unobservable. Observable inputsctafi@arket data obtained from independent sourckie wnobservable inputs reflect the
Company’s market assumptions. The fair-value hédwarequires the use of observable market data \ahaifable and consists of the
following levels:

» Level 1- Quoted prices for identical instruments in activarkets;

* Level 2- Quoted prices for similar instruments in active kets; quoted prices for identical or similar instrents in markets thi
are not active; and moc-derived valuations in which all significant inpuiie observable in active markets; i

» Level 3— Valuations derived from valuation techniques inethdne or more significant inputs are unobserve
The following table sets forth the Compasi@ssets and liabilities that were accounted féaiatalue as of December 31, 2009. The ti

excludes short-term investments, accounts recatyalotounts payable and accrued expenses for fdiforalues approximate their carrying
amounts.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Valt

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Money market and mutual fun $117,37C  $ — $— $117,37(
Derivative financial instrumen — 2,47( — 2,47(
Total $117,37( $2,47( $— $119,84(
Liabilities — — — —
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Derivative Financial InstrumenffThe Company’s derivative financial instruments ésinaf foreign currency forward exchange contracts.
Fair values for derivative financial instrumente dased on broker quotations and are classifieéges 2. See note 7 for further details on
Derivatives and Hedge Accounting.

7. Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

The Company actively looks to mitigate the exposfrioreign currency market risk by entering infrious hedging instruments,
authorized under Company policies, with counteipaithat are highly rated financial institutionfieTCompany’s primary exchange rate
exposure is to the U.K. pound sterling and thedndupee. The Company uses derivative instrumenthé purpose of mitigating the
underlying exposure from foreign currency fluctoatrisks associated with forecasted transactionsm@ated in certain foreign currencies
and to minimize earnings and cash flow volatilissaciated with changes in foreign currency exchaagss, and not for speculative trading
purposes. These derivative financial instrumergdangely forward foreign exchange contracts thatdesignated effective and that qualify as
cash flow hedges under ASC topic 815, “Derivatiaed Hedging” (“ASC No. 815”). The Company also udesvatives consisting of foreign
currency exchange contracts not designated astmpdgitruments under ASC No. 815 to hedge interaamybalances and other monetary
assets or liabilities denominated in currenciegothan the functional currency.

The Company had outstanding foreign exchange atsttataling $90,000 and GBP 7,662 as of Decembge?@09 and totaling $110,1
and GBP 30,320 as of December 31, 2008. The Comgstitates that approximately $1,451 of net dekieagains included in accumulated
other comprehensive income could be reclassifiezléarnings within the next 12 months based onaxgé rates prevailing as of
December 31, 2009. At December 31, 2009, the maximutstanding term of derivative instruments thedde forecasted transactions was
thirty-six months.

The Company evaluates hedge effectiveness atrttgeaticontract is entered into as well as on aniogdasis. If during this time, a
contract is deemed ineffective, the change in @lirevilue is recorded in the consolidated statemehincome and is included in foreign
exchange gain/(loss). For hedge relationshipsateatliscontinued because the forecasted transastimt expected to occur by the end of the
originally specified period, any related derivatar@ounts recorded in equity are reclassified taiags. No significant amounts of gains or
losses were reclassified from AOCI into earninga assult of forecasted transactions that failedciur during the year ended December 31,
2009. For the year ended December 31, 2008, (3868 reclassified from AOCI into earnings becatisesss not probable that the forecasted
transaction would occur.

The following tables set forth the fair value oétforeign currency exchange contracts and theatioo on the consolidated financial
statements:

Derivatives designated as hedging instrumer

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Accrued expense and other current liabilities
Foreign currency exchange contre $ — $ 5,411
Non-current liabilities:
Foreign currency exchange contre $ — $ 77C
Other current assets:
Foreign currency exchange contre $ 1451 $ —
Other assets:
Foreign currency exchange contre $ 957 $ —
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Derivatives not designated as hedging instrumet

Other current assets:

Foreign currency exchange contre

Accrued expense and other current liabilities
Foreign currency exchange contre

December 31

2009

$ 62

$ —

December 31

2008
$ —

$ 22¢

The following tables set forth the effect of foneigurrency exchange contracts on the consolida#temsents of income for the years

ended December 31, 2009 and 2008:

Amount of
Location of Gain or (Loss)
Gain or (Loss) Recognized in
Amount of Recognized Income on
Gain Amount of in Income on Derivative
or (Loss) Gain or (Loss) Derivative (Ineffective
Recognized in Location of Reclassified (Ineffective Portion and
AQOCI on Gain or (Loss) from AOCI into Portion and Amount
Derivative Reclassified Income Amount Excluded Excluded from
(Effective from AOCI into (Effective from Effectiveness
Derivatives in Cash Flow Portion) Income Portion) Effectiveness Testin
Hedging Relationships 2009 2008 (Effective Portion) 2009 2008 Testing) 2009 2008

Foreign exchange contracts

$1,72F $(15,647)  (loss)

Foreign exchange gain /

Location of Gain or (Loss)

Derivatives not designatec
as Hedging Instruments

Recognized in Income
Derivatives

on

Foreign exchange gain

$(6,399 $(3,67)  (loss)

Amount of
Gain or (Loss)
Recognized in

Income on

Derivatives

2009 2008

Foreign exchange contrac

8. Fixed Assets:
Fixed assets consist of the following:

Network equipment, cabling and comput
Buildings

Land

Leasehold improvemen

Office furniture and equipmel

Motor vehicles

Construction in progres

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza

Foreign exchange gain / (los

84

$22C $2,50¢

December 31

2009
$ 36,31
1,70¢
1,11¢
13,36
5,26¢
96E
1,04¢
59,77¢
(35,81%)
$ 23,96

$(116) $(3,207)

December 31

2008
$ 32,02¢
1,63¢
1,06¢
11,41
4,18(
88¢
1,03:
52,24t
(27,72)
$ 24,51
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Depreciation and amortization expense excludingréimadion of acquisition related intangibles foetpears ended December 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007 was $11,238, $10,622 and $7,582%ctgely.

Construction in progress represents advances @aiartls acquisition of fixed assets and the cofiketl assets not yet ready to be placed
in service. The cost and accumulated amortizatfassets under capital leases at December 31,28(93$500 and $228, respectively, and at
December 31, 2008 were $447 and $154, respectively.

9. Capital Structure
Common Stock

Prior to the Company’s October 2006 initial puldféering, the Company had Series A common stockSeries B common stock issued
and outstanding. Holders of Series A common st@tkdne vote for each share held with respect tmatters voted on by the stockholders of
the Company. Holders of Series B common stock dichave any voting rights. In connection with thet@er 2006 initial public offering all
outstanding shares of Series B common stock oftimapany converted automatically into shares oféS8eli common stock (the
“Conversion”). In addition, immediately prior togltonsummation of the offering, the Company inadats total authorized number of shares
of capital stock and effected a two-for-one stqalit §the “Stock Split”). As a result of the Octatiz006 initial public offering, the Company
only has one class of common stock outstanding.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Coynpeguired 4,329 shares of common stock from eng@eyn connection with
withholding tax payments related to the vestingestricted stock for a total consideration of $88e purchase price of $9.08 per share was the
average of the high and low price of the Compasfiares of common stock on the Nasdaq Global Sgladtet on the trading day prior to the
vesting date of the shares of restricted stocks@&lshares are held as treasury stock. During tireeyeled 2008, the Company acquired 16,541
shares of common stock from employees for a taasicleration of $246.

During the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2868 tmpany purchased 5,621 and 56,849 sharesctiegpg of its common stock
for an aggregate purchase price of approximatelyesfl $340 respectively, excluding commissionsieggmting an average purchase price per
share of $6.11 and $5.97. These shares were perthapart of the share repurchase program thabrzed the purchase of up to $10,000 of
the Company’s outstanding common stock on or padiovember 2009. Repurchased shares have beedeédcas treasury shares and will be
held until the Company’s board of directors desigadhat these shares be retired or used for ptirposes.

10. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company’s Gratuity Plan provides a lump summpeant to vested employees on retirement or on textioin of employment in an
amount based on the respective employee’s salaryears of employment with the Company. Liabilitiéth regard to the Gratuity Plan are
determined by actuarial valuation using the pr@éainit credit method. Current service costs fer@matuity Plan are accrued in the year to
which they relate. Actuarial gains or losses oompservice costs, if any, resulting from amendmémthe plans are recognized and amortized
over the remaining period of service of the empésye
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The benefit obligation has been measured as ofrbleee31, 2009. The following table sets forth thévéity and the funded status of the
Gratuity Plan and the amounts recognized in the my's consolidated financial statements at thedadride relevant periods:

December 31,

2009 2008
Change in projected benefit obligatic

Benefit obligation at the beginning of the y $1,101 $1,23¢
Impact of change in measurement ¢ — 70
Service cos 284 30¢
Interest cos 11F 104
Benefits paic (239 (257)
Divestiture — (211
Actuarial loss 37€ 112
Effect of exchange rate chancg 67 (26E)
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the $1,80¢ $1,101
Unfunded amournor-current $1,28:2 $ 62C
Unfunded amourcurrent $ 52z $ 481
Total Accrued liability $1,80< $1,101
Accumulated benefit obligatic $1,39¢ $ 897

Net gratuity cost includes the following components

December 31

2007
2009 2008 (@
Service cos $284 $26tE  $32Z
Interest cos 11E 89 49
Actuarial loss 73 13€ 16
Net gratuity cos $472  $49C  $387

(&) Amounts include NCOI

The amount in accumulated other comprehensivethadss expected to be recognized as a componargtgferiodic benefit cost over !
next fiscal year is $163. The components of accatedlother comprehensive income that has not legnized as components of net
gratuity cost in the statement of income as of Ddwer 31, 2009 is as follows:

December 31

2009 2008
Net actuarial los $371 $207
Net prior service cos 9 =
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net o $38C $207
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The weighted average actuarial assumptions useetésmine benefit obligations and net periodicgtatcost are:

December 31,

2007

200¢ 2008 @
Discount rate 6.1% 10.(% 8.7%
Rate of increase in compensation le\ 8.C% 8.C% 8.C%

The Company evaluates these assumptions annuakylmm its long-term plans of growth and industandards. The discount rates are
based on current market yields on government déesuddjusted for a suitable risk premium.

Expected benefit payments during the year endingeBbéer 31

2010 $ 52z
2011 $ 57¢€
2012 $ 607
2013 $ 577
2014 $ 547
2015 to 201¢ $1,40¢

The Company maintains both the Exl Service Inc(KORlan and the Inductis 401(k) Profit SharingrRlghe “401(k) Plans”) under
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code of 188&ring all eligible employees, as defined. Tllen@any may make discretionary
contributions of up to a maximum of 3% of emplogeepensation within certain limits. The Companydsitribution to the 401(k) Plans
amounted to $171, $342 and $380 during the yeatsdeDecember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2002@0d, the Company contributed the following amouotgarious defined
contribution plans on behalf of its employees idi#n the Philippines and the Czech Republic. Cbations during the year ended
December 31, 2009 include $361 for employees irCthech Republic.

Year ended December 31, 2C $2,37¢
Year ended December 31, 2C $1,89:
Year ended December 31, 2C $1,69¢
11. Leases

The Company leases motor vehicles for certainsoéiihployees. Such leases are recorded as capgakld-uture minimum lease
payments under these capital leases at Decemb20393,are as follows:

Year ending December 3

2010 $162
2011 99
2012 48
Total minimum lease paymer 30¢
Less: amount representing inter _ 28
Present value of minimum lease payme 281
Less: current portio 144
Long term capital lease obligatir $137
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The Company conducts its operations using fadgligased under non-cancelable operating leaseragnég that expire at various dates.
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancetajstkements expiring after more than twelve montesa follows:

Year ending December 3

2010 $ 3,541
2011 2,82¢
2012 1,40¢
2013 1,13¢
2014 634
2015 and thereafte 2,32¢

$11,87:

The operating leases are subject to renewal pegtigiand have scheduled rent increases. The Coyrguanounts for scheduled rent on a
straight line basis over the lease period. Renérge under both cancelable and non-cancelabletopeleases was $5,854, $5,384 and $3,330
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and, 28€pectively. Deferred rent as of December B092and 2008 was $1,437 and $1,537
respectively and are included in “Accrued expersebsother current liabilities” in the consolidatealance sheets.

12. Income Taxes
The components of income from continuing operatiogf®re income taxes consist of the following:

Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Domestic $ 3,332 $(5,92)) $(4,084)
Foreign 16,16 15,72« 20,68¢

$19,49¢  $ 9,79i $16,60:

The income tax provision/(benefit) relating to doning operations consists of the following:

Year ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Current provision
Domestic $ 4,62¢ $ — $ —
Foreign 7,474 725 2,78¢

$12,10¢ $ T2t $2,78¢

Deferred benefit

Domestic $(1,596  $(1,820  $(1,349
Foreign (6,804 (245) (2,414
$(8,400  $(2,065)  $(3,769

Income tax benef $ 3,70¢ $(1,340 $ (979
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The effective income tax rate differs from the amoeomputed by applying the U.S. federal statutocpme tax rate to income before
income taxes approximately as follows:

December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Expected tax provisio $ 6,82¢ $ 3,42¢ $ 5,81(
Change in valuation allowan: 71C 93 721
Deferred tax benef (2,167 194 (3,11¢)
Impact of tax holida) (3,119 (5,72¢) (4,899
State taxes, net of Federal ta 26¢ (37 (63
Non-deductible no-cash compensatic 962 63¢ 50¢€
Others 213 70 67
Tax provision/(benefit $ 3,708 $(1,340 $ (979

The fiscal year under the Indian Income Tax Actseond March 31. Certain facilities leased by the @any’s Indian subsidiaries qualify
for an exemption from corporate tax under secti@a @&r 10B of the Indian Income Tax Act. This exeroptis available for a period of ten
consecutive years beginning with the financial yieawhich the facility begins to manufacture or gwoe eligible goods and services. During
the year ended December 31, 2009, the Indian gowarheffected further amendments to the Indianiredax Act and extended the tax
holiday for eligible units to March 31, 2011. Aftire expiration of the tax holiday period for soafehe facilities leased by the Company’s
Indian subsidiaries on April 1, 2010, any profiengrated from the services provided from suchifeslwill be fully taxable. For the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the eff¢ise income tax holiday was to reduce the ovénatbme tax provision and increase net
income by approximately $3,113, $5,728 and $4,898pectively, and increase diluted earnings paresna$0.11, $0.20 and $0.17,
respectively.

The components of the deferred tax balances agoémber 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

December 31
2009 2008
Deferred tax asset
Tax credit carry forwar $ 4,26¢ $ 2,10¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,21F 3,51¢
Sharw-based compensatic 4,67: 3,231
Accrued employee costs and other expe 1,72C 411
Net operating loss carry forwar 68¢ —
Unrealized exchange lo 49¢ 81C
Deferred ren 25t 265
Allowance for doubtful debt 10¢€ 54
Others 17 59
$16,44: $10,45¢
Valuation allowanct (2,259 (4,010
Deferred tax asse $14,18¢ $ 6,44¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible asset $ 26¢ $ —
Unrealized exchange gain on cash flow hec 56€ —
Deferred tax liabilities $ 83E $ —
Net deferred tax asse $13,35¢ $ 6,44¢
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognieeéuture tax consequences attributable to tempatidferences between the financial
statement carrying values of assets and liabildies their respective tax bases and operatingcknsyg forwards. The Company measures
deferred tax assets and liabilities using enactrddtes expected to apply to taxable income iryé#aes in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The Coymeangnizes the effect on deferred tax assetsialitities of a change in tax rates in
income in the period that includes the enactmeta. ddhe Company determines if a valuation allowdagequired or not on the basis of an
assessment of whether it is more likely than nat ¢hdeferred tax asset will be realized.

At December 31, 2009, the Company performed arysisabf the deferred tax asset valuation allowdaceertain units of its Indian
subsidiaries. Previously, the Company believedttiete was uncertainty relating to the possiblemsion of the tax holiday for certain units
and accordingly determined that it was more likblgn not that the Company’s deferred tax assets netrgoing to be utilized due to the tax
holiday and possible extension of that tax holidsgcordingly, a full valuation allowance offsettitigese deferred tax assets was recorded.
to the recent amendments of the Indian Income Taxwentioned above, the Company released the vatualiowance relating to those units
and recognized an income tax benefit of $4,008éncbnsolidated statement of income for the yede@mecember 31, 2009. The Company
continues to record a valuation allowance on detetax assets pertaining to those units of the @oiyip subsidiaries for which the tax holic
period is definitively extended. The valuation allmce as of December 31, 2009 and December 31,289&pproximately $2,254 and
$4,010, respectively.

Pursuant to changes in the Indian Income Tax AehfApril 1, 2007, the Company has calculated iditbility after considering the
Minimum Alternate Tax (“MAT”). Amounts paid towafdAT can be carried forward and set off against fetiax liabilities. In accordance
with ASC topic 740 ‘Income Taxe$ (“ASC No. 740”) a deferred tax asset of $4,269 $2,109 has been recognized as of December 39, 200
and 2008, respectively with respect to such paysent

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, no deferred incaxesthave been provided for the Company’s shanedittributed net earnings of
foreign operations due to management’s intentitovest such amounts indefinitely. The determinatibthe amount of such unrecognized tax
liability is not practical. Those earnings total®b,449 and $53,286 as of December 31, 2009 argl 28pectively.

The Company'’s provision for income taxes also idekithe impact of provisions established for uagihcome tax positions
determined in accordance with ASC No. 740 as vweetha related net interest. Tax exposures canvevadmplex issues and may require
extended periods to resolve. Although the Compaatigbes that it has adequately reserved for itetam tax positions, no assurance can be
given that the final tax outcome of these mattdtsnet be different. The Company adjusts thesemess in light of changing facts and
circumstances, such as the closing of a tax auditeorefinement of an estimate. To the extentttiafinal tax outcome of these matters differs
from the amounts recorded, such differences willaot the provision for income taxes in the periogvhich such determination is made.
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The following summarizes the activity related te tiross unrecognized tax benefits from Januar9Q9 2hrough December 31, 2009:

Balance as of January 1, 2C $ —
Increases related to prior year tax positi —
Decreases related to prior year tax posit| —
Increases related to current year tax posit 4,06(

Effect of exchange rate chanc 96
Balance as of December 31, 2( $4,15¢

The unrecognized tax benefits as of December 319 0 $4,156, if recognized, would impact the efifectax rate.

Interest and penalties during the year ended Deeef3ith 2009 were insignificant. The unrecognizeddanefits may increase or decre
in the next 12 months depending on the Company pdaitions.

13. Stock Based Compensation

In 2003, the Company instituted the ExIService litald, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan (the “2003 Plai)e 2003 Plan covers all the
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.ddmapensation Committee of the board of directdrs {Committee”) administers the 2003
Plan and grants stock options to eligible employd#dhe Company and its subsidiaries. The Commitgtermined which employees were
eligible to receive options, the number of optitmbe granted, the exercise price, the vestingpdeand the exercise period. The vesting period
for the options issued was determined on the dateeqgrant and was non-transferable during theedffthe option. Options issued under the
2003 Plan expire ten years from the date of gradtgenerally vest incrementally over a period afrfpears from the date of grant with 25% of
the options vesting each year.

Pursuant to the 2003 Plan, the Company reservé@® D80 shares of common stock after giving effeche Stock Split and Conversion,
for the granting of options. If an employee is terated, they must exercise any vested options mihi days after termination or the vested
options are forfeited. On September 29, 2006, v @any decided to cease making new grants und@0B@ Plan. Grants previously made
under the 2003 Plan may continue to be exercisaddnrdance with the terms of the 2003 Plan. ASegftember 29, 2006, the pool of shares
available for grant under the 2003 Plan (329,8%eshof common stock) was added to the pool ofahai shares under the 2006 Plan (as
defined below).

In 2006, the Company instituted the ExIService litald, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Award Plan (the “2006 P)arfiich replaced the 2003 Pl:
The 2006 Plan covers all the employees of the Cosngdnder the 2006 Plan, the Committee may gratrdsvof nonqualified stock options,
incentive stock options, stock appreciation rightstricted stock, restricted stock units, stockusawards, performance compensation awards
(including cash bonus awards) or any combinatiothefforegoing.

The Committee determines which employees are #igtbreceive the equity awards, the number oftgqwards to be granted, the
exercise price, the vesting period and the exepsiod. The vesting period for the equity awaslied is determined on the date of the grant
and is non-transferable during the life of the ggaivard. The options expire ten years from the dagrant and generally vest incrementally
over a period of four years from the date of graith 10% vesting at the end of year one, 20% vgstinthe end of year two, 30% vesting at
end of year three and 40% vesting at the end offge. Pursuant to the 2006 Plan, the Company
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reserved 3,399,384 shares of common stock (iniaddi the available pool of 329,854 shares from2003 plan) for the granting of equity
awards. If an employee resigns or is terminateglethployee must exercise any vested options witbidays after termination or the vested
options are forfeited. At a special meeting of @@npany’s stockholders held on January 29, 20@9Ctmpany’s stockholders approved,
among other things, an amendment to the 2006 Blarttease the number of shares of its common sssciable there under by 4,000,000
shares, which brought the total number of sharssrved under the plan to 7,729,238.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptedaguie under ASC topic 718, using the modified prospe method of transition.
Under the provisions of this guidance, the estichéaé value of share-based awards granted undek stcentive plans is recognized as
compensation expense over the vesting period. Ubmgnodified prospective method, compensation es@és recognized beginning with the
effective date of adoption of this guidance forshlire based payments (i) granted after the efedtite of adoption and (ii) granted prior to
effective date of adoption and that remain unvestethe date of adoption.

The following costs related to the Company’s stbeked compensation plan are included in the caleelil statement of income:

Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Cost of Revenu $1,40¢ $1,112 $1,11¢
General and Administrative expen: 3,45¢ 2,71¢ 2,47
Selling and Marketing expens 2,23 1,44 714
Total $7,09: $5,27¢ $4,30i

Effective April 1, 2007 the Indian government erakch Fringe Benefit Tax (“FBT”) on equity compemsat In July 2009, the Indian
government abolished the FBT effective April 1, 200he FBT was calculated based on the differeeteden the fair market value as of the
vesting date and the exercise price of the equitypensation awards granted to India-based emploifeeshe years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company recorded FBT aepehapproximately $179 and $234 and $268, relspdct The Company recovered
FBT from its India-based employees, and such regowes treated as an additional exercise pricevaaslrecorded as additional paideapita
in the consolidated balance sheet. Because théiabalf the FBT resulted in a change in the exaqrice of equity-compensation awards
granted to its India-based employees, the Compasyrequired to re-compute the fair value of thetamding stock options and restricted
stock as of the date of the modification. For tearyended December 31, 2009, the Company recogaighse of approximately $427 as a
result of such modification.

The fair value of each stock option granted to eygés not subject to the FBT is estimated on the afagrant using the Black-Scholes
optionpricing model and the fair value of each stock@ptjranted to employees subject to the FBT wamagtd at the date of grant using
Monte Carlo simulation model with the following wéited average assumptions:

Year ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected life (years 4.5¢ 5.52 6.2t

Risk free interest rai 1.72% 2.4% 4.54%
Volatility 50% 39% 50%
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The estimated expected term of options granted&as based on historical experience since Octdl@,2vhich is representative of the
expected term of the options. Volatility has bealtalated based on the volatility of the Comparmgmmon stock and the volatility of stocks
of comparative companies. The risk-free interetst tlaat the Company uses in the option valuatiodehis based on U.S. treasury zemspon
bonds with a remaining term similar to the expedézth of the options. The Company does not antieipaying any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future and therefore uses an expentieléidd yield of zero in the option valuation modehe Company is required to estimate
forfeitures at the time of grant and revise thastér@ates in subsequent periods if actual forfeguiéfer from those estimates. The Company
uses historical data to estimate pre-vesting ofgtidieitures and records stock-based compensatiparse only for those awards that are
expected to vest. All stock-based payment awarelsuanortized on a straight-line basis over the s#guservice periods of the awards, which
are generally the vesting periods.

Stock option activity under the Company’s stocknglés shown below:

Weighted-

Weighted- Average

Remaining

Average Contractual

Number of Exercise Aggregate

Options Price Intrinsic Value Life (years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,642,19 $ 10.4¢
Granted 462,00( 21.9¢
Exercisec (293,719 5.5¢
Forfeited (228,66() 12.4C
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,581,81! $ 14.3¢
Granted 469,00( 16.2(
Exercisec (37,219 10.3:
Forfeited (224,84%) 16.5¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,788,75: $ 14.67
Granted 1,658,88! 8.92
Exercisec (66,209 12.0¢
Forfeited (193,37() 18.1:

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 3,188,06! $ 11.57 $  21,99¢ 7.94

Vested and exercisable at December 31, : 960,04¢ $ 12.1¢ $ 6,00¢ 6.6(C

Available for grant at December 31, 2C 4,211,27.

The unrecognized compensation cost for unvestadrapas of December 31, 2009, is $8,730, whiclxpeeted to be expensed over a
weighted average period of 2.52 years. The weightedlage fair value of options granted during tearg ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and
2007 was $3.52, $6.36 and $11.89, respectively tdta¢ grant date fair value of options vested mgithe years ended December 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007 was $3,147, $1,815 and $1,251, riesglgc The aggregate intrinsic value of optiongeised during the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $290, $38%4644, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the status of thenGany’s stock options outstanding and stock opti@sted and exercisable at
December 31, 2009:

Options Vested and

Options Outstanding Exercisable

Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Exercise Exercise

Range of Exercise Price Shares Price Shares Price
$0.12 to $0.1° 41,37¢ $ 0.12 41,37¢ $ 0.1Z
$8.00 to $15.01 2,533,991 9.92 758,81( 11.3¢
$15.01 to $24.0 612,70( 18.92 159,86( 19.0¢
Total 3,188,06! $ 11.52 960,04¢ $ 12.1¢

Subsequent to December 31, 2009, the Company grd@t450 restricted stock units to its employeebdirectors and 50,069 stock
options to its directors.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

An award of restricted stock is a grant of shatdgext to conditions and restrictions set by then@ittee. The grant or the vesting of an
award of restricted stock may be conditioned upamise to the Company or its affiliates or upon dtiainment of performance goals or other
factors, as determined in the discretion of the @ittee. The Committee may also, in its discretjpmoyide for the lapse of restrictions impo
upon an award of restricted stock. Holders of aardvef restricted stock may have, with respechéorestricted stock granted, all of the rights
of a stockholder, including the right to vote andéceive dividends.

The Committee is authorized to award restrictedkstmits to participants. The Committee establigthegerms, conditions and
restrictions applicable to each award of restristedk units, including the time or times at whieltricted stock units will be granted or vested

and the number of units to be covered by each awérelterms and conditions of each restricted stwvekrd will be reflected in a restricted
stock unit agreement.

Any cash or in-kind dividends paid with respecutwvested shares of restricted stock and restrittak units are withheld by the
Company and paid to the holder of such sharesstficted stock, without interest, only if and wharch shares of restricted stock and restr
stock units vest. Any unvested shares of restristedk and restricted stock units are immediatetiefted without consideration upon the
termination of holder's employment with the Compamyts affiliates. Accordingly, the Company’s usted restricted stock and restricted
stock units do not include non-forfeitable righasdividends or dividend equivalents and are theesfmt considered as participating securities
for purposes of earnings per share calculationsyaunt to the two-class method.
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Restricted stock and restricted stock unit activitger the Company’s stock plans is shown below:

Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Units
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Grant Grant
Date Fair Date Fair
Number Value Number Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 267,27( $ 9.3¢ 16,00( $ 9.8¢
Granted 459,60( 22.3¢ 20,00( 23.4i
Vested (77,766 9.4¢ (16,000 9.8¢
Forfeited (48,399 11.9( — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 600,71( 19.1¢ 20,00( 23.4
Granted 198,30 18.4: 24,00( 10.2¢
Vested (125,88)) 16.4C (20,000 23.4i
Forfeited (94,885 15.2¢ — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 578,24¢ 20.1: 24,00( 10.2¢
Granted 12,00( 17.72 28,00( 14.0¢
Vested (157,759 16.4¢ (24,000 10.2¢
Forfeited (52,687) 18.7¢ — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 379,81( $ 21.7¢ 28,00( $ 14.0¢

The fair value of restricted stock and restrictixtls units is generally the market price of the @amy’s shares on the date of grant. A
December 31, 2009, unrecognized compensation E@&, 842 is expected to be expensed over a weightedhge period of 1.81 years. The
weightedaverage fair value of restricted stock and regtdatock units under the 2006 Plan granted duhiagyéars ended December 31, 2(
2008 and 2007 was $15.14, $17.72 and $22.39, riesglgc The total grant date fair value of restettstock and restricted units vested during
the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 200%2/851, $2,573 and $896, respectively.

Advisory Board Option:

During the year ended December 31, 2009, 2008 @6d,2he Company recorded compensation expenseticof $80 and ($70) and
$187, respectively related to stock options gratwadembers of the Company’s advisory board. Tivevédue and related compensation
expense will be calculated for the unvested portibthese options at the end of each reportingpgausntil such options are fully vested.

Client Options

In connection with the execution of a five-yeanéses agreement, the Company issued options tdpaec230,200 shares of common
stock at an exercise price of $6.25 per sharelin2i04 to one of its clients. The options areyfkercisable and expire ten years from the
of grant. The value of the options on the datessfiance, using the Black-Scholes option-pricingehadas approximately $1,792. Such
amount is being amortized as a reduction in revevee the five-year term of the services agreemdnich expired in March 2009.
Amortization for the year ended December 31, 2@088 and 2007 was $60, $358 and $358, respectively.

14. Related Party Transactions

On January 15, 2008, the Company acquired netsafssed consideration of $1,508 plus contingentsataration earned during the year
ended December 31, 2008 of $460 for a total of @ f8om a company controlled by entities relatethienOak Hill Partnerships. The Comp:
recorded expenses of $0, $0 and $2,336
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for years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 268@ectively, for transition services performed lwy $eller prior to acquisition. The
Company also recorded an acquisition related ddsT® during the year ended December 31, 2007 f&eocember 31, 2009 and
December 31, 2008, the Company had no accountbleasedated to these services.

The Company provides transformation services tonelReade Holdings, Inc., a New York City drugstdtain. Duane Reade Holdings,
Inc. was indirectly owned by entities related tk®#ll Capital Partners, one of the Company’s siigaint stockholders. The Company
recognized revenue of approximately $537, $628%#80 in the years ended December 31, 2009, 2002@0id, respectively, for fees and
expense reimbursements from Duane Reade HoldingsAt December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 timepany had an account
receivable of $43 and $89, respectively, relatettiése services.

The Company provides services to Oak Hill Capitattifers, one of the Company’s significant stockeddThe Company recognized
revenue of approximately $32, $0 and $0 duringyters ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 ctesy, for fees and expense
reimbursements from Oak Hill Capital Partners. AcBmber 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the Confyzahgn account receivable of $13
and $0, respectively, related to these services.

15. Geographical Information

Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Revenues
United State: $121,90° $102,56¢ $ 82,06:
United Kingdom 64,697 77,80¢ 69,521
Rest of worlc 4,391 1,33¢ 442

$190,99! $181,71: $152,03:

Year ended December 31

2009 2008

Fixed assets, ne
India $ 18,76¢ $ 19,23t
United State: 1,03¢ 1,182
Philippines 3,26% 3,99¢
Rest of world 89¢ 10€
$ 23,96« $ 24,51¢

16. Commitments and Contingencies
Fixed Asset Commitments

At December 31, 2009, the Company has committepémd approximately $3,137 under agreements tdasecfixed assets. This
amount is net of capital advances paid in respitttase purchases.

Other Commitments

The Company’s delivery centers in India have bestaldished as 100% Export-Oriented units undefxport Import Policy” (the
“Policy”) or Software Technology Parks of India t{"STPI") under the STPI
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guidelines issued by the Government of India tleat provided the Company with certain incentivesngoorted and indigenous capital goods.
Under this policy, these units must achieve cerajmort ratios and realize revenues attributabkxtmwrts over a specified period. In the event
that these units are unable to meet the requiresmoetlr the specified period, the Company may bueired, to refund these incentives along
with the penalties and fines. However, managemelit\es that these units will achieve the expar¢le within the required timeframe as they
have consistently generated the required levetxpbrt revenues.

Exl Philippines is registered as an Ecozone IT Emige with the Philippines Economic Zone AuthoriBkl Philippines has an export
obligation of $13,100 during the three year peeading March 31, 2011. The registration has alswiged us with certain incentives on the
import of capital goods. Management believes thdthilippines will achieve these export levelshiit the required timeframe.

Contingencies

U.S. and Indian transfer pricing regulations regtiirat any international transaction involving &ssted enterprises be at an arm’s-length
price. Transactions among the Company’s subsidiame the Company may be required to satisfy seghirements. Accordingly, the
Company determines the pricing among its assocetéetprises on the basis of detailed functiondlesonomic analysis involving
benchmarking against transactions among entitegsatte not under common control. The tax autharitive jurisdiction to review this
arrangement and in the event that they determetetie transfer price applied was not appropriag Company may incur increased tax
liability, including accrued interest and penalti€ee Company is currently involved in disputeshvifie Indian tax authorities over the
application of some of its transfer pricing polgidhe Company has received following assessmeépt®from the Indian tax authorities with
respect to their audit of certain of the Comparsyibsidiaries. The Indian tax authorities are examgimcome tax returns for other tax years.
The details of the assessment orders as of Dece3ab@009 are as below:

Amount Amount
Entity Tax Year Issue Demandec Depositec

Ex| India 200304 The assessment order alleges that the transfer weapplied to transactions between $ 2,10 $ 2,10(
EXL India and EXL Inc. in the 2003-04 tax year we appropriate and also disallows
certain expenses claimed as tax deductible by Exial

Exl India 200405  The assessment order alleges that the transfer weapplied to transactions betw: $ 2,000 $ 2,00(
EXL India and EXL Inc. for the 2004-05 tax year wast appropriate and also disallows
certain expenses claimed as tax deductible by Exial

Exl India 200506 The assessment order alleges that the transfer wecapplied to transactions between $ 5,20( $1,60(
EXL India and EXL Inc. for the 2005-06 tax year wa appropriate and also disallow:
certain expenses claimed as tax deductible by Exial

Exl Inc. 200:-04  The assessment order alleges that EXL Inc. hasnagment establishment in Ind $ 3,200 $ 1,70(
Exl Inc. 200405  The assessment order alleges that EXL Inc. hasnagoent establishment in Ind $ 10 $ —
Exl Inc. 2005-06  The assessment order alleges that EXL Inc. hasnagment establishment in Ind $ 70C $ 40C
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Based on advice from its Indian tax advisors, #ets underlying its position and its experienceliese types of assessments, the
Company believes that the probability of loss im@&e and accordingly has not accrued any amouhtne#ipect to these matters in its
consolidated financial statements. The Company doeexpect any impact from these assessments €utitre income tax expense. The
Company is subject to U.S. income taxes on thetprivfrecognizes in the United States. The Comgeas/deposited the entire amount
demanded by the Indian tax authorities with respetite assessment orders received by Ex| IndithiBb2003-04 and 2004-05 tax years and
partial amounts with respect to the assessmentordeeived by Ex| India for 2005-06 tax year agdEsl Inc. for the 2003-04, 2004-05 and
2005-06 tax years. There is a likelihood that ten@any might receive similar orders for subseqyeats until the above disputes are
resolved. Amounts paid as deposits in respecteffisessments described above, totaling approyn®tg800 and $5,800 as of December 31,
2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, arededun “Other assets” in the Company’s consolid&t@dnce sheet.

In order to resolve the outstanding transfer pgand permanent establishment tax disputes witlnttian tax authorities, the Company
has filed requests with the competent authoritighé U.S. to invoke a Mutual Agreement Procedoird/ AP, under the United States — India
Tax Treaty. As a result of commencing the MAP, ¢bepetent authorities in the U.S. will work wittetbompetent authorities in India to
propose a resolution to the outstanding tax disptitbe proposed resolution is not binding on then@any. As required by the MAP, the
Company obtained bank guarantees of approximag&B0® in April 2009 to stop the collection of oatstling tax demands by the Indian tax
authorities and interest for the assessment ordeesved by ExI Inc. for the 2003-04, 2004-05 aff%206 tax years. Subsequent to
December 31, 2009, the Company also obtained baatagtee of approximately $3,500 with respect ¢oatbsessment orders received by ExI
India for the 2005-06 tax year. If additional assesnt orders are received for subsequent year€dhgany may invoke the MAP for such
orders and would be required to obtain additioralkbguarantees.

17. Discontinued Operations

On August 11, 2008, the Company completed theafadd of its shares of NCOP to Aviva Global SeescSingapore Pte Ltd. The
Company received consideration totaling approxihge8,430 ($1,982 in the year ended December 308 20d $1,448 in the year ended
December 31, 2009).

The following table shows the major categoriesdiscontinued operations in the consolidated statésnaf income for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007:

Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Operations:
Revenue! $— $16,39¢ $27,85:
Income / (Loss) from discontinued operatic $(180) 7,23t 12,55:
Income tax provision / (benefi $ (41) 2,57¢ 3,08t
$(139) $ 4,66( $ 9,46¢
Disposal:
Loss on disposal of discontinued operati $— $ (515 $ —
Income tax provisiol — 874 —
$— $(1,389) $ —
Income / (Loss) from discontinued operations, ri¢ares $(139) $ 3,271 $ 9,46¢
Diluted earnings per sha $— $ 0.11 $ 0.3¢
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18. Subsequent Events

On March 1, 2010, the Company completed the adegnsirom American Express of the operations of Ameerican Express Global
Travel Service Center, a business unit of Ameri€gpress located in Gurgaon, India, that providesttavel-related business process
outsourcing services of American Express. The agdespurchase price was approximately $29 milkanich was paid by the Company in
cash using cash on hand.

The Company evaluated subsequent events througthM#:; 2010.
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Exhibit 10.1
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreemeist8ntered into as of March 7, 2006 (“Effective &aby and between The Travelers
Indemnity Company (“Travelers”), a Connecticut amation located at One Tower Square, Hartford, 6183, for itself and its affiliates
(collectively, “Customer”), and ExIService Holdindac., a Delaware corporation with offices at 3rk Avenue, 1@ Floor, New York, NY
10022, for itself and its subsidiary exIService.clomlia (Private) Limited (collectively “Supplier”).

WHEREAS, Supplier is engaged in the business ofigieg information technology-enabled business psscoutsourcing services and has
qualified and experienced personnel capable obpmihg such services for Customer; and

WHEREAS, Customer wishes to engage Supplier toopmrsuch services as more fully described herein;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual cau@s set forth herein and for other good and vé¢uednsideration, the receipt a
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Custoand Supplier hereby agree that the Supplierpgitform the services (“Services”)
described below upon the terms and conditionsos#t herein.

1. Definitions

“Affiliate” means any company that controls, is tmtled by, or is under common control with TravsleThe St. Paul Travelers
Companies, Inc. or its successor in interest. “@dhfor purposes of this paragraph means ownershigontrol of at least twenty-five
percent (25%) or more of any class of voting seiesrior other ownership interests), shares orlaimnmterests of such entity, or
possession, directly or indirectly, of the powedi@ct or cause the direction of the managemepbbcies of the controlled person,
whether through ownership of stock or other equitgrests, by contract or otherwise. An entity thidgierwise qualifies under this
definition will be included within the meaning oAffiliate” even though it acquired such status aftee Effective Date of this
Agreement.

“Divested Entity” means any Affiliate, or departni@m division or line of business of Travelers daa Affiliate, which ceases to be an
Affiliate, or department, division or line of busiss of Travelers or of an Affiliate due to its dititure or other changes in its ownership
or control.

“Exhibit” manes any lettered Exhibit attached tstAgreement. The terms of each such Exhibit aegrail incorporated herein and in
any Work Assignment entered into hereunder, urdéssrwise expressly agreed in the Work Assignment.

2. Description and Scope of Agreem.

2.1  Scope of Service.

Supplier shall perform Services in accordance with or more consecutively numbered written workgassents (each, atfork
Assignment”) entered into under this Agreement.dexien of this Agreement alone does not obligatet@mer to purchase or
Supplier to perform any Services in the absenaefafly executed Work Assignment. The initial Wakksignment will be
executed by the parties as of the Effective Datibs8quent Work Assignments may be executed bygaoties and attached
hereto. Each Work Assignment shall describe thereaif the Services to which it applies and mayig® for the execution of
individual Work Orders for specific Customer prdgeand/or lines of business. The Work AssignmentVork Order, as
applicable in any given situation, shall also sfyeany materials, documents or other deliveratii@s Supplier is to develop for
and/or supply to Customer (collectively, “Work Puoatl’); the fees and payment structure applicabka¢oServices; and any
other details (such as, by way of example andimotdtion, Customer and/or
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2.2

Supplier contact information, completion criteig@yvernance procedures, roles and responsibilifidsegparties, reporting
requirements, and service levels) that Customende®cessary to define the relevant Services anpatiies’ respective
obligations under the Work Assignment. The first/Assignment, Work Assignment #01, is attacheatweas Exhibit A and
shall serve as a template for future Work Assignsehll Services to be performed under any Workigssient shall be
managed in accordance with Exhibit B, BPO Goveradbuaide, and shall be subject to Exhibit C, DigaR&covery and
Business Continuity Plans.

Scope Change.

Should Customer wish to change the scope of a \Weskgnment to alter the Service description, scledufees, or should
Supplier determine that Supplier cannot perforradoordance with the Work Assignment due to circamsts or factors beyond
Supplier’s control that Supplier did not know andresnot reasonably knowable at the time of Workigksaent execution or
arose thereafter and increase the work effortter #te skill set necessary for Supplier to congtae Services, the party
requesting the change shall propose a change @€leange Order”) to amend the Work Assignment tdrads the change. The
creation of a Change Order will be governed byGhange Order Process set forth in Exhibit D. Nor@jesOrder shall be
binding upon either party unless executed by battigs and neither party shall have a duty to perfany obligation or make
any payment that is not within the scope of thgingl Work Assignment in the absence of a fullyaxed Change Order
defining such duty.

3. Confidentiality; Security.

3.1

Customer Confidential Informatic.

Customer Confidential Information shall mean alhfpublic Customer information disclosed to SuppligrCustomer in
whatever form presented, relating to Customer’s, passent and future research, development, dataegsing systems,
finances, operations, customers and businesst&sivincluding any information (such as, but matited to third party software)
which Customer is required to keep confidentiakpant to a nondisclosure agreement with a thirtypBor purposes of this
Agreement, Supplier shall assume that any infoionatiat Supplier receives or accesses during thesef Supplier’s
performance that relates to Customer’s third pliegnsors and consultants or to their productssamdices is subject to
confidentiality obligations unless such informatfaiis within one of the enumerated exclusionsfegh in Section 3.4, below.
Customer Confidential Information shall also in@utie results of Supplier's Services and Invent{@ssdefined herein at
Section 13.1) under this Agreement. Supplier i@l all such information in confidence and, excapauthorized by Customer
in writing, Supplier shall not (i) use such Custar@®nfidential Information except as necessaryaidqrm the Services for the
sole benefit of Customer or (ii) disclose such Gosr Confidential Information to any person, at #me, either during the ter
of this Agreement or thereafter, other than to $iapp employees and permitted subcontractorsnyf, avho are under
obligations of confidentiality at least as stringas those contained herein and who have a ndea®access to and knowledge
of such Customer Confidential Information for themose of providing Services hereunder. Suppliey n@, without prior
written approval from Customer, indicate in any |mhed matter or otherwise the nature of the Sessjperformed by Supplier
under this Agreement. To the extent that Suppliep@res materials incorporating Customer Confidéiformation, Supplier
shall mark such materials as proprietary and centidl to Customer. Supplier shall not make us€udgtomer Confidential
Information for its own benefit or for the benaditthird parties. Customer owns and will continaetvn all right, title and
interest in and to all Customer Confidential Infation, including without limitation, all media us&alstore such information.
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3.2

Confidential Data of Individual.

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

Supplier acknowledges that certain Custoneerfi@ential Information (and certain other infornest and data which
may not otherwise meet the definition of Customenf@iential Information) to which Supplier may bepesed or may
require access in order to perform the ServicesimaEyde, without limitation, confidential informan of Customer’s
former, present and prospective employees, insuaggsts, and financial and insurance service®oests and/or
claimants, including without limitation informatiadentifying or personally identifiable to such imduals
(“Confidential Data of Individuals™)Supplier acknowledges that such Confidential Datadividuals may be subject
Customer’s Privacy notice and to state, federaliatetnational privacy laws, rules and regulatiohscordingly, to the
extent, if any, that Supplier accesses or is exptsany such Confidential Data of Individualslie tcourse of Supplier’
performance, Supplier agrees (i) to maintain, dradl €ause its officers, directors and employeasaintain, the
confidentiality and security of such informatiomda(ii) to prevent the disclosure or use of sudbrimation to third
parties except as may be expressly authorizedyoiirezl by law. Supplier has the right to transmitnitor, retrieve,
store and use the Confidential Data of Individwadly as described in this Agreement. Custometsatdle discretion,
reserves the right to audit Supplier’'s access tbume of Customer Confidential Information, inchgliSupplier’s
information systems security features, systemssaccentrols and procedures, and data distributiechanisms and
practices applicable to Confidential Data of Indivals, for the purpose of verifying Supplier’s cdiapce with its
obligations under this Section; provided, howeteat any such audit activities involving accessertwisits to Supplier
facilities shall only be after reasonable advanaiice and shall be subject to Supplier’s securitlces including
physical and information security policies. All Gmoiential Data of Individuals is hereby deemed udgd within the
Customer Confidential Informatio

In the event that Supplier becomes aware of anythiazed access to, release of, or use of ContiildData of
Individuals occurring while such Confidential Datindividuals is (i) resident on equipment ownedontrolled by
Supplier or (ii) otherwise in Supplier's possessiorctontrol, including, without limitation, (a) amnauthorized access,
release or use occurring through a breach of Seipplbbligations under Section 3.2.1 or a breacBugiplier's data
security systems and (b) any other access, retgasge that is not expressly authorized by lavparsuant to

Section 3.2.1, for purposes of Supplier’'s perforogaof its obligations under this Agreement, Suphell, at
Supplier’s expense, promptly notify Customer anovjte Customer with such information as Customeuires to
comply with any legal obligation that Customer nieve to notify anyone of such unauthorized acce$sase or use.
addition, Supplier shall, at Supplier's expensenply promptly and fully with all notification requéments that apply to
Supplier, including applicable requirements, if atoynotify the individuals whose data may haverbaecessed, releas
or used, whether imposed by national, internaticstate, or local law, and shall indemnify Customgainst all loss,
cost, damage or expense (including, without limitatattorneys’ fees and fines or penalties impdsethw) arising out
of Supplier’s failure to comply with the notice pisions of this Section 3.2.2, provided that suateimnification
obligation shall not apply, and Customer shall kebof Supplier and Customer’s expenses of conmglyvith the notice
provisions of this Section 3.2.2 in the event thatunauthorized access, release or use of Cotifil®ata of
Individuals was caused by an act of Customer @ustome’s employees

The provisions of this Section 3.2 shall extendng Supplier subcontractor receiving Confidentiat®of Individuals
from Supplier and Supplier will remain liable fas subcontractors’ compliance therewith. Priorupying any
Confidential Data of Individual
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3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

to any subcontractor, Supplier shall have in plaitk such subcontractor a written contract contajnprovisions at lea
as stringent as those set forth herein with reqpettte Confidential Data of Individuals, includiagprovision that make
Customer a third party beneficiary with direct esfament rights against the subcontractor in theteska breach of the
terms applicable to the Confidential Data of Indivls.

Supplier Confidential Informatio.

Should Supplier, in the course of its performamiigclose to Customer (i) non-public informationaetjng Supplier’s clients,
vendors, prices, plans, service offerings, openatior strategies or (ii) other, proprietary infation that Supplier has designa
in writing as “Confidential” (collectively, “Suppr Confidential Information”) Customer shall holgchd Supplier Confidential
Information in confidence. Except as authorizedSloyplier in writing, Customer shall not discloselssupplier Confidential
Information to any person other than Customer’slegges, agents or consultants who have a needow kmorder to perform
obligations for Customer. Subject to any licensesited to Customer herein, Supplier owns and wititimue to own all right,
title and interest in and to all Supplier Confidahtnformation.

Exceptions.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of thic&en 3, either party shall be free to use its gahlenowledge, skills, and
experience and any general ideas, concepts, knewahd techniques learned by its employees duriagérformance of the
Services pursuant to this Agreement and retain@atamgible form in their unaided memories.

Exclusions.

Confidential Information of a party does not inady@nd neither party is obligated to protect (ipimation that is in the public
domain other than as a result of a breach of tigieAment by the receiving party hereunder, or ssgiated by agreement of the
parties to be placed into the public domain; (ifprmation which the receiving party can demonstthtt it developed
independently without reference to the disclosiagys Confidential Information; or (iii) informain already known to or in the
possession of the receiving party prior to disalesinder this Agreement but not obtained improperljlegally. If a receiving
party becomes legally compelled (by applicable ¢awegulation or by deposition, interrogatory, regufor documents, order,
subpoena, civil investigative demand or similargess issued by a court of competent jurisdictiobyoa government body) to
disclose any of the Confidential Information, tleeeiving party shall provide the disclosing pantgrppt prior written notice of
any such requirement so that the disclosing pagy seek a protective order or other appropriateedynand/or waive
compliance with the terms of this Agreement. Inelient that the disclosing party does not obtaah gurotective order or other
remedy, and irrespective of whether the disclopiagy waives compliance with the provisions her#fzdn the parties agree that
the receiving party will only disclose that portiohthe Confidential Information which the receigiparty’s counsel advises the
receiving party that it is legally required to dese.

Return of Informatior.

Within ten (10) days of an express request, oriwithn (10) days of termination of this Agreemehg receiving party shall
return all of the disclosing party’s Confidentiaférmation received under this Agreement, includitigcopies or partial copies
thereof in any form or format. Alternatively, iféhldisclosing party consents in writing, the reagivparty may destroy such
information and provide the disclosing party wittvatten certification of its destruction.
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3.7

3.8

Security.

Supplier will maintain environmental security, tadal security, physical security, administrativegedures and other
safeguards against the destruction, loss or atberat Customer Confidential Information in the pession of Supplier that are
no less rigorous than: (i) the most rigorous detasty policies and procedures generally in eféecof the Effective Date at
Supplier’s facilities; (ii) the safeguards requitedmeet current insurance, financial servicesiafamation technology industry
expectations for the provision of Services; (¢ tsafeguards required by law, rule or regulatod (iv) Customer’s information
security policies and standards as provided to Bmppnd any other safeguards required to meehagher reasonable standard
otherwise requested by Customer. Supplier willmotlify, delete or destroy any Customer Confidertitdrmation or media on
which it resides without prior written consent fr@@nstomer, provided that ordinary backup activjtésta destruction consistent
with data retention and destruction policies, atigepdata management activities consistent witldgmticommercial practices
will not be deemed a violation of this sentencep@ier will: (i) adequately mark all Customer Cafditial Information as
Customer property, (ii) store all Customer Configrinformation separately from either Suppliedata and information or data
and information owned by other clients of Supplard (iii) promptly remove any or all of the CustemnConfidential

Information, as specified by Customer, from all fligr-maintained databases, hardware, and netwqpripment at Customer’s
request in a manner specified by Customer. Witlimiting the foregoing, Supplier will comply witlhé security and data
policies and procedures set forth in Exhibit Eptniation Security Policies and Standards.

Remedie:.

Each party acknowledges that its breach of anpi@ptrovisions of this Section 3 could cause theroplarty irreparable injury fi
which monetary damages may not provide an adegeatedy. Therefore, in the event of a party’s breacthreatened breach of
any of its confidentiality obligations under thig#ement, the other party shall have the righeeksn immediate injunction to
prevent or restrain the breach, in addition to etiner remedies available at law or in equity.

Use of Names and Marks; Public.

Supplier may not use any of Customer’s names, @miarks, logos or trademarks or any likenesséascsimiles thereof in any
advertisements, brochures or catalogs or on aeyrlet site or otherwise without the express writtensent of Customer, which shall
have the right to review and approve in advancesgieeific form and content of such use. Supplidirvait make any media releases,
public announcements, or public disclosures regatinthis Agreement (except to the extent requingthw) without Customer’s prior
review and written approval prior to release.

Independent Contractor; Person.

5.1

Genera.

Supplier shall perform the Services hereunder aadapendent contractor. Neither party shall hawbarity to contract for the
other party, bind the other party to any commitnreambligation or assume any liabilities of anyuratin the other party’s name
unless otherwise agreed in writing. Nothing hesiall be construed as creating a partnership, ya@nture, or employment
relationship between Customer and Supplier. Supypiiédetermine the manner in which it will perfarits Services. Supplier
may utilize subcontractors in performing Serviceselander with prior notice to Customer and Custdsrior written consent
provided that (i) vendors who are engaged by thgper independently of Supplier’s relationshipv€ustomer to provide
support for Supplies general operations (e.g., to provide buildingnteaiance, generic help desk support, or teleconuatians
equipment service) and not to perform Services uad®¥ork Assignment shall not be subject to themebnsent conditions
mentioned in this Section 5.1. and (ii) Suppligairs full responsibility for the work of all pens® performing services or
fulfilling obligations required of
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5.2

5.3

Supplier under this Agreement, whether such peracmemployees of Supplier or of its affiliatessabsidiaries or of
subcontractors, as though all such persons wergli8tip employees. Supplier shall be deemed the swiployer of all
individuals performing the obligations of Suppliereunder. Permitted subcontractors who will penf@ervices under Custon
Work Assignment must agree in writing before begigrwork to be bound by the terms and provisionthigf Agreement,
including those relating to confidentiality, ownkeifs, indemnification and liability. Supplier will ake Customer an express third
party beneficiary in all such subcontractor agressmeSupplier employees and subcontractors shedl ha rights or entitlements
to any compensation or benefits from Customer. Guigplier shall have the right to hire and firedtsployees, provide
instructions as to the manner in which an empl@gréorms his or her job and set the hours of wdrikseemployees. In additio
Supplier shall manage all employment aspects ofaasigned employees, including, without limitatiterminations, salary
reviews, performance evaluations, work schedulesntation, placement, and rotation of assignmedpplier shall, with
respect to its assigned employees, be responsibleithholding all taxes and making all legally-téged payments, if any,
including those for federal, state and local incdmees, Social Security taxes, and unemploymentamee, and maintaining
workers’compensation insurance coverage in an amount ashel snch terms as required by applicable law. Seipassumes
risk in connection with the adequacy of any compredive general liability, workers’ compensatiorotiter insurance on behalf
of Supplier or its employees.

Pre-employment Screening and Background Che.

Supplier will conduct pre-employment screening adleperson who will perform any Services on beb&Gustomer under this
Agreement. Pre-employment screening will includighaut limitation, establishing and documentinggfrof identity of each
such person and ensuring that each such persegabyl qualified to work and receive compensatimeach country in which
such person will be engaged in the performancesofi€es for Customer (in the case of any persaradly employed or under
contract with Supplier, an equivalent screenindldleaconducted prior to such person’s assignnmepetform any Services
under this Agreement). Supplier shall not assigngerson to perform Services on behalf of Custaifm®@upplier knows or has
reason to know that such person has misrepreshiged her identity or employment qualificationsi®not legally eligible to
work and receive compensation in the location wiseneplier would assign such person to work. In taidi Supplier shall
conduct a criminal background check of each pedestribed in this paragraph. For purposes of ttagigion, a “criminal
background” shall mean any conviction of a crimeoiring breach of trust or dishonesty including,vegy of example and not
limitation, any theft or misappropriation of funafata, or other tangible or intangible propertyetier by fraud, forgery,
unauthorized entry, or other means. Supplier stalhassign any person to perform Services on befi&@lstomer if Supplier
knows or has reason to know that such person bemaal background. Supplier shall retain recasfipre-employment
screenings and background checks and make sucdfisemailable for Customer review at reasonabledimith reasonable
notice. Customer shall have the right to reviewhstgzords twice each year, and to request reviewthar times in Customer’s
good faith discretion.

Drug Policy.

Supplier agrees to support Customer’s drug abueypehich prohibits persons performing Servicesuiay Customer premises
from selling, distributing, manufacturing, procegsiusing or being under the influence of illegalgs or illicit narcotics (non-
prescriptive medication) as defined by the lawsegulations of the jurisdiction in which such Sees are performed. Supplier
agrees to advise every person who will perform iBesvunder this Agreement at a Customer locatiahisfpolicy and to
explicitly instruct all such persons to comply heité.
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5.4

55

5.6

Qualifications; Number; Turnove.

Without limiting any other provisions of this Agmaent, Supplier will assign the number of its persgnn appropriate job
classes and with appropriate skills, as necessgpgrform the Services in accordance with this Agrent, including the Service
Levels specified in any applicable Work AssignmentVork Order. As of the Effective Date, the numbaed types of Supplier
personnel initially assigned to provide the Sersiskall be as outlined in the first Work Assignmantirst Work Order
thereunder. Supplier agrees that, for all Serviersept to the extent, if any, otherwise specified Work Assignment or Work
Order, Supplier will assign at least one full-tieguivalent resource for each *** person-hours ofkuo be supplied in any
given month. Supplier warrants that the persortreedsigns to perform the Services will be propedycated, trained, and
qualified for the Services that they are intendegddrform. It is Supplier’s policy to request pamel who are sent overseas for
training for a period of *** to *** weeks to remaim Supplier's employ for a minimum of *** month#d, for those in training
overseas for more than *** weeks, a period of **vnhs. Supplier agrees to continue to apply thigpdo minimize the
turnover of trained personnel that it assigns tivjgle Services under this Agreement, provided tthiatcommitment shall not be
construed in any way as superseding other Suppdiéries under which such Supplier personnel aggbdé for promotion or
advancement opportunities. Nor shall Supplier Hegated to continue this policy to the extent,rifyathat it is deemed to be in
violation of any law or regulation applicable topplier's employment practices. Subject to replacemecessitated by attrition
or circumstances beyond Supplier’s control, in weng will Supplier remove or replace more than tif'the personnel assigned
by Supplier to perform Services during any calengsr of the term of this Agreement except at Qustts request or with
Customer’s prior consent.

Replacemer.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 5.4, alg@ahould Customer request replacement of any Bughployee or
subcontractor for any reason, such as but notdufrtio incompetence, nonperformance, breach of al®upbligation under this
Agreement or noncompliance with Customer policgspplier shall remove such individual and make cemuilly reasonable
efforts to replace such individual with a qualifiegblacement acceptable to Customer in a timelyidas Customer shall not be
liable to Supplier for any costs to Supplier asatsd with removal or replacement or for fees aitable to Services performed
by the replacement during any period when suchaogphent is in training or is otherwise not yet digal to perform at the level
of experience and skill designated for the Servassgned. Unless otherwise instructed by Custogwplier will immediately
remove any Supplier personnel or subcontractor eamomits any criminal act or grossly negligent acewgages in any willful
misconduct.

Key Personne.

Each of the initial Supplier Key Personnel will designated and will have the functions assigneabdabdesignation in the Work
Assignment or Work Order. Key Personnel will atteies include, at a minimum, the Supplier Relaglip Manager and every
management level resource assigned by Suppligretadsmore than fifty percent (50%) of his or herkireg time providing
Services to Customer unless otherwise agreed ik Wssignment. Supplier may not remove (exceptdéomination for cause)
any Key Personnel from providing Services for Costoduring the first six (6) months after eithes tiffective Date or the Go-
Live Date for the Work Assignment or Work Order\8ees, or the start of the Disentanglement prodessribed in

Section 19.6. If Supplier desires to remove oraeplany Key Personnel (to the extent permittedimergupplier will (i) provide
Customer with ninety (90) days prior written nofi¢i® provide for a knowledge transfer period af less than sixty (60) days
during which the Key Personnel to be replaced hediesignated replacement(s) are simultaneousiynassto provide Service
and (iii) submit to Customer for its review and epgal a transition plan outlining all actions tt&atpplier will take to ensure
sufficient knowledge transfer between the Key Pemsbbeing replaced and the replacement
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to avoid any adverse impact on the Services. Customay interview and participate in the selectibsuxh replacement.
Whether or not Customer conducts an interview otiggpates in such selection, Supplier will notehiassign or designate any
such replacement as Key Personnel without Custenpeior written consent, which may be given or Wwéld in Customer’s sole
discretion. If any member of Supplier Key Persorbeiomes incapacitated, voluntarily terminates egrpknt, is terminated for
cause, or is transferred with the consent of Custp@upplier will within forty-eight (48) hours rigge such person with another
person approved by Customer that is at least dsqwalified. All Supplier Key Personnel will be &psed to perform Services
a full-time basis for terms of at least two (2) geee&Supplier will create and maintain an individnaimpensation structure for all
Key Personnel that provides them incentives to raeekceed all Service Levels under this Agreement.

5.7 Agreement:.

Supplier has and will obtain written agreementdité employees and permitted subcontractors seffico allow it to perform
its obligations under this Agreement, includingigissents and licenses of intellectual property, emafidentiality obligations.

Compliance with Law.

Supplier agrees to comply with all applicable fediestate, county and local laws, ordinances, at@gns and codes, both domestic and
international, in the performance of its obligaBamder this Agreement, including but not limitedhe procurement of permits, licen
and certificates where required and payment ofieqiple taxes and related fees. Supplier represeatsSupplier has not been convicted
of or indicted for any criminal offense and has beén excluded, suspended or debarred from paticipin any activities by any
governmental or regulatory body.

Export.

Supplier hereby represents that it is, and willaemin compliance with the requirements of all éggdble export laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the U.S. Export Adnsitiation Regulations and International Traffic im# Regulations. Such
requirements include, but are not limited to, afitag all required authorizations or licenses fa #xport or reexport of any controlled
item, product, article, commodity, software or teclogy. Without limiting the generality of the f@eing, Supplier hereby represents
that (i) it has not been, and is not currently,atedd, suspended or otherwise prohibited or résttifrom exporting, re-exporting,
receiving, purchasing, processing or otherwiseinltg any item, product, article, commaodity, softe@r technology regulated by any
agency of the United States; and (ii) Supplier wilt export or reexport, directly or indirectly,yasoftware or technology received from
Customer or allow the direct product thereof teekported or reexported, directly or indirectly, to any countryganization or person
which or to whom such export or reexport would meiblation of United States laws or regulations.

Compliance with Policie.

8.1  Supplier warrants that in performing the SexsiSupplier shall comply with all applicable guides, standards and practices
established by Customer and made known to Suppitbrrespect to, but not necessarily limited todact on site within
Customer’s facilities; the protection of Customata] intellectual property and other assets, if asgd and/or accessed by
Supplier personnel; Customer’s internal securitycpdures with respect to Customer’s facilities emiehputer systems; and
Customer’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethicerfqployees, Exhibit F (which Supplier will complytiviconcerning its
personnel)

8.2  Should Customer personnel visit on site at any fupgacility, Customer shall be responsible forgg that such personn
comply with guidelines, standards and practiceatdished by Supplier for such facility and madewndo Customer with
respect to, but not necessarily limited to conavitttin Supplier’s facility and Supplies’internal security procedures with resy
to Supplie’s facilities and computer syster
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10.

Insurance; Records Audi.

9.1

9.2

Insurance.

At all times during its performance of Serviceseharder, Supplier will maintain levels and typesnsiurance as set forth in
Exhibit G, Insurance Requirements.

Records and Audit.

At all times during its performance of Serviceseharder, Supplier will follow the Records and Audibcedures set forth on
Exhibit H.

Invoicing and Paymer.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Invoices.

Supplier shall invoice Customer for Services incxdance with the fees and payment structure stt fiothe Work Assignment.
Invoices shall include sufficient detail to peri@istomer to identify the personnel and the Seryiegormed against the Work
Assignment. Overtime charges shall not apply. Sapphall not invoice Customer for fees in excesthe rates and/or aggregi
cap specified in the Work Assignment. All invoicgsll be subject to review, approval and acceptagd@ustomer prior to final
payment. In the event that Customer disputes arguatrindicated on an invoice, Customer will not8ypplier of the amount in
dispute and the basis for the dispute upon Custsrdiscovery of the dispute and pay all undispytedions of the invoice in
accordance with this Section. Customer and Supgliell cooperate in good faith to resolve any ingdlispute in a timely
fashion. Unless otherwise indicated in the applie&dork Assignment or Work Order, payment of altlisputed amounts shall
be due within *** days of invoice receipt withouéduction, counterclaim or set-off.

Taxes.

Customer shall pay all domestic state, local, @ugfal sales or use taxes applicable to the Serexausive of Supplier's
property taxes, taxes based on Supplier’s income: aay foreign international taxes due imposed seaf Supplier’s activities
outside the United States. Supplier shall itemizaliaable taxes on the invoices to which they aphly payment for such taxes
will be required until Supplier satisfies this cati@h. Supplier shall notify Customer in writing tlin ten (10) days of any state
tax audit that could create a Customer obligatiopay additional taxes hereunder. Failure of Seppd notify Customer shall
release Customer of any obligation to pay any &uitdit taxes, penalties or interest assessed aul of such audit. In the event
that the imposition of any new tax or any amendnt@ain existing tax law causes Supplier’s net i@bility for all taxes (other
than taxes on Supplier's income) that Supplier Wdé obligated to pay in connection with Suppligresformance of the
Services to increase by more than five percent &%) the Supplier’s net tax liability as measuaetbss all Work Assignments
and Work Orders then in effect, then, at Suppliegtsuest, Customer and Supplier will negotiatedadyfaith to determine
whether, and, if so, how the increase in tax ligb#hould be shared between the parties. Custshral not be liable for and
shall have no obligation to pay any penalties regt or late charges imposed as a result of Seifpfailure to pay taxes on a
timely basis if Customer has made timely paymer8upplier for taxes due from Customer, in accordamith Supplier’'s
invoices.

Travel and Other Expens.

Customer shall not reimburse Supplier for travefoorother expenses unless specifically authorlae@ustomer in writing,
either in a Work Assignment or on a case-by-caséesba response to specific requests, and incurye8Supplier in the
performance of the Services. All travel expenses
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11.

12.

authorized for reimbursement shall be consistetit @ustomer’s corporate travel expense policytooiwn employees. If
Supplier’s business location is within a fifty (58)le radius of the location where Services arevioled, the Supplier will not be
reimbursed for any travel, meals or lodging expsnéd other expense associated with providingSkevices, such as telepho
office supplies, and support services are the respiity of Supplier. Time spent traveling is rimtiable. If any expenses are
authorized by Customer for reimbursement, Supgheil list such expenses separately on its invoime actually incurred and
shall provide supporting documentation for the ined amounts.

General Warrantie.

111

11.2

11.3

Authority .

Each party represents that it is authorized, empedvand able to enter into and fully perform itéigdtions under this
Agreement.

Warranty and Acceptant.

Supplier warrants that all Services shall be penft in a professional and workmanlike manner, aoetance with applicable
industry standards and the acceptance critergmyif set forth in the Work Assignment. Customeenress the right to reject any
Services that do not conform to this warranty Ha ¢vent of such rejection, Supplier shall promplyerform the Services or
supply additional services to correct the deficies¢o Customer’s reasonable satisfaction at Seippkexpense, in accordance
with the acceptance standards and remedy provisiotie applicable Work Assignment. Alternativedy,Customer’s election,
unless otherwise specified in the applicable Woskignment, Customer shall have the right to recaikefund of any amounts
paid for such Services and shall have no furthgmeant obligation with respect to the Services. Payifor Services shall not
constitute acceptance of the Services.

Third Party Material:.

Supplier warrants that unless Supplier obtains @ust’s prior written approval, in performing therees Supplier will not use
any third party materials, including but not lindteo any software or work subject to an open solicease (including the GNU
Public License) or any “copyleft” restrictions (“ifth Party Materials”): (i) to which a license isguéred in order to use any
Deliverables; (ii) the terms of which impose angtrietions on the use of any Deliverables; or (lig terms of which in any way
limit Customer’s intellectual property rights inyaWork Product. If Supplier obtains Customer’s ayyad as set forth above,
Supplier will clearly identify in the Work Assignmeall Third Party Materials and Customer’s need ssponsibility to license
such software prior to Supplier’s inclusion of gwdtware in the Work Product.

Software Warrantie.

The following warranties shall apply to softwaralepif any (“Software Product”), delivered to Custer by Supplier under this
Agreement or Work Assignment.

12.1

Warranty of Date Compatibilit.

Supplier warrants that any Software Product aveldd pursuant to this Agreement will correctly éoypcentury specific date
logic, alone and in combination with other hardwamnel software with which the Software Product termded to be compatible,
to provide fault-free performance in the processihdates and date-related data, including in dafmn, comparison and
sequencing processes. Such fault-free performaraikisclude the manipulation of data with datepto, through, and
subsequent to January 1, 2000. Software Produlit®ds hereunder shall successfully transitioo ite Year 2000 with the
correct system date, without human interventioallgierform leap year calculations correctly andllsprovide correct results
when moving forward and backward in time from Jagpua 2000.
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12.2

Supplier shall (i) correct or replace any SoftwBreduct that does not conform to this warrantytsabwn cost and expense, and
(ii) indemnify Customer against all loss, cost, dam and expense arising out of Supplier’s breachi®fvarranty.

Software Lockup and Disabling Devic.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreemeupplier warrants that the Software Productaatccontain any
intentionally installed lockup program or devioagluding any such item that may prevent Custormmnfaccessing its data and
information in unencrypted form with all data stures preserved (Lockup Device). Supplier furtigreas that it will not, under
any circumstances including enforcement of a vedidtract right, install or trigger a Lockup Devitet in any manner interferes
with Customer use of the Software Products andfstricts Customer from accessing its data filds any way interferes with
the transaction of Customer business. Suppliet ahaist Customer in removing any Lockup Devicthm Software Products a
in restoring the performance of Customer systentkedevel at which the systems were performingieethe introduction of th
Lockup Device, at no additional cost to Customer.

Supplier also warrants that Supplier tests or jptetthe Software Products against viruses, Trofagds, trap doors and similar
devices that could disrupt or disable a computstesy or any of its components and that, to the d@eStppliers knowledge, th

Software Products, as delivered, contain no sugltée (“Disabling Devices.”) Supplier shall assiatstomer in removing any

Disabling Device identified in the Software Produanhd in restoring the performance of Customeesysto the level at which
the systems were performing before the introduatittne Disabling Device, at no additional cosCiastomer.

13.  Ownership of Work Produt.

13.1

13.2

Supplier hereby agrees that the Work Product dridwantions, discoveries, improvements, speciiara, source code, obje
code, programming and other documentation, desigathods, devices, systems, computer softwareingsit compilations of
information or data, and/or materials that arequtable as intellectual property, whether undetdtes of patents, copyrights,
and/or trade secrets, (hereinafter referred tbéraiggregate as “Inventions”) that are conceivedigthed, practiced, prepared,
produced or developed by it, either alone or inceshwith others

0] in the course of its engagement hereun

(i) based upon knowledge or information learned oreghinom Customer, ¢

(iii) that results from the use of Customer facilitiesrspnnel, or materials, are and shall be the saleeaclusive property ¢
Customer

Supplier hereby assigns and agrees to adsigghd, title and interest (including all intetteual property rights) in and to the
Work Product and all Inventions to Customer, aneag that it will execute all documents necessaigrévocably assign and
transfer to Customer, or its nominees, successpessigns, free of encumbrances, all rights, titiel interest in and to the Work
Product and in and to any and all Inventions. Sepplso shall cause all subcontractors and aiiddals engaged in the
performance of Supplier’s obligations hereunddrrevocably transfer and assign to Customer, ghitrititle and interest
(including all intellectual property rights) in atal such Work Product. All such assignments sinaluide, among other things,
existing or prospective patent rights and copysghtthe United States and all foreign countriestie extent allowable by law,
Supplier waives, and shall cause all subcontraetodsother individuals engaged in the performaric
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13.3

13.4

13.5

135

Supplier’s obligations hereunder to waive all maights related to the Work Product. Supplier shabbperate with and assist
Customer, at Customer’s expense but without anitiaddl compensation, and shall cause all indiviseangaged in the
performance of Supplier’s obligations hereunderdoperate with and assist Customer, in eviden@sg@gblishing, maintaining
and protecting Customer’s rights in and ownersfifhe Work Product, including by executing any gesients, patents
applications or other documents reasonably reqdédsteCustomer

If any of the Work Product or any of the Inventi@mstitutes a work based upon one or more preéegistorks, Supplier sha
ensure that each Work Assignment relating to SepplServices in connection with the developmemtfandelivery of such
Work Product and/or Invention(s) so indicates Hgnmences to (i) the nature of such preexisting wrkits owner; (iii) any
restrictions or royalty terms applicable to Suppéi@ise of such preexisting work or Customer expt@mn of the Work Product
and/or Invention(s); and (iv) the source of Supfgiauthority to employ the preexisting work in o@ttion with its development
and/or delivery to Customer of the Work Product/anthe Invention(s). Unless otherwise specificalfireed in the applicable
Work Assignment, before initiating the preparatafrany Work Product or any Invention that is a dative work of a
preexisting work, Supplier shall cause Customsrsiitccessors and assigns, to have and obtainrdhiedable, nonexclusive,
worldwide, royalty-free right and license to (i)eyexecute, reproduce, display, perform, distrilmternally and externally, sell
copies of, and prepare derivative works theredd, @ authorize or sublicense others from timeitoe to do any or all of the
foregoing.

Notwithstanding Section 13.3, unless otherwisesdtat the Work Assignment, to the extent that therkAProduct is a Softwal
Product consisting of an existing, commerciallyialde Supplier proprietary software tool or apption delivered or made
accessible to Customer solely to facilitate ther®ss process services to be provided under thé Wssignment, the license
granted to Customer for such Software Product &eafbr Customer’s internal business purposes diig.terms of this
Agreement shall supersede any conflicting or mestrictive terms in any shrink wrap or electromehse provisions
accompanying such Software Prodt

Supplier agrees to execute all instruments, detideas or other documents required to be filed vaitly applications for Lette
Patent or applications for the registration of aggiyts that Customer desires to file in the UniBdtes or in foreign countries
when the subject matter of such applications inesuginy Work Product and/or Inventions within thepgcof this Agreement.
Supplier further agrees to supply all informatiorahd cooperate with Customer with respect toitimgfand prosecution of all
applications for Letters Patent and applicatiomgtie registration of copyrights in the United $&and in foreign countries.
Supplier further agrees to do all other lawful @bt are reasonably necessary in respect to piications without expense to
itself or charge to Customer. All items providedXastomer that qualify as Custor’ property shall be marked as follov

“Copyright® 2006 by The Travelers Indemnity Compafilf.Rights Reserved.”

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein slbaliconstrued as giving Customer any ownershiggighownership interes

in any material that Supplier has developed poartd/or independently of Supplier’s performanc&eifvices for Customer and
without reference to Customer Confidential Inforimat Nor shall the provisions of this Agreementdoastrued as restricting
Supplier from performing similar Services for otltéients as long as Supplier does not discloseseramy Customer Confident
Information in such performanc
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14.

14.1

14.2

Indemnification.
Losses.

Each party (“Indemnifying Party”) agrees to defeindlemnify and hold the other party, its Affiliafemnd their directors, officers
and employees harmless from any loss, cost, exgerdeding attorneys’ fees), damage or liabiligsulting from any action
brought or threatened against the other partgitiestors, officers or employees (“Indemnified Bgrthat is based on, arising
of or relating to or resulting from:

0] any act or omission by an agent, contractor, suibgctor, consultant, or employee of the Indemnigyi®arty whict
results in, or is intended by such agent, contrastdbcontractor, consultant, or employee to résulhauthorized acce
into any of the Indemnified Party’s systems, dataechnology, or unauthorized release or useefridemnified
Party' s Confidential Information; and/«

(i) injuries of any kind claimed against the Indemmiffearty by anyone, including but not limited togmral injury, deatt
property damage and theft, arising out of or résgiffrom the Indemnifying Party’s acts or omissiamghose of persons
furnished by it, its agents or subcontractors; ar

(iii) any breach of the duty of good faith and fd&aling, or bad faith, or fraudulent, maliciousdshonest acts by the
Indemnifying Party acting alone or in collusion lwithers during the term of this Agreeme

In addition, Supplier shall defend, indemnify, drald Customer harmless from any loss, cost, exp@nskiding attorneys’
fees), damage or liability resulting from any antlwrought or threatened against Customer, its wirecofficers or employees
that is based on, arising out of or relating teesulting from:

0] any breach of Suppli's Software Lockup and Disabling Devices warrantytamed herein, including (a) any costs
damages incurred by Customer as a result of arty Saftware Lockup and Disabling Devices; (b) antadass which
results from such item if present in the Serviae®/ork Product when delivered to Customer; andf{e)cost of
debugging any Software Lockup and Disabling Devared cost of alternative provision of Services whiebugging is
under way; and/c

(i) any act or omission by Supplier arising outoofrelating to all applicable federal, state, dguand local laws,
ordinances, regulations and codes, both domedtigréd@rnational, in the performance of its obligas under this
Agreement, including but not limited to the procusnt of permits, licenses and certificates whegaired and paymel
of applicable taxes and related fees; an

(i) any assessment, tax, or penalty against Gostdhat is an obligation of Supplier or which tetato compensation paid
by Supplier to workers who perform Services for ©©uger; and/o

(iv) any claim by workers supplied by Supplier t&subcontractors with respect to any employeefliggregrams
maintained by Custome

Indemnification Procedur.

The Indemnified Party will promptly notify the Inaifying Party in writing of the claim or loss selj to the indemnification
obligation, provided however, that any delay inyidang such notice shall not excuse the Indemngyiarty’s performance of i
indemnification obligation unless the delay prepadi the Indemnifying Party in its defense or settlet of the claim. The
Indemnified Party will allow the Indemnifying Party control the defense and reasonably cooperdteti Indemnifying Party
in the defense and any related settlement negmi@éat the Indemnifying Party’s expense. In additmany defense provided by
the Indemnifying Party, the Indemnified Party may
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15.

16.

17.

18.

retain at its expense its own counsel. If the Indiéying Party does not promptly assume the defegsenst such claim or loss,
the Indemnified Party reserves the right to undkerits own defense at Indemnifying Party expense.

Infringement Indemnificatiol.

Supplier agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Gustaand its directors, officers and employees hesmfrom any loss, cost, expense,
damage or liability resulting from any action brbtigr threatened against Customer or its directifficers or employees based on an
allegation that the Services, the Work Producheirtuse of the same infringes a patent, copyrighdemark, service mark or other
proprietary right of any third party or constitutassuse or misappropriation of a trade secret gfthind party. Customer shall notify
Supplier of such action and give Supplier author@asonable information and assistance (at Sufspégpense) for the defense of such
suit or proceeding. Supplier will pay all damagesaed therein against Customer or its officengalors, employees or agreed upon
by Supplier in settlement of the claim. In the evtiat Customer is deprived of its use and/or oshigrof any Work Product or Service
that is subject to this provision, Supplier shglbptain the right for Customer to continue the v$ the affected Work Product or
Service or (i) replace or modify the affected Wénloduct or Service to render it narfringing while retaining like capability. If neier
of the foregoing is practicable for Supplier to quete within a time frame acceptable to Customest@mer may return the affected
Work Product and receive a full refund of all feasd for such Work Product. Supplier’s obligationndemnify and defend Customer
and its directors, officers and employees extea@tl includes any modified Services and Work Peodureplacement Services and
Work Product that Supplier provides to Customeswercome or avoid any infringement claims. Supgteell not settle any such mat

in a way that might negatively affect Customer withCustomer’s prior written consent (not to beaasonably withheld).

DISCLAIMER OF CERTAIN DAMAGES.

IN NO EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHIR PARTY FOR ANY PUNITIVE, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT
OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND IN CONNECTIONVITH THIS AGREEMENT, EVEN IF THE PARTY WHO
IS LIABLE HAS BEEN INFORMED IN ADVANCE OF THE POSBSILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. The foregoing shall not dgpo
or limit either party’s (i) indemnification obligain under any indemnification provision of this A&gment, (ii) liability for a breach of
any confidentiality obligation under this Agreemeunt (iii) liability for direct damages which eithparty and its directors, officers and
employees may suffer or be required to pay arieutgpf injuries to persons (including death) or gibgl damage to property resulting
from the negligence or willful misconduct of thénet party, its employees or subcontractors, dneeiparty’s liability on account of the
gross negligence or willful misconduct of that part

Direct Damage.

The parties agree that the following shall be oder®d direct damages and Supplier shall not abestrthey are incidental or
consequential damages to the extent they result 8opplier’s failure to perform its obligationsancordance with the terms of this
Agreement: (i) cost and expenses of recreatingloading of lost, stolen or damaged informatiofCastomer; (ii) cost and expenses of
implementing a work-around plan in respect of &ufaiby Supplier to perform all or any part ofatsligations under this Agreement;
(iiif) cost and expenses of replacing lost, stoledamaged equipment, and materials; (iv) cost aperses, including extra contractual
obligations incurred by Customer to correct erinrServices provided as part of Supplier's perfanogaunder this Agreement or
Supplier's nonperformance of Services in accordavittethis Agreement; and (v) cost and expensesried by Customer to procure
from an alternate supplier, all or any part of 8svice(s) the performance of which is the oblgyatf Supplier under this Agreement.

Non-Solicitation.

During the term of this Agreement and for a perbdix (6) months after the termination of this Agment, if earlier, neither party st
solicit for employment an employee of the othertyarho is or
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19.

was engaged in such other party’s performance hdegwithout first obtaining such other pagtyrior written consent. For purposes
this provision, publication of job postings in abtialy available publication or forum, such as itrade magazine or newspaper or at a
job fair or on a website, or publication of operingith a career placement office or firm, shall betconsidered “solicitation.”

Term and Terminatio.

19.1

19.2

19.3

194

195

Generally.

The term of this Agreement will begin on the EffeetDate and continue until terminated as set fbetein. In general, the term
of each Work Assignment to this Agreement is apéited to have five (5) stages, unless otherwiseifigetin such Work
Assignment: (i) the Pre-Transition Period, (ii) fheansition Period, (iii) the Pilot, (iv) the SteaBtate Period, and (iii) the
Disentanglement Period (which will encompass ariiyities agreed upon between the parties in acemelavith the process set
forth in Exhibit B for ramp down and/or change ot@another Work Assignment). The Steady StateoHewill have an initial
duration of one or more calendar years as spedifitite Work Assignment. Thereafter, the SteadyeSe&riod will
automatically renew for additional one-year intésuanless either (i) Customer provides Suppliettemi notice of non-renewal
three (3) months before renewal or (ii) Supplievides Customer written notice of non-renewal r{emonths before renewal.
In any event, unless otherwise expressly agreadariting between the parties, this Agreement withain in effect with respect
to any Work Assignment entered into under this &grent for as long as that Work Assignment remaireffect and has not
expired or been terminated.

Termination for Breac.

If a party materially breaches this Agreement (othan a breach of payment obligations, which Igjestt to Section 19.3, belo'
and fails to cure that breach within sixty (60) sla@fter receiving written notice thereof from thbey party, then the non-
breaching party may on written notice to the braagiparty terminate this Agreement. Customer mayosk to terminate
specific affected Services rather than the entjeeAment.

Termination for No-Paymen..

If Customer defaults in the payment of any undisgutmounts due and owing under this Agreement aed dot within forty-
five (45) days after receiving written notice thafrfom Supplier cure such default, Supplier mayni@eate this Agreement on
written notice to Customer. Supplier’s right to gjisuch termination notice shall expire once Custdmeeomes current with
respect to such amounts.

Termination for Change of Contr.

In the event of a Change in Control of Supplieuhisg from a single transaction or series of refbtransactions (other than an
initial or secondary public offering of shares i tSupplier) during the term of this Agreementntheithin twenty-four

(24) months of such Change in Control, Customer taapinate this Agreement or specific Services oitten notice to
Supplier. As used herein, and subject to the ei@epeferenced herein, “Change in Control” meahs Gale by Supplier of a
majority of its assets or business relating to fdseement, or (ii) any acquisition of a majoritfytbe stock of Supplier and/or t|
statutory merger of Supplier with any other entity.

Termination for Convenienc.

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Wossi§nment, and subject to compliance with any direns contained in such
Work Assignment regarding Customer’s rights andgalblons with respect to termination for convenggnCustomer may
terminate this Agreement or any Services (i) on
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20.

21.

19.6

19.7

thirty (30) days written notice to Supplier duritige Pre-Transition or Transition Period or (ii) sirty (60) days written notice to
Supplier during the Steady State Period. Custonasr atso terminate any Services during the Diseréament Period on thirty
(30) days written notice to Supplier.

Disentanglemer.

Upon termination or expiration of all or any portiof the Services provided pursuant to this Agreg@me upon termination or
expiration of this Agreement, Supplier will accoishla complete transition to Customer, or to atgrahte service provider
designated by Customer, of the terminated Senie&yy provided by Supplier without interruptionamverse impact on such
Services, any other Services still being perforfmg&upplier, or any other services provided to Gutr by third parties (the
“Disentanglement”). Supplier will cooperate with €€omer and any alternate service provider designateCustomer and
otherwise promptly take all actions required tasigsustomer in effecting a complete Disentanglem®applier will provide all
information and assistance regarding the termin&gdices required for Disentanglement, includiatadconversion, interface
specifications, and related professional serviepplier will provide for the prompt and orderlynotusion of all work, as
Customer may direct, including completion or paii@mpletion of projects, documentation of all wankprogress, and other
measures to assure an orderly transition to Customits designee. All such activities and serviegating to Disentanglement
(collectively “Disentanglement Services”) will otinése be deemed a part of the Services to be peehby Supplier.
Disentanglement Services will include developingoesterly transition plan and giving Customer thghtito obtain or continue
use any hardware or software, or obtain any thémtlypcontracts, to the extent reasonable. To thenéxhe Disentanglement
Services are a continuation of those Services geavbefore the termination or expiration of thiségment, the charges for st
Services and the charges for any additional ses\{icereby also deemed “Services” hereunder) wittddeulated in accordance
with the applicable Work Assignment(s). Notwithstary the foregoing, Customer will not owe any clesrfpr Disentanglement
Services to the extent Customer terminated thiseagent pursuant to Sections 19.2 (Breach) or T&hdrfge of Control).
Supplier will perform the Disentanglement Servit@sthe period specified by Customer, which willge to eighteen

(18) months (the “Disentanglement Period”).

Effect of Terminatior.

For clarity, following any “termination” of this Agement as set forth above, the terms and prowsibthis Agreement will
continue in effect to the extent Disentanglememvi8es continue thereafter, until the terminatidrihe Disentanglement
Services.

WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.

EACH PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT HEREBY UNCONDITIONALLYWAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL SUIT,
ACTION, PROCEEDING, CLAIM OR COUNTERCLAIM ARISING OT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT.

Assignmen.

This Agreement may not be assigned by Supplierowitfiravelers prior written consent. Travelers raagign or transfer this
Agreement, without consent, by providing writtertio® to Supplier in the following circumstancest@pn Affiliate; b) to a Divested
Entity or ¢) to a successor pursuant to a Chang&oafrol (as defined in this Section 21). As userem, “Change in Control” means

() a sale by Travelers of a majority of its assetbusiness relating to this Agreement, or (iy asquisition of a majority of the stock of
Travelers and/or the statutory merger of Travehdts any other entity. In the event of a Chang€aontrol, Travelers may (at its optic
(i) continue this Agreement; (ii) transfer Travaleights under this Agreement to an existing agesgrbetween the successor and
Supplier; or (iii) terminate this Agreement uponitten notice to Supplier. Any attempt to assigrs tAgreement, or any rights or
obligations hereunder, in contravention of thisggmaaph will be void and unenforceable. This Agreens&all bind and inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their succesmmdgpermitted assigns.
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22.

23.

Notices and Writing..

For all purposes under this Agreement, includiijgoroviding notices or other communications reqdior permitted by this Agreement
or (ii) waiving any right under this Agreement amatwithstanding any law recognizing electronic sitymes or records, “written,” “a
writing signed” and “in writing” shall mean onlyveriting in tangible form bearing an actual “wetgsiature in ink manually applied by
the person authorized by the respective party ssriveth parties agree otherwise by making a speeiference to this section of the
Agreement. All notices under this Agreement shallrbwriting and shall be given by letter or facéewith hard copy confirmation to
the parties’ respective addresses given belowwalhfie effective when received.

Notice addresse

If to Customer If to Supplier:

Ron Godbey Rohit Kapoor, Presiden
Law Dept., Contracts Administrat 350 Park Avenue, 1thFloor,
One Tower Square 3 F New York, NY 1002z

Hartford, CT 0618

Force Majeure.

23.1

23.2

23.3

Each party will be excused from performancgenrthis Agreement (other than obligations to madygments that have become
due and payable pursuant to this Agreement) forpemipd and to the extent that it is prevented fpmrforming any obligations
pursuant to this Agreement, in whole or in partaassult of an event beyond the reasonable cooftiaich party, such as, by
way of example and not limitation, natural disastéril war, war, an act of government, or an ddeororism (each such event a
“Force Majeure Event”)If either party is prevented from, or delayed imfpaming any of its obligations under this Agreerhby
a Force Majeure Event, it shall promptly notify thther party by telephone (to be confirmed in wgtivithin five (5) business
days of the inception of the delay) of the occuceenf a Force Majeure Event and describe, in redderdetail, the
circumstances constituting the Force Majeure Egedtof the obligations the performance of whichthezeby delayed or
prevented. Such party shall continue to use comalbreceasonable efforts to recommence performavicenever and whatever
extent possible without dela

If a Force Majeure Event relating to Supptiea permitted subcontractor prevents, hindersetays performance of the Services
necessary for the performance of one or more afiGzistomer business functions for more than **$iness days or such
shorter period as may be necessary to meet regulaguirements or longer period as may be agreed in writing between tt
parties at the time of the disclosure of the Fddegeure Event, then at Customer’s option: (i) Costo may procure replacement
services from an alternate source; or (i) Customay terminate the Service so affected (or if tbecE Majeure Event only
affects one or more geographic areas, the Semitlesiareas so affected). Supplier shall not hlageight to any additional
payments from Customer as a result of any ForceiajEvent, other than Customer’s payment of ansoathierwise due for
Services provided in accordance with the applicititek Assignment and/or Work Orde

Nothing in this Section 23 shall relieve Supy’'s obligations to provide Disaster Recovery Servinesccordance with Exhibit
or, if different, the terms of a particular Work#dgnment or Work Order impacted by the Force Majdtvent.
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24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Waiver.

No delay or omission by a party to exercise anfitray power under this Agreement will impair thigtht or power, or be construed as a
waiver of any term or provision hereof. No ternpoovision hereof shall be deemed waived and nochreacused unless such waive
consent shall be in an express writing signed byptirty claimed to have waived or consented. Amsent by any party to, or waiver
of, a breach by the other shall not constitutersseat to, or waiver of, or excuse for any othefedént or subsequent breach.

Interpretatior.

The parties to this Agreement have participatestlypin the negotiation and drafting of this Agreemh. Consequently, in the event that
an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretatarises, this Agreement shall be construed asffat jointly by the parties, and no
presumption or burden of proof shall arise favolnglisfavoring any party by virtue of the authdpsbf any provision of this
Agreement. The headings of the sections of thisAgrent constitute no part of this Agreement betvieemarties, having been inset
for convenience of reference only. ReferencesisAlgreement to “days” shall mean calendar daysssbtherwise specified. Use of
the terms “including,” “include,” or “includes” hein shall not be limiting and “or” shall not be &xsive.

Governing Law; Venu.

This Agreement shall be governed by and constmieddordance with the laws of the State of Conaet{pbther than its principles of
conflicts of laws). The United Nations Conventiantbe International Sale of Goods shall not applthts Agreement. In the event that
the Uniform Computer Information Transactions Aty version thereof or any substantially similav [dUCITA”) may apply to this
Agreement or the parties hereunder, said statatk st govern any aspect of this Agreement, acgrise granted under this Agreem
or any of the parties’ rights and obligations awgspursuant to this Agreement, all of which shallgoverned by the laws of the State of
Connecticut as it existed prior to and apart frarchsenactment. Both parties agree to submit tegicfion of the State of Connecticut
and further agree that any litigation arising unolerelating to this Agreement may be brought aoart of otherwise proper jurisdiction
in Hartford, Connecticut.

Severability.

In case any one or more of the provisions containg¢his Agreement shall be held invalid, illegalumenforceable in any respect, such
provision or provisions, to the extent held to iveaiid, illegal or unenforceable, shall be stricker the validity, legality and
enforceability or the remaining provisions contairire this Agreement shall not in any way be affdate impaired thereby. However, in
the event any such provision or portion thereofldieheld invalid, illegal or unenforceable dudttoscope, breadth or duration, then it
shall be modified to the scope, breadth or durgtiemmitted by law and shall continue to be fullgdé valid and enforceable to the
extent so modified.

Survival.
Sections 2, 3, 4,5, 6,9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14,rib 16 of this Agreement shall survive terminati@ndof.

Entire Agreemen.

This Agreement, its Exhibits, and all addenda dartstthe entire agreement between the partiesneghect to the subject matter of 1
Agreement, supersede all prior agreements, repagars and understandings between the partiegewroral or otherwise, with
respect to such subject matter, and may not beedlexcept by an express written amendment exebytbdth parties. For avoidance
doubt, and not by way of limitation, it is exprgsagreed that this Agreement supersedes the Inf&sgireement entered into between
parties as of January 5, 2006. Contrary or supphang terms or conditions on any purchase ordangrother document that is not an
Exhibit, Work Assignment or Work Order hereto, dully and appropriately executed Change Ordemoedment to this Agreement
shall be of no effect.
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30. Counterpart:.

This Agreement may be executed by facsimile sigeadnd in multiple counterparts, each of which Ww#ldeemed an original but both
of which together constitute one and the sametinsnt.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as ofthislay of March, 2006.

THE TRAVELERS INDEMNITY COMPANY EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
BY: /sl Gary Dahms BY: /s/ Rohit Kapoor
NAME: Gary Dahms NAME: Rohit Kapoor

TITLE: VP TITLE: President

DATE: 3/7/06 DATE: 3/16/06
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AMENDMENT 3 to
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Amendment 3 (“Amendment”) is effective as ahdary 1, 2009 (“Effective Date”) and alters therie of the Professional Services
Agreement (as amended by Amendment 1, effectiveuaeyp 16, 2007, and Amendment 2, effective March22®7, and supplemented by
Addendum 1, effective September 24, 2008, the “Agrent”) entered into as of March 7, 2006 by an@vbeh The Travelers Indemnity
Company (“Travelers”), for itself and its affiliatécollectively, “Customer”), and ExIService Holds) Inc. (‘EXLS"), for itself and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Supplier”). Capitalizégrms not defined herein shall have the meanisgskaed to them in the Agreement.

WHEREAS, the Services that Customer has engagepli8up perform have expanded since the Agreemastexecuted; and

WHEREAS, due to the evolution of the parties’ besm relationship the parties wish to clarify certiétails of the relationship and
synchronize the expiration dates of the various k\M@signments under the Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual cau@s set forth herein and for other good and vé¢uednsideration, the receipt a
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Custoreind EXLS hereby agree as follows.

1. In Section 10.1, Invoiceghe third sentence is deleted and replaced bfottmving:

Except as specified in a Work Assignment (or in arkMOrder executed under a Work Assignment), overttharges shall not apply.

2. The following subsections are added to Sectdofthe Agreement:
10.4. Rates

The “Rate Card” attached to this Agreement as Hihi#nd incorporated herein by reference lists thesratel other charges
generally applicable to the Services (collectivéby,purposes of this Section 10, the “Rates”). Pheies shall agree in writing to
the particular Rate(s) to apply to the Servicdsa@rovided under each Work Assignment or Work @Qrae applicable. Except as
set forth in Section 10.5, the Rates payable foviSes performed under a Work Assignment or Worllédishall not be subject to
change unless otherwise specified in such Workghssent or Work Order. Supplier shall not invoices@mer for any Rates other
than those that are included in the Rate Cardeanthiat apply to the particular Services unlessratharges are expressly permitted
under a Work Assignment or Work Order executed d@@uary 1, 2009. If the parties agree to makéiadd to the Rate Card,
such additions shall be made in accordance witlptbeess defined in Exhibit B.

10.5 ***
10.6 Productivity Improvement

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 10.4, plagties have agreed that the “Productivity Improgat” provisions set forth in
Exhibit K , attached to this Agreement and incorporated fareace herein, will apply to the Services as dbedrin such Exhibit
K.




10.7 Foreign Exchange

The parties have agreed to allocate the foreighamge rate risk for the Services performed pursigaiftis Agreement in
accordance with Exhibit | attached to this Agreement and incorporated fBreace herein.

10.8 ***

3. The following sentence is added to Section \Wa&ranty and Acceptance

The “Service Level Agreement” attached to this Agnent as Exhibit Mind incorporated by reference herein shall app&upplier’'s
performance of the Services.

4. In Section 19.1, Generallyhe following sentences are added at the endeoSection:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is the partiegteintion that all Work Assignments (and associ&teatk Orders) having a fixed initial
term share a common anniversary date of Decembén 3drtherance of such mutually agreed objectarg; new Work Assignment
entered into with a fixed initial term on or aftae effective date of Amendment 3 to the Agreenséatl have an initial term that expires
on December 31 of a designated year, selectedasthin new Work Assignment and all other Work Assignts that are thezurrently ir
force and subject to an initial term and/or renetwah (as defined in each such Work Assignmentjesha&ommon renewal date. Each
Work Order entered into under such a Work Assigrtrsgmilarly shall have an initial term that expir@s December 31 of a designated
year, with the year to be selected based on Cust®expectations regarding Customer’s businessireaents for the Services.

5. All terms and conditions of the Agreement né¢rd by this Amendment remain in full force anfketf

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON NEXT PAGE]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment to beteféeas of the 1st day of January, 2009.

THE TRAVELERS INDEMNITY COMPANY EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
BY: /s/ Thurman R. Justice BY: /s/ Rohit Kapoor
NAME: Thurman R. Justic NAME: Rohit Kapoor

TITLE: CFO, Operations & Systen TITLE: President & CFC

DATE: 3/24/09 DATE: 3/31/09
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SERVICE

PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL

May 1, 2009

Mr. Vishal Chhibbar
20 Banks Avenue
Hampton, Melbourne
Victoria — 3188
Australia.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

Dear Vishal,

Further to the recent meetings and discussiondgduvith us, we are now pleased to offer you amigment withexl Service.com (1) Pvt.
Ltd. (“the Company”) to the position &fice President and Chief Financial Officeron the terms and conditions set out herein after:

(iii)
(iv)

EMPLOYMENT

Your effective date of joining” Joining Date”) shall be no later thal st June, 2009

Your employment with the Company is subject

the accuracy of the testimonials and informaticvjated by you

your being free from any contractual restrictionsventing you from accepting this offer or startiagrk on the abov-mentioned date
on our receiving two satisfactory references;

if so asked by the Company, your disclosingyonr own behalf and, if married, on your spousehalf full details of any external
directorships held and any personal business stteiecluding partnerships, shareholdings andeasstips; involvement in any other
business ventures involving unlimited liability;rpenal liabilities in connection with business witiiés; and involvement in other
positions external to the Company and acceptandbeb@ompany of those external intere

If you breach any of the aforesaid conditions, tffer shall stand revoked automatically (whetheu y\ave accepted it or not) and, if you
have already commenced employment with the Compargh employment will automatically terminate witlhgiving you any claim for
compensation or damages, but without prejudiceédompany’s rights and remedies against you.

PLACE OF POSTING

Your initial place of posting shall beMwbida, Uttar Pradesh. However, your services are transferable and yay be assigned /
transferred in India or outside India to serve@mnpany or any of its group companies. It is a @mdto your employment that you
comply with any such requirements of the Compaie Fansfer will not deem to constitute a changgour conditions of service

Notwithstanding the above, you may however be regluio work at any other place that the Company desgm fit and as may |
required from time to time. You may also be secdndeputed or transferred to any other companycéssal to the Company whether in
India or abroad

Ex| Service.com (I) Pvt. Ltd.
A 48, Sector 58, Noida, (UP) 201 301, India Tel(920) 2445900 Fax 91 (120) 2490304
Registered Office 103A, Ashoka Estate, BarakhamtedRNew Delhi 110 001, Ind



K

SERVICE

2.3

Your place of work shall change in case of mgcation of the Company’s offices, for which yshall not be entitled to any
compensatior

PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES

You shall be assigned with all the duties agponsibilities of th€hief Financial Officer and such other duties on behalf of the
Company, as may be reasonably assigned from timiméoby the Compar' s managemen

You shall, at all times, be required to carry dw tluties and responsibilities assigned to yothbyGompany, faithfully and diligently a
in compliance with the established policies anctpdures, endeavoring to the best of your abilitgritect and promote the interests of
the Company

You shall not, during the term of your employmexcept with the written permission of the Compangage directly or indirectly,
whether part-time or full time, in any other busiggoccupation or activity, whether as a principgknt or otherwise, which will be
detrimental, whether directly or indirectly, to tiempany’s interests. It is clarified that suchtten permission as mentioned herein does
not create any right in your favor or obligationtbie Company. It shall be on the sole and excludiseretion of the Company to grant or
not to grant such permissic

You shall use the office of the Company only fardering such services for which you have been aypedi

You are expected to attend office, except wheretiag on business, during the working hours / shafi may be decided by the Comp
The Company practices a 48-hour workweek for aff sthd management employees. Actual work timimgs shifts may vary from time
to time based on business and customer servicéreatgnts.

COMPENSATION

As compensation for services to be rendered, yall Ba paid a Basic salary Rupees 6,187,500.0iper annum. The salary shall
payable on monthly basis in arrears on or aboulatstevorking day of each calendar month, but ircase later than thet7 day of the
succeeding calendar month. Other allowances anefibepayable shall be as detailed in Appendix retwe

You will be entitled to a signing bonusRxipees 1,250,000 (Twelve Lakhs and Fifty Thousanpayable within 60 days following your
first day of work. As per the policy of the Compattye signing bonus is regarded as an advanceutéoydhe first 18 months of your
employment with the Company and is subject to youaining actively employed with the Company foleatst eighteen months
following the Joining Date. Should you resign wilh@&ood Reason (as defined in the Letter Agreerneteen you and ExIService
Holdings, Inc. dated as of June 1, 2009 (the “dreftgreement)), or your employment be terminated for Caused@fined in the Letter
Agreement) prior to completing eighteen monthsesfiee with the Company, you will be required téured this amount to the Compat

You will be eligible to receive an annual cash o(the" Target Bonu¢”) in respect of each calendar year equal to 50% of Foxed
Cost, as set forth on the Annexure on page ch(gixed Cost, th" Base Salar”), subject to achievement of the following objectiv

*  60% of your total bonus potential shall dependrengchievement of corporate revenue and EBIT tauggdteach calendar year;

* 40% of your total bonus potential shall depend crievement of personal objectives set for eacmdaleyear, which will be
mutually agreed upon with the Chief Executive Gific

You may be eligible for a bonus payment in excé<€s080 of your Base Salary, if and to the extengeéts and objectives are exceeded,
but in no event will your annual bonus exceed 1@J%our Base Salary.

Your annual bonus will be paid no later than thd ehApril following the end of the preceding cattem year. You must be actively
employed by the Company and must not have prewiaigéen notice of your intention to terminate y@amployment on the date bonuses
are paid to other executives of the Company fortpdoe eligible for receipt. Any bonus paid in respof 2009 will be pro-rated to the
Joining Date.
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4.4

The Compensation Committee of the Board of DirectdrExIService Holdings, Inc. will grant you a &tooption in respect of 100,0(
shares of common stock of ExIService Holdings, ¥mur stock option grant will be made under theSedvice Holdings, Inc. 2006
Omnibus Award Plan (the_* Omnibus PIgron the later of June 1, 2009 and your first dagervice as an officer of ExIService
Holdings, Inc. The terms of your stock option graiit be set forth in a definitive award agreemistued to you under the Omnibus Plan
on or after your first day as an officer of ExISee/Holdings, Inc., and your stock option will vestd become exercisable as to 10%,
20%, 30% and 40% of the option shares on of tis¢, econd, third and fourth respective annivegsasf the date of grant of the stock
option.

The payment of all compensation shall be made ¢or@ance with the relevant policies of the Compiangffect from time to time
including normal payroll practices, and shall bbjeat to income tax deductions at source, as agipkc All requirements under Indian
tax laws, including tax compliance and filing ok teeturns, assessment etc. of your personal incehad|, be fulfilled by you

The compensation paid to you has taken into corddide the status and responsibilities of the appoént and as such, you will not
entitled to any other payment by way of any othiemaances

By accepting this offer you authorize the Compangeduct from your remuneration on terminationropyment (including salan
salary in lieu of notice, holiday pay and sick petg.) all debts owed by you to the Company or@fys group companies or any fine
imposed by the Company as a discretionary penaltyyant to the Compa’s disciplinary procedurt

CONFIDENTIALITY

The term“Confidential Informatio” shall include all information, whether written aiag) that is not known by, or not generally avaiée
to, the public at large and that concerns the assinactivities, financial affairs, trade secretshnology of the Company or otherwise
relates to the Company, in any manner whatsoetgectustomers, their clients, suppliers and othsimasses or entities, with whom the
Company does business, which may come to your ledyd or possession during the tenure of your empdoy with the Company. Yc
shall hold such Confidential Information in trusidaconfidence and not disclose or divulge such t@ential Information to any other
person or entity or use any such Confidential Imfation for your own benefit or the benefit of artier party, unless so authorized by
Company or required to be so disclosed or divuigetie course of the proper execution of your dutiéou agree to sign the
‘Confidentiality and Non Compete Agreen’ in the form annexed to this lettt

You undertake not to make copies or duplicatesy Confidential Information or other sensitpr@perty or materials of the Company,
including but not limited to keys, access cardskelites, programs, photographs or such other @tapyiinformation relating to the
Compan'’s business
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5.3 You shall keep strictly confidential, details ofresalary and employment benefits within and oetsite Company

5.4 You agree and confirm that the terms and conditairikis Clause 5 shall survive the terminatioriscontinuation of your services wi

o

the Company

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

You shall be required to disclose promptly, comglieind in writing to the Company any discoveryention, methodology or
improvements made thereto, process, software apiglits or products, conceived, developed or diseavby you, either individually or
jointly with others, during your employment (“Inviians”) and such Inventions whether or not patent apptioatare filed thereon shall
all time belong absolutely to and be the sole drmblute property of the Company. You agree to saah Inventions as Company
proprietary and confidential and to use such Ineastsolely for the benefit of the Company. Youesgto assign to the Company any
all rights, title and interest, including, but fiohited to, copyrights, trade secrets and propretaghts to the Inventions, information,
materials, products and deliverables developeddutie performance of services to the Company. &pree that all the work performed
by you and all Inventions, information, materigdgpducts and deliverables developed by you whilaénemployment of the Company
shall be the exclusive property of the Companyalhtitle and interest therein shall vest in then@any. All such Inventions,
information, materials, products and deliverableslidhe deemed to be “works made for hire” underltinited States Copyright Laws. If
and when required by the Company, you shall aCitvapany’s expense take out or apply for lettersngaticenses or other rights,
privileges or protection, as may be directed byGbenpany in respect of such Inventions, so thab#refit thereof accrues to the
Company. You shall execute and do all instrumeatts, deeds and other things, which may be reqbyate Company for assigning,
licensing any Inventions made during the employmehich shall vest with the Company including tteenme and all benefits arising in
respect thereof.

Pursuant to its exclusive proprietary rights, tlwpany shall have the sole and exclusive right4alia to use, modify or adapt the
Inventions, information, materials, products oriviiables developed by you during the performarigeor services as an employee of
the Company.

Disciplinary Action Procedure

Any breach of the Company’s Code of Conduct, failir attain or maintain a satisfactory work staddarany misconduct by an
employee will be regarded as a disciplinary or bijtg matter. Your immediate superior will normaliieal with minor disciplinary
matters. The procedure for more serious offencdading major misconduct shall be as set out uttteeCode of Conduct.

Code of Conduct

You shall abide and be bound by the Company’s @bdzonduct, and the Code of Conduct will form atdirthis contract of
employment. The Code of Conduct may be changenyatime at the discretion of the Company and thenged Code of Conduct shall
thereupon bind you. You will also carry out andd&bby any instruction, policy issued by the Compfiogn time to time.
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9.
9.1

9.4

TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT AND RETIREMENT

At any stage of your employment, you may termirnyater employment without Good Reason (as defingtién_etter Agreement) t
giving three months notice in writing to the Compan in lieu thereof a sum equal to the amountrorated amount of salary which
would have accrued to you during the period or iamg period of notice. If the Company terminatesiyemployment without Cause,
the Severance provisions in the Letter Agreemelhtapply.

After either you or the Company have given the pofigety notice of your termination of employmernuyshall cooperate with tt
Company, as reasonably requested by the Companffettt a transition of your responsibilities antsere that the Company is aware of
all matters being handled by you. The Company vesathe right not to relieve you of your employmienthe event that all the
Company’s documents / property / Confidential Infation in your custody have not been properly hdraieer by you to an authorized
representative of the Compat

Upon termination of your employment with then@any for any reason, you shall promptly returthioCompany any keys, credit cards,
passes, confidential documents or material, orrgiteperty belonging to the Company, and returtwailings, files, records,
correspondence, notebooks, notes and other docasraedtthings (including any copies thereof) comgConfidential Information or
relating to the business or proposed businesseoEtimpany or its subsidiaries or affiliat

The Company reserves the right during any desfmotice of termination of employment to exclydel from the premises of the
Company, or to require you to carry out specifiaties at premises other than those referred taiagraph 3.1 above, or to carry out no
duties, and to instruct you not to communicate witents, employees, agents or representativeseo€ompany until your employment
has been terminated, provided that you will corgitmbe paid and to enjoy normal contractual béndfiring any such period. You will
not be entitled to engage in any other employmeatk or business during the notice peri

You shall retire on your 5thbirthday or the last day before that, if your bildly does not fall on a working de

Notwithstanding anything contained in clause &, €ompany reserves the right to terminate youd@yngent for Cause (as defined
the Letter Agreement) without giving any noticeipdror pay in lieu thereo

RELOCATION

The Company will provide you with a monthly housimbursement for your family in Melbourne, Ausianot to exceed Rupe
100,000 per month. The monthly housing reimburseméhend on December 31, 2009. You will be soledgponsible for any tax
liability arising from the housing allowanc

The Company will also provide a total of four rounigg and four one way business class airfare t&kar travel between Melbourne,
Australia and New Delhi, India for you and your f§m

The Company will also reimburse you up to Rupeds@ID for actual documented moving expenses indlyethe relocation of your
personal effects from Melbourne, Australia to Newli, India.

We will provide up to Rupees 50,000 to help cover documented costs of tax filing and tax advissegices you incur before the first
anniversary of your Joining Date.
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11. OTHERS

11.1 You will be bound by the Code of Conduct of the @amy and all other rules, regulations, instructiggedicies and orders issued by -
Company from time to time, in relation to your caod discipline and service conditions such asdeawdical, retirement, etc. as if th
Code of Conduct, rules, regulations, instructiasligies etc. were part of this agreeme

11.2 You shall inform the Company as soon as possildeitsdny change in your residential addr:
11.3 The provisions of this agreement shall be constaretlgoverned in accordance with the laws of Ir

Kindly sign and return the duplicate copy of tretter, as a token of your acceptance of the termdscanditions set out herein. Also, please
initial each page of the letter.

Please note that by signing this letter agreenyenthave agreed to accept the employment with tiragainy on the terms and conditions set
out herein. Upon your signature and return to his, dffer letter will be treated as an employmegreament and the terms and conditions of
agreement shall govern your employment with the amy.

This offer shall automatically stand revoked in édvent of your not joining the Company on or befitve date mentioned in this employment
offer and agreement.

It is a pleasure to welcome you as a member oService.com (India) Private Limited. We are confitihat your employment with the
Company will prove mutually beneficial & rewardirgnd we look forward to having you join us.

Yours truly,
for ex| Service.com (I) Pvt. Ltd.

/s/ Amitabh Hajela
Amitabh Hajele
Vice President & Global Head of H

| accept the offer on the terms and conditionseasidbed in this letter.

/s/ Vishal Chhibba
Vishal Chhibbar

5th May, 200¢
Date
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Appendix 1

COMPENSATION & BENEFITS

* You shall be eligible for House Rent Allowance6@®6 of your annual basic salary. The Company may pe@dmpany Leased
Accommodation in accordance with its internal pek¢ where the cost to the company shall be lintiteithie above mentioned
amount.

» As per the policies and procedures of the Compgmy shall be eligible for leave travel concessiéB.83% of your annual basic
salary.

* You shall be entitled to avail Medical Reimburseisesf up toRupees 15,000.0 per annum, against actual medical expenses on
self and family, subject to your providing billsfimices/other documentary evidence in respect o$tmee

* You shall receive an /-hoc Allowance oRupees 1,301,462.0iper annum, which will be paid in accordance with pinevailing
policy of the Company

* The Company shall provide you with a car commertsukéth your job and position. The annual cost@viding this car shall nc
exceecRupees 750,000.0@er annum

* You shall be provided with superannuation benefitRrovident Fund and Gratuity in accordance whih applicable statutory
requirements

* You shall be covered under a comprehensive meitisatance coverage (under Mediclaim Policy) fof, sglouse, 2 dependent
children and personal accident insurance coverageiathe Company policy for self on

* The cost to the Company for the above mentioneéfiisiwill be limited to the amount mentioned haabove. If any of the above-
mentioned benefits becomes chargeable to tax becdwny reason whatsoever, it is hereby clarified it would be your
responsibility to pay the taxes, if any. The Compwaiil, in no case, be responsible for the sa

» The benefits under the above schemes will be gedeoy the Company'’s rules and regulations frameHigregard. It is the
absolute discretion of the management to decidehehany particular benefit will be provided to younot.
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Business Related Expens

You shall be reimbursed business related expersspsrahe following specifications and annualizedts.

Vehicle Running and Maintenance Actual expenses incurred towards petrol / diasel maintenance of vehicle shall be reimbursedwp t
maximum ofRupees 120,000.0@er annum. This will be reimbursed to you on praigduncof bills.

Driver's Wages: Actual expenses incurred towards paying wage®tw driver shall be reimbursed up to a maximurRopees 108,000.00
per annum. This will be reimbursed upon submissiostamped receipt from your driver and a copyisfdniving license.

Details of Business Related Expenses policy skatidplained after your joining
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CONFIDENTIALITY AND NON COMPETITION AGREEMENT

As a condition of my provision of services to ortmehalf ofexl Service.com () Pvt. Ltd.or any of its affiliates (hereinafter referred thé
Company”), | make the following statements with thlerstanding and intent that they be relied othbyCompany in entering into an
agreement and by the Company in extending its offemployment. | acknowledge and understand thataviding services to and on behalf
of the Company, | will have access to Confiderdiadl Proprietary Information (as defined hereunder).

| understand that the term “Confidential and Prefary Information”shall include all information, whether written aiag that is not known b

or not generally available to, the public at laggel that concerns the business, activities, firmmdfairs, trade secrets, technology of the
Company or otherwise relates to the Company, inmagner whatsoever, its customers, their clientspkers and other businesses or entities,
with whom the Company does business, which may dorgeur knowledge or possession during the tenfig@ur employment with the
Company.

| agree that during the period in which | provigevices to the Company:

1.  1will use my best efforts and exercise the whailigence in keeping confidential, all Confid@htind Proprietary Information, including
but not limited to innovations, processes, methogiels, software applications or products, busiaeskstrategic plans and initiatives,
financial information and similar information ungelawfully made available by a client or the Compaancerning any client of the
Company or by the Company itself which | may leatquire or get possession of, during the course b¥ virtue of my provision of
consulting services to the Company. | will use soneterials and information relating to Confidentiald Proprietary Information solely
for the benefit of the Company and its clients asiltinot use such information for any other enttigr persons. At the conclusion of my
relationship with the Company | will return any r@al relating to Confidential and Proprietary Infation and any copies there

2. | agree not to keep at any time on my persdn ory possession, except in the necessary perfaenahmy duties, any non- public
material acquired by me, whether produced by meya@mployees or agents of the Company or any clieagree to safeguard all such
Confidential and Proprietary Information materiadsile they are in my possession, and to surrerfdentand all copies, which have been
made of them to the Company upon termination ofatgtionship with the Compan

3. lwill at all times exercise discretion in dissing with others the affairs of clients, avoidimnecessary identification of names, places,
and other specifics, and | will take reasonableaudons to make sure that such discussions cérenoterheard, and electronic
communications cannot be intercepted either byit's employees or outside persc

4. | will not make any private use of Confidential aPbprietary Information that may come to my aitambecause of my employme
with the Company, nor will | pass such Confidenéiatl Proprietary Information on to anyone elsendarstand the term “use” includes,
but is not limited to, anyone’s purchase or salsemfurities influenced by such Confidential andofiegary Information, access to which
is directly or indirectly due to my relationshipttvithe Company

5. | agree to disclose and assign promptly, completatyin writing to the Company any inventions, wigetor not patentable, and includ
but not limited to, any innovations on processesthodologies, software applications or productschvtiidiscover, conceive and/or
develop, either individually or jointly with otherduring the term of my professional relationshighvthe Company (“Inventions”). |
understand that all inventions which | do herelsigrsare and shall become the exclusive propertiefCompany, whether or not patent
applications are filed thereon, and | agree ta saah inventions as Compa
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proprietary and confidential information and to sseh solely for the benefit of the Company. | bgrassign to the Company any and
rights, title and interest, including, but not Ited to, copyrights, trade secrets and proprietghts to the information, materials, products
and deliverables developed during the performafsemices to the Company. All work | perform in mpsofessional capacity and all
information, materials, products and deliverablegatoped by me in acting as a consultant to the 2o shall be the exclusive prope

of the Company and all title and interest therdiallsvest in the Company. All such information, eréls, products and deliverables shall
be deemed to be “works made for hire” under thadghstates Copyright Laws. Pursuant to its exckupmoprietary rights, the Company
shall have the sole and exclusive right inter taiase, modify or adapt the information, materipl®ducts or deliverables that |
developed during the performance of services asauttant to the Company. | agree to provide allessary assistance required to
perfect such assignment of rights defined in thivjsion.

I will not for a period of two years after the témation of this agreement, whether voluntarily mvadluntarily (a) directly or indirectl
solicit to provide or provide, without the prioritten consent of the Company, any professionalisesvsuch as those provided by the
Company for anyone who is a client of the Compamytine during the twelve months prior to my leavthg Company and for whom |
provided any service as an employee of the Compaf(ly) directly or indirectly, without the prior wten consent of the Company, soli
for employment with myself or any Company or entitigh which | am associated, any employee of thenBany or otherwise disrupt,
impair, damage, or interfere with the Company’atiehship with its employees. The non-compete @ions of this paragraph will not
apply to a client of the Company for whom | perfedrservices or with whom | had significant professi contact prior to joining the
Company and which list of clients | have disclogethe Company prior to my joinin

If I am directed by any governmental agencyudigial forum or asked to testify concerning anytteralearned in the course of services
provided to or on behalf of the Company, | will iradiately notify the Company before making any disares

| further agree that in the event of terminatdnhis agreement, or my employment with the Conypavhether of my own volition or
otherwise, for a period of two (2) year thereafteshall not directly or indirectly, provide anyrsies to or take up employment with any
of the existing customers of the Compa

That in the event | am found to be in breach of #tgreement, or my employment contract with the @y, | shall be liable to pay to 1
Company a sum equivalent to the remuneration / emsgtion received by me, from the Company, indlsethree months immediately
preceding the termination. This will in no way eff¢he other rights which the Company may haveregane, especially the right to
obtain injunctive relief against m

/s/ Vishal Chhibba
Vishal Chhibbar
5th May, 200¢
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Annexure
Name-Vishal Chhibbar
Date of Joining June 1, 20C
Designation- Chief Financial Officer
Basic (45% of CTC) 6,187,501
Housing - 60% of Basic 3,712,50!
Leave Travel- 8.33% of Basic 515,41¢
Medical 15,00(
Ad-Hoc Allowance 1,301,46:
Business Related Expense
Vehicle Running & Maintenanc 120,00
Driver's Wages 108,00(
Company Car 750,00(
Retirals
Provident Fun(-12% of Basic 742,50(
Gratuity - 4.81% of Basic 297,61¢

Fixed Cost 13,750,00



Exhibit 10.3
EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
May 1, 2009

Mr. Vishal Chhibbar
20 Banks Avenue
Hampton, Melbourne
Victoria — 3188
Australia

Re: Letter Agreement
Dear Vishal:

This Letter Agreement (the “ Letter Agreeméhis in addition to the employment letter datedyMa 2009, pursuant to which you were hired
by exIService.com (India) Private Limited (* Exldia ") effective on June 1, 2009, (the “ Employmentteet).

Effective June 1, 2009, you will be appointed te plosition of Vice President and Chief Financidi¢af of ExIService Holdings, Inc. (the “
Company”), the parent company of Ex| India and this Letdgreement is between you and the Company. As Ghiefncial Officer of the
Company, you will be reporting directly to the Caany’s President and Chief Executive Officer, ortsather person designated by the
Company.

The offer of continued employment contained inEmeployment Letter is not to be considered a cohgaaranteeing employment for any
specific duration.

Annual performance reviews by the President anéixecutive Officer of the Company will be condeatto assess professional developi
opportunities as well as to consider increase®tw gompensation (including, without limitationcieasing Base Salary (as defined in the
Employment Letter) and the percentage Target Beasislefined in the Employment Letter) as well @anting of additional options or other
forms of equity compensation).

You will also be covered by the Company’s dire@nod officer insurance and be indemnified on theeshasis as other officers in the
Company. The foregoing right of indemnification kimat be exclusive of any right to Indemnificatitmwhich you may be entitled under the
Company'’s Articles of Incorporation or By-Laws,amatter of law or otherwise, or any other powat the Company may have to indemnify
you or hold you harmles

Severance If Exl India terminates your employment otherritfar “Cause” (defined below) or you resign for “@bReason” (defined below),
subject to the execution (and non-revocation dugimg applicable revocation period) of a mutuallyesgble release of all employment-related
claims against the Company and its subsidiarieseantl of their
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employees, officers and directors (a “ Relgdsgou shall be entitled to severance paymentakgutwelve (12) months Base Salary (as
defined in the Employment Letter) then in effectichin twelve (12) monthly installments beginnitirty-one (31) days following your
termination of employment. The Release must bewggecand become irrevocable within thirty (30) degtowing your termination of
employment for you to be eligible for any paymemaccordance with this paragraph.

If ExI India terminates your employment for Cause/ou resign voluntarily other than for Good Reasau will not be entitled to any further
compensation or payments under this Letter Agreémen

“ Cause” shall mean (A) a final non-appealable convictadnor a pleading of no contest to, (i) a crimevadral turpitude which causes serious
economic injury or serious injury to the Companmgputation or (ii) a felony; or (B) fraud, embeznlent, gross negligence, self-dealing,
dishonesty or other gross and willful misconductolithas caused serious and demonstrable injutyet€bmpany; (C) material violation by
you of any material Company policy; (D) willful amdntinuing failure to substantially perform yowrtigs (other than for reason of physica
mental incapacity) which failure to perform contsubeyond fifteen (15) days after a written denfandubstantial improvement in your
performance, identifying specifically and in dethié manner in which improvement is sought, isvée&d to you by the Company; provided
that a failure to achieve performance objectivesl stot by itself constitute Cause and no act duffa to act by you shall be considered
“willful” unless done or failed to be done by yauliad faith and without a reasonable belief thairyactions or omission was in the best
interest of the Company; (E) your failure to reasay cooperate in an investigation involving then@pany by any governmental authority;
(F) your material, knowing and intentional failucecomply with applicable laws with respect to theecution of the Company’s business
operations, including, without limitation, a knowgiand intentional failure to comply with the Pretien of Corruption Act of India, 1988, or
the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices A&7, as amended; providethat, if all of the following conditions existére will be a
presumption that you have acted in accordanceswith applicable laws: you are following, in gooilhfathe written advice of counsel, such
counsel having been approved by the Board of Dirsaif the Company as outside counsel to the Coynfaaimegulatory and compliance
matters, in the form of a legal memorandum or atemilegal opinion, and you have, in good faitlpvided to such counsel all accurate and
truthful facts necessary for such counsel to resdeh legal memorandum or written legal opinion); Y&ur failure to follow the lawful
directives of the Board which is not remedied witfifteen (15) days after your receipt of writtestice from the Company specifying such
failure; or (H) your use of alcohol or drugs whittaterially interferes with the performance of yduties.

“ Good Reasori shall mean the occurrence, without your priortten consent, of any of the following events: (Agubstantial reduction of
your duties or responsibilities or change in reipgrtelationship to anyone other than the Com’s Board of Directors, or the President and
Chief Executive Officer, (B) your job title as afficer of the Company is adversely changed, pradittet if there is a “Change of Control” (as
defined in the ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2006 OnusilAward Plan) and you retain similar title
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and similar authority with the Company or any sntitat acquires the Company (or any affiliate dsssdiary of such entity) following such
Change of Control, the parties agree that any ahémgour title shall not constitute a significaatiuction of your duties and authorities
hereunder; (C) a reduction of your then Base Salagnnual cash bonus opportunity other than agstigmate reduction impacting all
members of the Executive Committee of the CompanyD) a breach by the Company of any material tefithe Employment Letter or this
Letter Agreement; provided that, a termination by yith Good Reason shall be effective only if,hiit30 days following your first becomil
aware of the circumstances giving rise to Good Beagou deliver a “Notice of Terminatiofidr Good Reason by you to the Company, anc
Company within 15 days following its receipt of Buwmotification has failed to cure the circumstang®ing rise to Good Reason.

Change of Control:

In the event that a Change in Control occurs ahe tvhen any portion of restricted stock or a stopkion remains unvested, then effective
upon the consummation of the Change in Controlydsting of the portion of the restricted stoclstwrck option which is not then fully vested
shall accelerate such that any portion of the sifricted stock or stock option which would havedree vested during the one-year period
following the Change in Control shall become ves#dctive as of the consummation of the Changedntrol. In the event that (i) your
employment with the Company is terminated withoati€e (a) at any time following a Change in Contrdlb) in specific contemplation of a
Change in Control or (ii) you resign with Good Raaat any time following a Change of Control, ybal§ upon and subject to your execut
(and non-revocation during any applicable revoeagieriod) of a mutually agreeable Release, beleatiin addition to the severance specified
above, to immediate full vesting as of the termoratiate of any portion of restricted stock ora@cktoption which is unvested as of the
termination date.

Clawback : If ExI India terminates your employment for Cawseyou resign voluntarily other than for Good Regsn either case within
eighteen (18) months following your date of hireuywill be required to repay to the Company witthiinty days following your termination of
employment (i) the relocation allowance detaile&écttion 10.1 of the Employment Letter, (ii) thgrson bonus described in Section 4.2 of
Employment Letter and (iii) the cost to the Compahthe travel assistance detailed in Section #0the Employment Letter.

Section 409A: The parties intend that any amounts payable nelesuhat could constitute “deferred compensatisithin the meaning of
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 188@mended, and the Treasury Regulations promdl¢fagecunder (* Section 409, will

be compliant with Section 409A. In light of the enainty as of the date hereof with respect topttoger application of Section 409A, you and
the Company agree to negotiate in good faith toereakendments to the Employment Letter and thiset éijreement as the parties mutually
agree are necessary or desirable to avoid the itigrosf taxes or penalties under Section 409A.wWiibtstanding the foregoing, you shall be
solely responsible and liable for the satisfactiball taxes and penalties that may be imposedoanoy for your account in connection with the
Employment Letter and this Letter Agreement (inaligdany taxes and penalties under Section 409A) naither the Company nor any affili
shall have any obligation to indemnify or otherwigsd you (or any beneficiary) harmless from anwlbof such taxes or penalties.
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Notwithstanding anything in the Employment Lettetlts Letter Agreement to the contrary, in therdubat you are deemed to b“specified
employee” within the meaning of Section 409A(a)B}{) and you are not “disabled” within the meanimigSection 409A(a)(2)(C), no
payments hereunder that are “deferred compensagidnjéect to Section 409A shall be made to you pddhe date that is six (6) months after
the date of your “separation from service” (asmediin Section 409A) or, if earlier, your date ehth. Following any applicable six (6) month
delay, all such delayed payments will be paid &ingle lump sum on the earliest permissible payrdate. For purposes of Section 409A, each
of the payments that may be made under the seetitithed “Severance” are designated as separatagygyg for purposes of Treasury
Regulations Section 1.409A-1(b)(4)(i)(F), 1.409A00)(iil) and 1.409A-1(b)(9)(v)(B).

For purposes of the Employment Letter and thisdreligreement, with respect to payments of any ansotinat are considered to be “deferred
compensation” subject to Section 409A, referenaégetrmination of employment” (and substantiallyndar phrases) shall be interpreted and
applied in a manner that is consistent with theliregnents of Section 409A.

To the extent that any reimbursements pursuafitet@&tnployment Letter or this Letter Agreement as@ble to you, any such reimbursement
payment due to you shall be paid to you as prongstlgracticable, and in all events on or befordakeday of your taxable year following the
taxable year in which the related expense was ieduSuch reimbursements are not subject to ligioidar exchange for another benefit, and
the amount of such benefits and reimbursements/thateceive in one taxable year shall not affeetamount of such benefits or
reimbursements that you receive in any other taxabébr.

Any payment made to you in respect of the contionatf any health and dental insurance coverageui@ Employment Letter (to the extent
such payments are treated as “deferred compen$atidnin the meaning of Section 409A) shall be pa&lsoon as practicable following
submission of the claims but in any event not I#itan the third calendar year following the calendsgar in which your “separation from
service” (as defined in Section 409A) occurs.

It is intended that any indemnification paymenadvancement of expenses made hereunder shall bweftem Section 409A.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any indemnificatipayment or advancement of expenses made hereshralebe determined to I‘deferred
compensation” within the meaning of Section 409%t (i) the amount of the indemnification paymenadvancement of expenses during one
taxable year shall not affect the amount of themdification payments or advancement of expensgsglany other taxable year, (ii) the
indemnification payments or advancement of expenmsest be made on or before the last day of youatiexyear following the year in which
the expense was incurred, and (iii) the right eimnification payments or advancement of expense=uhder is not subject to liquidation or
exchange for another benefit.

Business Expenses
The Company will pay for or reimburse you for authed and proper business-related expenses thangguncur in discharging your duties.
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Covenant Not to Compete

You acknowledge that the services you are to retwdtre Company are of a special and unusual cteayaeith a unique value to the Compe
the loss of which cannot adequately be compendstelmages or an action at law. In view of the uaigalue to the Company, its subsidia
and affiliates (collectively, the “ Grou} of the services of you for which the Company baatracted hereunder, because of the confidential
information to be obtained by, or disclosed to, gstherein above set forth, and as a material exdeat to the Company to enter into this
Letter Agreement and to pay to you the compensatiated herein and any additional benefits stageeih, and other good and valuable
consideration, you covenant and agree that during gmployment and during the “Non-Competition Beyl as defined below, you shall not,
directly or indirectly, enter into the employmeiffit nder consulting or other services to, acqaing interest in (whether for your own account
as an individual proprietor, or as a partner, assecstockholder, officer, director, trustee drastvise), or otherwise participate in any business
that competes, directly or indirectly, with any nteen of the Group (i) in the same lines of busineghe business process outsourcing industry
that the members of the Group are engaged in dintleeyour employment is terminated, or if you areemployee of any member of the
Group, at the time you are accused of being in @itipn with any of the Group pursuant to this eethgreement; (ii) in the provision of the
business processes provided by the Group at tleytiar employment is terminated, or if you are ampleyee of any member of the Group, at
the time you are accused of being in competitiohh@hy member of the Group pursuant to this Leigneement; (iii) in the provision of
business processes that any of the Group has salkestantial steps to provide to customers at the fiour employment is terminated, or if you
are an employee of any of the Group, at the timeare accused of being in competition with anyhef Group pursuant to this Letter
Agreement; or (iv) in the provision of businessqasses that any of the Group are in the processmd{eting to existing or potential clients t
any of the Group are taking measures to retaidiests of the Group, at the time your employmertersinated, or if you are an employee of
any of the Group, at the time you are accused ioigha competition with any of the Group pursuamthis Letter Agreement, during your
employment with the Group. You and the Company aekedge that clauses (ii), (iii) and (iv) in thermediately preceding sentence shall not
be deemed or interpreted to narrow or otherwisé time scope of clause (i) of such sentence. Fgogaes of this Letter Agreement, the “Non-
Competition Period” shall be the one year peridibfeing your termination of employment for any reas

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this leztAgreement shall prevent (A) the purchase or @ship by you of up to two perce

(2%) in the aggregate of any class of securitiemgfentity if such securities (i) are listed onadional securities exchange or (ii) are registered
under Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchangeof934; or (B) the direct or indirect ownershipsefcurities of a private company, provided
that, you are only
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a passive investor in such company (having no thlg; or responsibility whatsoever in the manageinagperations or direction of such
company) and own no more than five percent (5%hénaggregate of any securities of such comparpauf employment with the Company
terminated for any reason, and after such terngnatou wish to take any action, including withauatitation, taking a position with another
company, which action could potentially be deemedkation of this Letter Agreement, you shall hdke right, after providing the Board w
all relevant information, to request a consentutchsaction from the Board which consent shall roubreasonably withheld. The Board shall
respond to your request by granting or denying saetsent within not more than 30 calendar days fiteerdate the Company receives written
notice of such request from you. If you disagrethwhe Board’'s decision relating to the consergnta third-party arbitrator (the “ Arbitratdy
shall be appointed within five (5) days of the dgte notify the Company of your disagreement, dredthird party Arbitrator shall be
instructed to make a determination with respeettiether your action would constitute a legally gaind enforceable violation of this Letter
Agreement within not more than thirty (30) dayddaling his appointment and such determination dhalbinding on all of the parties hereto.
The cost of the Arbitrator shall be borne by therPany; provided, however, if the Arbitratsrdetermination is inconsistent with your posit
then the cost of the Arbitrator shall be borne by.y

Confidential Information :

Protection of Confidential Informatic. You acknowledge that the Group has a legitimate@ntinuing proprietary interest in the protectaf
their confidential information and that they hamedsted substantial sums and will continue to ingebstantial sums to develop, maintain and
protect such confidential information. During yamployment with the Group and at all times theegaftou shall not, except with the written
consent of the Company or in connection with caigyout your duties or responsibilities hereundemith or make accessible to anyone or
for your own benefit any trade secrets, confidémtigoroprietary information of any member of theoGp, including their business plans,
marketing plans, strategies, systems, program$yadsf employee lists, computer programs, insurpnuiiles and client lists; provided
however, that such protected information shallincliude either information required to be discloseder law or pursuant to an order of a
court, governmental agency, arbitration panel beoperson or body with apparent jurisdiction doimation known to the public or otherwise
in the public domain without violation by you ofigH_etter Agreement.

Property of the Compar. All memoranda, notes, lists, records and otheudwnts or papers (and all copies thereof) reldtirtge Group,
whether written or stored on electronic media, madeompiled by or on behalf of you in the courgaur employment, or made available to
you in the course of your employment, relatingnig af the Group, or to any entity which may hereafiecome an affiliate thereof, t

excluding your personal effects, rolodexes andlaimitems, shall be the property of the Companyl, simall, except as otherwise agreed by the
Company, be delivered to the Company promptly upenTermination of your employment with the Companat any other time upon
request.
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Non-Disparagement; NonSolicit :

During your employment with the Group and for aigpeiof one (1) year thereafter you shall make niaworable, disparaging or negative
comment, remark or statement, whether written af @ “ Disparaging Statemet)t about the Company or any of its affiliates,iodfs,
directors, shareholders, consultants, or employ®esjded that you may give truthful testimony trefa court, governmental agency,
arbitration panel, or similar person or body wigiparent jurisdiction and may discuss such mattecenfidence with your attorney(s) and o
professional advisors. During the foregoing peribeé, Company and its officers and directors (acitintpeir capacity as officers and directors
of the Company) shall make no disparaging statemieotit you; provided that any officer or directamyngive truthful testimony before a col
governmental agency, arbitration panel, or sinplerson or body with apparent jurisdiction and misgwalss such matters in confidence with
their or the Company’s attorney(s) and other pitesal advisors.

For one year following termination of your employmhé) you may not solicit, encourage, or induceatiempt to solicit, encourage, or induce
any (A) current employee, marketing agent, or ctiastiof any of the Group to terminate his or hepéyment, agency, or consultancy with
any member of the Group or any (B) prospective egg# with whom the Company has had discussionsgutiations within six months pri

to your termination of employment not to establstelationship with any of the Group, (ii) indugeattempt to induce any current customer to
terminate its relationship with any of the Groug(idy induce any potential customer with whom fempany has had discussions or
negotiations within six months prior to your ter@iion of employment not to establish a relationshiin any of the Group.

You shall use your best efforts to perform faithfuefficiently and in compliance with the estahlkl policies and procedures and the
responsibilities and duties assigned to you. Yall gliways act in the best interests of the Group.

Outside Employment:

Your position with the Company is a full time resgibility requiring your full loyalty and dedicatio So that you can do your best, we ask that
you do not work for another employer while still gloyed with the Company. Furthermore, the Compawoipits its

employees from working for or investing money iry@ompetitor of the Company or conducting their dwasiness in competition with the
Company, whether during Company working hours taratompany work hours.

Miscellaneous:

You represent and warrant to the Company that eeitie execution, delivery and performance of ltlieiter Agreement and the non-disclosure
and non-compete agreement nor the performanceuwfdudies to the Company or any Group company taslar will violate the provisions of
any other agreement to which you are a party oxliigh you are bound.
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Vishal, we hope this job offer demonstrates our miment to create a flexible and successful pastmprthat works for both of us. The job
deserves and requires total commitment from youavéeconfident that with you on the team we cache@geat heights, both now and in the
future.

All issues and questions concerning the constragtialidity, enforcement and interpretation of thetter Agreement shall be governed by,
construed in accordance with, the laws of the Sthiew York, without regard to the conflict of lawrinciples of such State. Any dispute
regarding this Letter Agreement shall be resolvwedihding confidential arbitration, to be held i York, New York in accordance with the
Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arhtipbn Association. Judgment upon the award rendeyeatbitrator(s) may be entered in
any court having jurisdiction thereof.

This Letter Agreement may be executed an deliveizdacsimile in two or more counterparts, eaclvbich is deemed to be an original, bu
of which taken together shall constitute one amdstime agreement.

To indicate your acceptance of the terms of thieagent, please sign and date this Employmentiiettee space provided below on or
before May 4, 2009, and return it to the undersigme behalf of the Company.

Regards

/s/ Rohit Kapoor /sl Vikram Talwar
Rohit Kapoor Vikram Talwar
President and Chief Executive Offic Executive Chairma
Accepted:

/s/ Vishal Chhibbar
Vishal Chhibba

Date: 5th May, 200
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Exhibit 10.7

AMENDMENT TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT LETTER

The Amended and Restated Employment And Non-Cotigrethgreement (the “ Employment Agreeméntdated as of December 16,
2008, between ExIService Holdings, Inc. (the “* Camg’) and Rohit Kapoor, is hereby amended as follasifgctive as of the date set forth
below unless provided otherwise herein:

1. Increase in Base SalarfPursuant to the provisions of Section 4(a) offhgloyment Agreement, Mr. Kapoor’'s annual basargas
hereby increased to $500,000 effective as of the loreof.

2. Extension of Employment TernThe Employment Term (as defined in Section 2hefEmployment Agreement) is hereby extended to
December 31, 2012.

3. Clerical AmendmentThe last sentence of Section 7(f) of the Emplayt#egreement is amended by replacing “the Effechage”
with “September 30, 2006".

4. Increase in Auto Lease Allowanc€lause (i) of Item 3 of Schedule 6 of the EmpleyinAgreement is amended by replacing “$1,200”
with “$1,400.”

5. Continuing Effect of the Employment AgreemeBixcept as expressly modified hereby, the promssiaf the Employment Agreement
are and shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the undersigned have acknowlddgel executed this amendment to the Employmergékgent on March 16,
2010.

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

By: [s/ Amit Shashank
Name: Amit Shashar
Title: General Couns:

Is/ Rohit Kapoor
Rohit Kapoot




AMENDMENT AGREEMENT NUMBER 6
BETWEEN
CENTRICA PLC,
EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
AND
EXL SERVICE.COM (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
TO
AGREEMENT NUMBER CEN/2005/9464BU
FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT
FOR THE
PROVISION OF SERVICES
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AMENDMENT AGREEMENT NUMBER 6
TO
AGREEMENT NO: CEN/2005/9464/BU

This AMENDMENT AGREEMENT is made the 1st day of A2009 (the “Amendment Date”)

BETWEEN:

(1) Centrica plc, (registered as a public limitednpany in England under Number 3033654), whosestexgid office is Millstream,
Maidenhead Road, Windsor, Berkshire SL4 5GD “ Client ") (for and on behalf of Client Group); a

(2) ExIService Holdings Inc., a Delaware corponatiath its principal office at 350 Park Avenue, t1Bloor, New York, NY 10022, USA (“
EXL US); and

(3) exl Service.com (India) Private Limited, an Indjarivate limited company with its principal officé 48 Sector 58, Noida, UP201 3(
India (* EXL India ")

RECITALS

WHEREAS, a Framework Agreement was executed bettveeglient, on one part and EXL US and EXL Indietiee other part, with an
Effective Date of 25 July 2005, together with ammedts 1 to 5 thereto (altogether hereinafter reteto as the Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the parties are desirous of further amemnttie Agreement to incorporate certain amendnierdsrtain provisions of the
Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually understood and adreg and between the parties that for and in cemattbn of the obligations ar
agreements that follow, the aforesaid Agreemehéeieby amended:

Each of the recitals set forth above is herebynpa@ted in the Agreement in its entirety.
All capitalized or undefined terms used in this admaent shall have the same meaning as in the Agneem
Now it is hereby agreed that the Agreement is areerad follows with effect from the Amendment Di
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1.

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

Clause 1.t Definitions

1.

The present definition ¢‘Key Staff’ of the Agreement stands deleted and shall be reglag the following claust

“the individuals to be appointed by the Contradtothe roles specified in Schedule 5 and Annex 8aah Work Contract and any Staff
appointed as Operations Manager or above. Fornbieance of doubt Key Staff does not include anyt@xtor “Business Leader”,
Contractor’'s General Manager UK/Europe, “Head o@litics”, “Head of Transformations” or any Contracemployee senior to such
positions (e.g. Contractor’s Chief Executive Offjcexcept to the extent such a person is spedificalmed in a Work Contract.”

The present definition ¢‘Minimum Tern” of the Agreement stands deleted and shall be reglag the following claus¢
“The Minimum Term of the Agreement shall be threans from 1 April 2009.”
The present definition ¢ Pre-Process trainir” of the Agreement stands deleted and shall be reglag the following clause

“Includes induction to the Contractor and Clientroduction to diversity training, the utilitiesdastry in the UK and includes training on
Data Protection Act and Disability Discriminatiorctdin addition to voice related services, comprahanvoice training including
English fluency training will be provided by the @mactor”

The term*ProMPT’ and its definition will be delete:
A new term“UK Client Competitor” will be added as follows

*k%

The present clause 1.11 is deleted and replacédtiétfollowing

1.11 If there is any ambiguity between the terma @Work Contract, the annexes to a Works Contcdatises 1o 54 of this Agreement
and the Schedules, the following order of prioshall prevail:

1.11.1the Work Contract
1.11.2the annexes to a Works Contre
1.11.3clauses 1to 54 of this Agreement
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1.11.4the Schedules; ar
1.11.5the Agreed Document

3 TERM OF AGREEMENT AND OF INDIVIDUAL WORK CONTRACTS
The present clauses 3.1.1 and 3.1.2 stand deletedra replaced by the following:

“No later than six months prior to the expiry of tM@mimum Term, Client may notify the Contractonamiting that it wishes to extend tl
Agreement for a further period of 12 months froma tlate of expiry of the Minimum Term (such periadny the"First Extension Period” ).

No later than six months prior to the expiry of fiest Extension Period Client may notify the Cawtor in writing that it wishes to
extend the Agreement for a further period of 12 therfirom the date of expiry of the First Extensiteriod (such period being th8econd
Extension Period”).”

The present clause 3.4 (but not clauses 3.4.1 @n#l) 3tands deleted and replaced by the following:

“Notwithstanding the above, Client may terminatis thgreement and/or any Work Contract at any tingduiding within its Initial Term
or any written agreed extension of the Initial Tegravided that Client serves three (3) months’ pwadtten notice upon the Contractor. If
Client exercises its right to terminate under ti@ise 3.4 in respect of a Work Contract so tertatheClient shall pay within 30 days of the
date of the Work Contract terminating early terrtimafee limited to:”

TRANSITION PLAN

A new clause 7.14 will be inserted as follows:
“7.14 — In the event of a ramp up of FTEs in a W@dantract of *** or greater (or such lesser peregetas may be mutually agreed in writing
by Client’'s Head of Operations (or equivalent) #melrelevant Contractor Vice President), the piiowis of clauses 7.1 to 7.3 shall apply to

such additional resources for a period of *** dégymn the effective date of such ramp up. Duringhsti¢ day period no claim shall be made
by Client for Service Credits with respect to saddlitional resources.”
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11 CONTRACTOR & CLIENT WARRANTIES
Clause 11.8.9 stands deleted and is replaced Wpltbeing;
“all licences and equipment provided or procuredh®yContractor for the provision of the Servicesadequate and appropriate for the

provision of the Services in accordance with thiséement and shall, to the extent possible, bafieaaible to Client; provided that Client shall
be responsible for any associated transfer ordicgrnfees where applicable;”

12 KPIS AND SERVICE LEVELS
Clause 12.3 stands deleted and is replaced byloeing;
“The Contractor shall monitor its performance of Bervices in accordance with the procedure seh&thedule 3, Annex &ndAnnex 7 of

each Work Contract and within ten Business Dayth®fend of each month the Contractor shall progideport to Client of its performance of
the Services, in particular identifying its perf@ante of the Services when measured against KPIs.”

16 CONTRACT MANAGEMENT/KEY STAFF
Clause 16.10 (but not clauses 16.10.1 and 16.$€8Ys deleted and is replaced by;

*k%

18 CERTIFICATION
Clause 18.8 stands deleted and is replaced witfollosving;

“18.8 Save where agreed to the contrary by Clientriting, the Contractor shall provide certificateonfirming compliance with the standards
detailed in this clause 18.8 on an annual bastd) sertification to be provided during the montkgeding each anniversary of the Effective
Date. The certification areas subject to this @al®.8 are:

18.8.11S0O 27001; ant

18.8.21S0O 9001,

18.8.3S0X 18.8.% copies of the Sarbar-Oxley certifications made in Contractors annualnrdg-K filed with the United State
Securities and Exchange Commis!”
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19 PRICING
A new clause 19.3 will be inserted as follows;

“All Client and its Affiliates Work Contracts, whegr under the Agreement, or not will be deemedrasi@d Work Contracts for the purposes
of calculating the baseline unit pricing (i.e. brefadjusting for Service delivery requirementsrasfructure and regional variations unigue to
any Client entity) for the same types of Servi¢es.the avoidance of doubt, the final pricing (thee actual contracted amount) for any Sen
for each Client entity shall be adjusted for Sexvdelivery requirements, infrastructure, regioraiations unique to each Client entity (e.g.
different shift times, dual screen monitors as @ggubto single, attrition variances for working rtatift, differences in bandwidth costs and
geography) or material differences to contracteaht Client shall use reasonable efforts to enthateall Affiliate Work Contracts are entered
into under the Agreement. Client may in its sokcdition exclude one or more Work Contracts fromm ¢tfause 19.3.”

21. PAYMENT
Clause 21.3 stands deleted and is replaced witfollosving;

“Subject to clause 21.5, Client shall pay in Unikidgdom Pounds Sterling (or, if replaced by thedzin Euro (after applying the conversion
mechanism determined by United Kingdom statuteylegpn or direction)) by bank transfer to such tgdiKingdom bank account as the
Contractor may notify to Client in writing from tierto time (1) all invoices (other than with respectiebit notes) delivered to it in accordance
with this clause 21 on or prior to the date whigh** days following the date upon which Client edees the invoice and (2) any debit notes
raised by the Contractor as soon as possible f@siendeavours basis) upon receipt of the Conttadhvoice.” Notwithstanding anything in
the Agreement to the contrary, the foreign exchaatgapplied to debit note invoices shall be tbsing rate set by the Reserve Bank of India
on the date of the invoice.”

A new clause 21.11 will be inserted in to the Agneat as follows:

*k*k
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23 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS
Clause 23.4 is deleted and replaced by the follgwin

“In relation to any Contractor IPR (i) the develogmh of which is specifically paid for by Client, @) which is embedded in the Project
Materials and/or Client Materials as part of thegass of actually providing the Services (but nohitoring the provision of the Services
(“ Developed IPR")), the Contractor grants an unrestricted, irrevocadyjalty free and perpetual licence for Client te gsich Contract
IPR, including the right to sub-license such CorttvalPR to Affiliates and third parties, providttht this licence shall only cover the
specific Developed IPR itself and nothing in tblisuse 23.4hall be taken as granting Client a licence tagirtito use any other
Intellectual Property Rights or software of the €aotor, whether or not Contractor IPR, includiong the avoidance of doubt any
software in which Contractor IPR or Developed IPRyrbe embedded.”

Clause 23.14 is deleted

26. INDEMNITIES AND LIMITATIONS UPON LIABILITY
Clause 26.2 in its entirety stands deleted andgkaced by the following:

*k%

31 DISPUTE RESOLUTION
Clause 31.3 stands deleted and replaced by thefiol
31.2- Adispute referred for determination under iclause 31relating to this Agreement shall be escalated matity for resolution as follow:
i. by referral in writing (issued by either Clientthie Contractor) in the first instance to the pesstesignated as the stage
representative beini
Stage one represental - Clienf s Commercial/Contract Manag
- the Contractc's Relationship Manage

ii. if a dispute is not resolved within two Businesy®af its referral undeclause 31.3.., or such longer period as may
agreed between the parties, either Client or th&r@ctor may refer the dispute in the next instandfe persons designated
by each party as the stage 2 representative kt

Stage 2 representatiy - Clien's Head of Operatior

- the Contractc's Chief Operating Office
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iii. if a dispute is not resolved within five Busiss Days of its referral undelause 31.3.;, or such longer period as may be
agreed between the parties, either Client or th&r@ctor may refer the dispute in the next instandfe persons designated
by each party as the stage 3 representative k

Stage 3 representatiy - Client's Managing Directa
- the Contractc' s Executive Chairman or Chief Executive Officettud Contractc's

32. TERMINATION
Clause 32.3.1.1 stands deleted and is replacelebfpliowing:

“Where *** or more of the equity securities of tR®ntractor become owned or under the control éfigles investor who is not an
investor at the date of this Agreement provided tihia shall not apply to holdings of the equitgwseties of the Contractor by
underwriters as a consequence of the initial puiffiering in their role as such, or holdings mainéal by fund managers on behalf
of unconnected groups of individual investors. @ieeserves the right terminate the agreement*itofthe equity securities of the
Contractor become owned by a Client Competitor.”

Clause 32.3.1.2 stands deleted.

It is hereby agreed that the clauses 32.4.1. andZB2tand deleted and are replaced by the follgwin

32.4.1the Defaulting Party summons a meeting of its ¢oesj makes a proposal for a voluntary arrangent@tpomes subject to al
voluntary arrangement, is unable to pay its deliisimthe meaning of section 123 Insolvency Act898as a receiver, manager,
administrator or administrative receiver appointedr any of its assets, undertakings or incomephased a resolution for its
winding-up (save for the purpose of a voluntaryorestruction or amalgamation), is subject to a Hadepetition presented to
any Court for its winding-up which is not contesteithin 60 calendar days of being presented (savéhke purpose of a
voluntary reconstruction or amalgamation), is sobje a bona fide petition presented to any Caurité administration, has a
provisional liquidator appointed, has a proposatienfor a scheme «
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arrangement under section 425 Companies Act 1988senting a compromise with its creditors or esghbject of a bona fide
notice to strike off the register at Companies Hoaisis subject to an administration orc

32.4.2 the Defaulting Party has any distraint, etiea or other process levied or enforced on anysgbroperty which is not contested
or paid out within 60 calendar days of being levie@nforced

34. FINANCIAL PROTECTION
A new clause 34.7 will be added as follows:

*k*k

36. CONFIDENTIALITY
Clause 36.4 stands deleted and is replaced byloe/ing;

“Within seven days of receipt of a written requiesin a party hereto, on termination of a Work Caatror this Agreement (as appropriate)
each other party will, in relation to the Confidahtnformation held in connection with the relevé@rminated Work Contract, or all
Confidential Information following termination dfis Agreement, return to the other parties all gtaf<onfidential Information that is in its
possession or under its custody and control ancballes thereof and will expunge any Confidentidbtmation from any computer, word
processor or other device, and all analyses, cetiils, notes studies, memoranda or other docurpespgred which contain Confidential
Information will be destroyed and each party wélider to the other parties a certificate signedtirector confirming compliance with the
requirements of thislause 36.4 provided that each party’s legal department dhalkentitled to retain an archival copy of the Gaberftial

Information in order to meet such party’s legategulatory obligations or in order to comply witk obligations and enforce its rights
hereunder.”
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39. SERVICES OF CONTRACTUAL NOTICES
Clause 39.1 stands deleted and is replaced byloeing;

“Any notice, demand or communication in connectigth this Agreement will be in writing and may belidered by hand, special delivery
post, facsimile or email addressed to the recipiiits registered office to its address, facsimilenber or email address as the case may be
stated inclause 39.4elow and will be marked for the attention of thdividual(s) stated inlause 39.4or such other address or facsimile
number or person which the recipient has notifiediiting to the sender in accordance with tiguse 39 to be received by the sender not
less than seven Business Days before the notatispatched).”
Clause 39.2 stands deleted and is replaced byllogving:

39.2 The notice, demand or communication will be deemodtave been duly serve

39.2.1 if delivered by hand, at the time of delive

39.2.2 if delivered by special delivery post, 4&iteafter being posted or in the case of airmail, Business Days after being
posted;

39.2.3 if delivered by facsimile or email, at the timetdnsmission, provided that a confirming copy istd®y Special Deliver
or Airmail post to the other party within 24 hoafser transmissior

provided that, where in the case of delivery bychantransmission by facsimile or email, such deivor transmission occurs either after
4.00 pm GMT on a Business Day, or on a day othar thBusiness Day, service will be deemed to cacr00 am GMT on the next
following Business Day (such times being local tiat¢he address of the recipient).

Clause 39.3 stands deleted and is replaced byloefng:

39.3 Service by facsimile or email is a valid meahservice only where service of the original nefidemand or communication is not
required.
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Clause 39.4 stands deleted and is replaced byloe/ing:
39.4 The addresses, facsimile numbers and email addréssthe parties are as follow

Client Contractor

FAO The Company Secreta FAO The Presider

FAO British Gas Managing Director FAO The General Counsel
Centrica plc

Millstream, Maidenhead Roa 350 Park Avenue, 10th Floor, N¢
Windsor, Berkshire, SL4 5GD York, NY 10022, USA
Facsimile: Upon Request Facsimile: (+1) 212-277-7111
Email: (Upon Reques Email: (Upon Reques

Clause 49 — NON-SOLICITATION
Clause 49 stands deleted and is replaced by tlusvioh:

“Save where agreed pursuant to an Exit Plan or evagpressly permitted pursuant to clause 33.1(5ghédule 14, Client & Contractor each
agree that they shall not during the term of thige®ment solicit for the purposes of employment tens of staff of the other party. For the
avoidance of doubt this shall not preclude eittatypfrom offering employment to any person apphiag such party in response to a
published advertisement (not specifically direcéthe other party’s employees) with no induceneersplicitation on the part of such party or
as otherwise mutually agreed.”

Page 11



A new clause 50 Benchmarking will be inserted tlgge®ement as follows:

50 *k%
A new clause 51 Corporate Responsibility will beledito the Agreement as follows:

51 CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

51.1 The Contractor will comply with the Clientsr@orate Responsibility Policy (“CR Policy”) as seit in Schedule 19 in force from time to
time as made available to Contractor.

51.2 The Contractor shall allow during regular bass hours the Client and any auditors or otheisars/to the Client to access those portions
of the Contractor’s premises, personnel and relereords dedicated to the Services as may berrabiorequired in order to undertake
verification of the Contractor’'s compliance withet@R Policy.

51.3 The Contractor shall provide the Client (aischuditors and other advisers) with all reasonableperation, access and assistance in
relation to each audit. During any such audit, @lghall and shall cause its auditors and advisef¥) comply with Contractor’s security and
confidentiality procedures and (2) conduct the awith minimal disruption to Contractor’s businessd operations.

51.4 The Client shall provide at least five BussBays’ notice of its intention to conduct an auditless Client has received notice of an
alleged breach, which shall be immediately idesdifio the Contractor, in which case the Clientldieate the right to audit without notice.

51.5 The Contractor shall use reasonable endeat@memtract with its Contractors on terms provgdan equivalent level of protection to the
CR Policy.

51.6 The Contractor shall, on request, providdéoQlient details of its Contractors, subject tg eghts of confidentiality to which the
Contractor is subject.

51.7 The Contractor will at least annually auditdompliance with the CR Policy, and on requeghieyClient provide to the Client details of
such compliance.

51.8 In the event that the Contractor fails to chymyith Clause 51.7, the Contractor shall procina the Client or its auditors or other advis
be allowed access to the relevant Contractor faslin order to verify compliance with the CR Rgli

51.9 If the Client identifies, through an auditadherwise, any failure by the Contractor to compith the CR Policy, and to the extent
Contractor disputes such finding, such failuranialfy determined pursuant to the Dispute ResofuBoocedure, the Contractor will work with
the Client to agree a rectification plan; providedt any such dispute by Contractor shall be imatet}i escalated to the parties “Stage 3
representatives” pursuant to clause 31.3.3.
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51.10 If an appropriate rectification plan cannetutually agreed or the Supplier fails within asenable time to carry out the rectification
plan, this will be deemed to be a material bredatoatract by the Supplier, giving rise to a riglitermination by the Company under Clause
32.

A new clause 52 Exclusivity will be added to therégment as follows:

52 *k%
A new clause 53 Change of Control of Centrica Adfés will be added to the Agreement as follows:

53 CHANGE OF CONTROL OF CENTRICA AFFILIATES

“If Client sells or otherwise transfers ownershffaa Affiliate who is using Contractor servicesjedk shall notify the Contractor of such
transaction and the parties shall mutually agremwmy necessary segregation of the Services tessl€lient’s confidentiality and security
concerns with respect to such divested Affiliatemvided that Client shall be responsible for argsmnable costs incurred by Contractor to
segregate the Services.”

Page 1:



A new clause 54 Corporate Social Responsibility kel added to the Agreement as follows:

54 *k*k

AS WITNESS the hands of the duly authorised representativéiseoparties on the date stated at the beginnitigieAmendment Agreement
6.

SIGNED by Nick Luff )
duly authorised to sign for and on behal )
CENTRICA plc )
in the presence o )
SIGNED by Rohit Kapoor )
duly authorised to sign for and on behal )
EXL SERVICE HOLDINGS, INC. )
in the presence o )
SIGNED by Vikram Talwar )
duly authorised to sign for and on behal )
EXL Service.com (India) Private Limited )
in the presence o )
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Name of Subsidiary
ExIService.com, Inc

ExIService Philippines, Inc
exlService.com (India) Private Limite

Ex| Support Services Private Limit
ExIService (U.K.) Limitec

ExIService Mauritius Limitet

ExIService SEZ BPO Solutions Private Limil
ExIService Romania Private Limited S.R
ExlIService Czech Republic S.R.
Inductis Inc.

Inductis LLC

Inductis India Private Limite

Inductis (Singapore) PTE Limite

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction
Delaware
Philippines
India
India
United Kingdor
Mauritius
India
Romanis
Czech Republi
Delaware
Delaware
India
Singapore



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-162388)the Registration Statement
(Form S-8 No. 333-139211 and No. 333-157076) partgito the 2003 Stock Option Plan, 2003 India Etemployee Option Plan, 2006
Omnibus Award Plan, 2006 Omnibus India Subpland. 2006 Omnibus India Subplan 2 of ExIService Haldinnc. of our reports dated
March 16, 2010, with respect to the consolidatedritial statements of ExIService Holdings, Incd tire effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting of ExIService Holdings, Inccladed in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for theayended December 31, 2009.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 16, 2010



Exhibit 31.1
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Vikram Talwar, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report of ExIServicdditms, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amgttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep
4. The registrar's other certifying officers and | are responsiloiedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (G
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financearting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdang the reliability of financial reporting atfite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantbd report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in case of an annual report) tlzet tnaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anldalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which ai
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a signiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 16, 2010 /s/ Vikram Talwar

Vikram Talwar
Executive Chairma



Exhibit 31.2
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Vishal Chhibbar, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report of ExIServicdditms, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amgttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep
4. The registrar's other certifying officers and | are responsiloiedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (G
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financearting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdang the reliability of financial reporting atfite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantbd report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in case of an annual report) tlzet tnaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anldalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which ai
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a signiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 16, 2010 /s/ Vishal Chhibbar

Vishal Chhibbai
Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 31.3
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Rohit Kapoor, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report of ExIServicdditms, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amgttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep
4. The registrar's other certifying officers and | are responsiloiedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (G
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financearting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantbd report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in case of an annual report) tlzet tnaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anldalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which ai
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a signiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 16, 2010 /s/ Rohit Kapoor

Rohit Kapoor
President and Chief Executive Offic



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ExIServideldings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for tiiear ended December 31, 2009 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiotthe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Vikram Talwkxecutive Chairman of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, ap#etbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxteyf 2002, that:

(@) the Report fully complies with the requirementse€tion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(b) the information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/s/ Vikram Talwai
Vikram Talwar
Executive Chairma

March 16, 2010



Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ExIServideldings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for tiiear ended December 31, 2009 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Vishal Chhihb@hief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01258 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@mley Act of 2002, that:

(@) the Report fully complies with the requirementse€tion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(b) the information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/s/ Vishal Chhibba
Vishal Chhibba
Chief Financial Office!

March 16, 2010



Exhibit 32.3
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ExIServideldings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for tiiear ended December 31, 2009 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Rohit Kapderesident and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®8b0, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of thea8as-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(@) the Report fully complies with the requirementse€tion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(b) the information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/s/ Rohit Kapoo!
Rohit Kapoor
President and Chief Executive Offic

March 16, 201(



